VA.V LANE WORKFORCE

PARTNERSHIEP

LANE WORKFORCE PARTNERSHIP BOARD MEETING
Thursday, February 22, 2024
3:00pm — 5:00pm

In-Person: WorkSource Lane, 2510 Oakmont Way, Eugene
Zoom: https://us02web.zoom.us/}/88200865235

AGENDA

I.  CALLTO ORDER / Shondra Holliday 3:00pm

II.  PUBLIC COMMENT — In accordance with Lane Workforce Partnership’s Public Comment Policy:
Speakers will be taken in the order in which they sign up and will be limited to three minutes per public comment.

III.  CONSENT CALENDAR / Action Pages 1 -17
o Minutes of the September 28", 2023, Board Meeting (Pages 1 — 6) 3:05pm — 3:10pm
o Minutes of the December 14", 2023, Board Meeting (Pages 7 — 17)
IV.  LOCAL STRATEGIC PLAN PROCESS UPDATE / Information 3:10pm — 3:30pm
Rathy Smith, K] Smith Associates
V.  LOCAL STRATEGIC PLAN APPROVAL / Action Pages 18 - 72
Cindy Perry, Lane Workforce Partnership 3:30pm — 3:40pm
VI. LWP MID-YEAR PERFORMANCE REPORT / Information Pages 73 - 92
Cindy Perry 3:40pm — 3:50pm
VII.  CHAIR’S REPORT / Information Page 93
Shondra Holliday 3:50pm — 4:00pm

e Summaty of LWP Board/Executive Board/Lane Council Action Items / Information
Minutes for Full Board, Executive Board, and Lane Council meetings are available here)

VIII. EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR’S REPORT / Information 4:00pm — 4:20pm

IX.  BOARD COMMITTEE UPDATES / Information 4:20pm — 4:35pm

e Julie Davidson, Chair, Workforce Services Operations Committee
e John Stapleton, Chair, Community Engagement Committee

X.  BOARD MEMBER UPDATES / Information 4:35pm — 4:55pm
XI.  OTHER BUSINESS 4:55pm
XII.  ADJOURNMENT 5:00pm

Lane Workforce Partnership is an equal opportunity employer. With 48 hours of notice, anxiliary aids and services, and alternate formats are
available to individnals with limited English proficiency free of cost. Requests can be made directly to LWP or with the assistance of TTY: Oregon
Relay Services at 1-800-735-2900.


https://us02web.zoom.us/j/88200865235
https://www.laneworkforce.org/about-us/meetings/

Y4\e, LANE WORKFORCE
AV

PARTNERSHIP

LANE WORKFORCE BOARD MEETING
Thursday, September 28, 2023
3:00PM - 5:00PM

MINUTES

In Attendance: Julie Davidson, Billy Dover, Jeff Graham, Courtney Griesel,

David Heavirland, Phil Hohnstein, Shaun Hyland, Heidi Larwick,
Grant Matthews, Stan Pickett, Tony Scurto, John Stapleton,
Laura Vinson, Steve Yamamori

Absent: Jennifer Adams, Allan Benavides, Bettina Hannigan, Solomon Harris,

Shondra Holliday, Josh McClaughry, Bailey McEuen, Jetf McGillivray,
Miles Pendleton, Holly Powell

Board Staff: Ashley Espinoza, Anne Nestell, Tiffany Cink, Cindy Perry, Lyle Lang,
Ryan Kounovsky, Jesse Quinn, Stephanie Lovell
Others: Deanna Strachan-Wilson
I. CALL TO ORDER and INTRODUCTIONS

II.

III.

IV.

Stan Pickett called the meeting to order, and introductions were made.

PUBLIC COMMENT

There was no public comment.

CONSENT CALENDAR

Steve Yamamori made a motion to approve the May 25, 2023, Board Meeting Minutes. Tony Scurto
seconded, and the motion was unanimously approved.

BOARD OFFICER RECOMMENDATION

On July 1%, 2023, Jennifer Adams automatically moved into the Past Chair position and Shondra
Holliday automatically moved into the Chair position.

The LLane Workforce Partnership Board of Directors received notifications regarding the availability
of the Chair-Elect, Treasurer, and Secretary positions. Solomon Harris expressed interest in the
Chair-Elect position, John Stapleton in the Treasurer position, and Jeff Graham and Phil Hohnstein
in the Secretary position.

During the meeting, Phil Hohnstein informed the board that he is withdrawing his name for
consideration for the Secretary position due to work commitments.

Tony Scurto made a motion to elect Solomon Harris, Chair-Elect, John Stapleton, Treasurer, and
Jeff Graham, Secretary to serve as board officers for a two-year term beginning September 28, 2023.
Julie Davidson seconded, and the motion was unanimously approved.

BOARD COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION



VI.

This past year, the Board engaged in training provided by the Center for Workforce Excellence
International (CWEI). CWEI recommended the development of standing committees that tie back
to the 17 required functions of the board, local plan, and key priorities.

Staff are recommending that the board start with two committees: 1) Workforce Services
Operations Committee; 2) Community Engagement Committee.

Courtney Griesel made a motion to approve two standing committees of the Board: 1) Workforce
Services Operations Committee; 2) Community Engagement Committee. Shaun Hyland seconded,
and the motion was unanimously approved.

Julie Davidson will serve as Chair of the Workforce Services Operations Committee and Ryan
Kounovsky will serve as LWP staff to the committee. Steve Yamamori and Dave Heavirland
expressed interest in serving on this committee.

John Stapleton will serve as Chair of the Community Engagement Committee and Jesse Quinn will
serve as LWP staff to the committee. Stan Pickett expressed interest in serving on this committee.

LWP YEAR-END PERFORMANCE REPORT

Cindy Perry presented an overview of the Year-End Performance Report, a semi-annual report that
provides a detailed analysis of our workforce service delivery system outcomes.

Key Highlights:

1. Customer Engagement: Over the past year, there has been a notable increase of 1,568
customers utilizing the services of the WorkSource Center. While there was a decline during
the COVID-19 pandemic, we are now seeing an upward trend.

2. Performance Metrics: The Youth program continues to perform well in all core performance
measures mandated by the law. However, the Adult/Dislocated Worker program faced
challenges in achieving Measurable Skill Gain. This issue is linked to the concerns identified
during the monitoring process, and corrective measures have been initiated with the
contract, as previously mentioned. It is important to note that participants are acquiring the
necessary skills, but there are discrepancies in the reporting within I-Trac.

3. Fund Development: The Year-End Report includes a breakdown of the grants we applied
for, along with the status of those applications. In the past year, we submitted four grant
applications and are currently awaiting decisions on three of them.

4. Impacts of Prosperity 10K: Upon compiling the data, it became evident that the programs
have had a substantial and immediate impact. The following initiatives are attributed to this
success:

e Industry Wide Training Projects (projects designed to help businesses in areas where
they need some training and growth): Engaging 105 businesses and 188 individuals.

e Customized Training Programs: Involving 6 businesses and 84 individuals, where
businesses play a direct role in training section and implementation to meet their
workforce needs.

e Career and Training Services Program (including On-the-Job Training, Scholarship
Training, Career Services, STEP): Engaging 19 businesses and 377 individuals.

e Overall Impact: Encompassing 130 businesses and 649 individuals across all projects.
2



VII.

VIII.

IX.

2024 — 2028 STRATEGIC AND LOCAL PLAN DEVELOPMENT PROCESS

Cindy Perry outlined the procedure involved in crafting and executing the Local Strategic Plan. As
per the requirements of the Workforce Innovation and Opportunity Act (WIOA), states and local
boards are mandated to develop and refresh their local plans every four years. We are in the process
of updating our Local Plan for implementation in PY 2024. Simultaneously, in Lane County, the
Workforce Development Board is in the process of formulating a Strategic Plan that will guide the
actions of LWP over the four-year period.

LWP will start the process by convening focus groups in various regions across the county,
including Eugene, Springfield, Cottage Grove, Florence, and Junction City. Invitations will be
extended to board members, local elected officials, businesses, community members, stakeholders,
workforce service delivery partners, and economic development partners.

Additionally, a committee from the Workforce Development Board will be convened to actively
engage in this undertaking. The finalized Local Plan is slated for submission to the State Workforce
and Talent Development Board by March 18, 2024.

Heidi Larwick noted the importance of incorporating a youth focus group into the convenings along
with engaging with individuals who may not typically feel included in such spaces. She suggested
visiting community-based organizations that serve these populations, rather than expecting them to
attend events in hotel settings.

PROGRAM YEAR 2023 BUDGET REVIEW

Tiffany Cink provided an overview of the Program Year 2023 Budget. LWP’s follows a fiscal year
from July 1* through June 30™. The Lane Workforce Partnership 2023-2024 Original Budget was

adopted at the May 18, 2023, Executive Board Meeting and the first Budget Modification is being
prepared for presentation at the Executive Board Meeting on October 19, 2023.

In the original budget, both revenue and expenses saw a decrease. This reduction was primarily
attributed to the one-year State of Oregon Future Ready Oregon prosperity 10,000 funding.
Throughout 2022-2023, LWP allocated over $1.2M to various workforce services and projects
across Lane County.

For Budget Modification #1, Community Investments will see an increase based on final Revenue
award amounts, and we will replenish funds in our Reserve for Future Expenditures.

CHAIR’S REPORT

Stan Pickett provided an overview, stating that the action item summaries from LWP Board,
Executive Board, and Lane Council meetings have been outlined on pages 40 and 41 within the
board packet.

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR’S REPORT

In addition to the communication document provided with the board packet for this meeting,
Ashley Espinoza highlighted a few points.



e Communication Document
o This standalone document accompanies the board packet for meeting
preparations. The document offers information about the organization, covering
updates on programs, legislative matters, events, business services, and more.

e Oregon Economic Development Association (OEDA) Conference
o The OEDA Conference is being held October 8 — 10 at the Graduate Hotel in
Eugene. The conference includes a tour of the Spark on 7" facility.

e WORKIing Together Conference
o The annual WORKing Together Conference, organized by the Oregon
Workforce Partnership, will take place November 6 — 8 at the Riverhouse
Conference Center in Bend. A special reception for workforce board members is
planned for the evening of the 6. “Constructing a Brighter Future” has been
chosen as one of the workshop sessions at the conference. Attendance is
encouraged, as last year’s conference was a sold-out event.

e Lane Workforce Partnership Monthly Newsletter
o We launched a monthly newsletter in July designed to share success stories,
valuable insights, and information and resources.

e Connected Lane County Taskforce
o A taskforce has been created to help define the profile of a graduating student
and emerging workforce. The taskforce will focus on questions such as how
young individuals can demonstrate mastery in professional, technical, and life
skills; how employers can effectively evaluate and provide feedback; and how
various stakeholders can collaborate to help individuals bridge skill gaps and
realize their potential.

e Customized Training, Lanz Cabinets & Catholic Community Services
o A video showcasing the impact of this partnership was shared. Through this
innovative approach, Lanz Cabinets has achieved an impressive 90% retention
rate.

XI. BOARD MEMBER UPDATES

Julie Davidson (Oregon Employment Department): We continue to offer services around
our targeted population of SNAP recipients in robust ways including On-the-Job Training
opportunities. Hosted a large event last week with our WorkSource Lane community — 250
individuals engaged with over 30 employers. This marked the first time since the pandemic
that we’ve held an event of this size. We continue to build strong ties with justice-involved
individuals. We are partnering and hosting a job fair within the state penitentiary in Salem
this coming Friday, where employers will have the opportunity to connect with individuals
seeking employment.

Heidi Larwick (Connected Lane County): The first cohort of our Manufacturing Technology
Excelerator launched in February 2023 and was followed by the Health Excelerator in June
2023. The Tech Excelerator will launch this fall followed by the Culinary Excelerator in
2024. There is an initiative originating from a group in New York known as Direct Cash
Transfers which is also being implemented in other countries. The premise of the program is
that providing individuals with unrestricted cash yields better outcomes compared to giving
money with specific restrictions. We are one of six sites chosen to participate in this pilot
program. Under this initiative, 50 youth experiencing homelessness or couch surfing will

4



each receive $2,500. This approach aims to gain insights into their spending choices while
allowing the individuals full autonomy over how the money is spent.

Shaun Hyland (John Hyland Construction): Shared news about potential developments in
the West 11"/Green Hill area. There is interest from a couple of companies for the 25-acre
site. One of these companies has the potential to create 300 jobs. If you have any
information that Shaun could get in front of these companies to further incentivize their
interest, please reach out to him.

Tony Scurto (Lane ESD): Shared information about a promising initiative called the Hope
Factory, a collaboration between St. Vincent de Paul and HOPE Community Corporation.
This program will have participation from 10 out of the 16 school districts. He believes this
model holds potential for being replicated across other industries.

Phil Hohnstein (Hillside Heights): Hillside Heights is located in the South Eugene area.
Despite being the smallest skilled nursing facility in the Eugene/Springfield region, they’ve
made significant strides in bolstering the nursing staff, hiring over 30 individuals, primarily
CNA’s, within the last three months. In three weeks, they will be hosting a job fair at one of
their sister facilities nearby. Hillside Heights completed a matket analysis/wage analysis for
nurses and developed a complete program where wages increased by $4 to $10 an hour.
Additionally, they will make investments in CNA wages. Hillside Heights is becoming more
invested in the community and will be making monthly sizable clothing donations to the
Eagan Warming Center.

Courtney Griesel (Sierra Pacific Industries): Sierra Pacific is one of the largest U.S. lumber
manufacturers and produces millwork, windows, and renewable energy. They operate four
mills in Lane County along with having a biomass power facility in Lane County. On the
workforce front, they have a couple of big construction projects underway. They are in the
process of building a fabrication and trucking division in Oregon and in the contract stages
for CDL partnerships. Many hiring events are happening right now. Additionally, offering
tours to K-12 groups with a particular emphasis on older middle school and high school
students. Will be holding a workforce tour (lunch and learn) on October 5™

Steve Yamamori (Reveille Foundation): Reveille Foundation is a nonprofit dedicated to
supporting underserved populations. Although small, they’re gaining traction and building
momentum. Tomorrow, they are gearing up for the Stand Down for Veterans event at the
fairgrounds. This event is open to all veterans, not just those experiencing homelessness, and
many resources will be offered. Reveille has recently secured a VA grant for 35 units of
housing here in FEugene as well as 30 units of housing in Lincoln City. Their approach
encompasses holistic case management, behavioral health support, housing assistance, and
transitional work. Steve looks forward to working with all the partners.

Grant Matthews (LLane Community College): Classes started this week, so students are back
on campus. Excited for the new year.

Laura Vinson (Lane County): Excited for the new clinic opening in Cottage Grove. The
South Lane Clinic will break ground later this year, with an anticipated opening in 2024.
Lane County is hosting their first medical assistant apprenticeship program — brought on
five individuals who will be with us for a year and receive their medical assistant certification
while they’re employed with us.

Dave Heavirland (Veterans Affairs): As Community Employment Coordinator for the
Roseburg VA Healthcare System, Dave is tasked to promote the hiring of our homeless

veteran’s population. Tomorrow is the Stand Down event for Veterans at the Fairgrounds.
Our office is thankful to host OED DVOP Rob Ryker once a week.

Billy Dover (Tyree Oil): We are in the process of kicking-off a transportation sector
partnership at the end of October. This collaboration aims to mobilize the industry in
support of promoting CDL driving and diesel-tech positions. Stay tuned for further updates.



e Jeff Graham (Danone/So Delicious Daitry Free): Danone/So Delicious Dairy Free
specializes in plant-based ice cream. They are one of 16 plants under the Danone umbrella.
In terms of local hiring, the focus has been primarily on backfilling positions due to attrition.
Jeff has connected with the Business Services Team at WorkSource Lane and has an OJT
tour scheduled for next week.

e Stan Pickett (Delta Sand and Gravel): Successfully conducted a CDL driving school,
involving six participants, comprised of both current and new employees, who have all
obtained their CDL certifications. Another round of training for six more individuals is in
the pipeline. Additionally, we ran a program that trained six concrete workers to work as

finish workers, which they really enjoyed. Also trained six laborers to work with equipment
and operating.

XII. OTHER BUSINESS
No other business was noted.
XIII. ADJOURNMENT

Mr. Pickett adjourned the meeting.



Y4\e, LANE WORKFORCE
AV

PARTNERSHIP

LANE WORKFORCE BOARD MEETING
Thursday, December 14", 2023
3:00PM - 5:00PM

MINUTES

In Attendance: Allan Benavides, Julie Davidson, Jeff Graham, Courtney Griesel,

David Heavirland, Shondra Holliday, Bailey McEuen, Grant Matthews,
Stan Pickett, Holly Powell, Tony Scurto

Absent: Jennifer Adams, Billy Dover, Bettina Hannigan, Solomon Harris,

Phil Hohnstein, Shaun Hyland, Heidi Larwick, Josh McClaughry,
Jetf McGillivray, John Stapleton, Laura Vinson, Steve Yamamori

Board Staff: Ashley Espinoza, Anne Nestell, Tiffany Cink, Cindy Perry, Lyle Lang,

Ryan Kounovsky, Jesse Quinn, Stephanie Lovell

Others: Dana Merryday, Tim Foster, Nancy Pance, Deanna Strachan-Wilson,

II.

III.

Iv.

Caitlin Vargas, Nichole Desch, Matt Sayre, Kachina Inman

CALL TO ORDER and INTRODUCTIONS

Shondra Holliday called the meeting to order, and introductions were made.

PUBLIC COMMENT

There was no public comment.

CONSENT CALENDAR

The number of members needed for a quorum was not achieved during this meeting, preventing any
official action on the minutes from the September 28, 2023, meeting.

PRESENTATIONS

Danna Strachan-Wilson, who serves as the Supervisor for Lane County Workforce Services, a
division of Lane County Health & Human Services, presented to the board.

Within our workforce services, we administer three distinct programs:
e STEP Program: serving SNAP recipients
e JOBS Program: serving TANF families
e WIOA (Workforce Innovation and Opportunity Act) Adult & Dislocated Worker Program.

Today, our focus is on the WIOA Program. This program is an integral part of the One-Stop service
delivery system mandated by WIOA. The overarching goal of the One-stop system is to consolidate
various workforce-related programs into a cohesive menu of integrated services. WIOA identifies
core and required partners and programs, with the WIOA Adult & Dislocated Worker Program
being one such partner.

Our team consists of five career advisors, two of which are bilingual, a part-time office assistant, a
senior office assistant, and me.



The WIOA program allocates funds for employment and training services geared towards
individuals aged 18 and older. Specifically, the Dislocated Worker component of the program
supports individuals who have lost employment due to business closures or reductions in the
workforce. Workforce Services extends employment and training programs to both job seekers and
businesses across Lane County. Our services are individualized and developed in collaboration with
each job secker, empowering them to select, attain, and sustain a career path aligned with their needs
and future employer demands. We offer culturally and linguistically relevant services, with all
offerings available in Spanish. Moreover, we aid in languages other than Spanish through two
language lines and accommodate individuals with hearing and vision impairments through
technology.

Our strategic partnerships with Vocational Rehabilitation, Sponsors, and Transponder enable us to
broaden our service delivery to individuals facing bias due to disability, criminal justice involvement,
and gender in the workplace.

In our program, we serve two key customer groups: job seekers and employers. Our efforts with job
seekers encompass various avenues:
e Referrals: Job seekers are referred to us through diverse agency partners, workshops,
outreach events, and self-referrals via our Unite Us form on the website.

e Consultations: While job seekers can meet with a Career Advisor once for a resume update
or a discussion about their job search, we strongly encourage them to enroll in our
Individualized Career Services. This ensures they receive customized services tailored to their
education, skills, and career goals.

o Individualized Career Services: This is our primary offering, where any job seeker
enrolled in an On-the-Job Training (O] T), Scholarship Program, or Training
Program works one-on-one with a Career Advisor. The Career Advisor collaborates
with the job seeker to create an employment plan, meeting at least once per month.
Post-employment, the Career Advisor continues to follow up for a year, with
checkpoints at 90 days, 6 months, and 12 months to ensure retention or provide
rapid re-employment support. Participants in this program are eligible for support
services, addressing barriers to employment or training, such as transportation,
clothing, childcare, etc.

e Talent Development Workshops: In addition to one-on-one career services, our team
conducts group workshops on various job search topics. These workshops cover areas such
as resumes, interview skills, job search strategies, soft skills, and more. Specific workshops
are designed to provide information about employment in target industry sectors. For
instance, Billy Dover played an integral role in delivering a monthly session on Commercial
Truck Driver and Diesel Mechanic careers. We now have a recorded session that job seekers
can view at any time, followed by a consultation with a Career Advisor. This strategy
significantly contributed to our recruitment efforts for the Driving Prosperity Program,
offering job seekers real-life insights into working in the transportation industry. Last
program year, 397 individuals attended our workshops.

We have expanded our outreach efforts to reach individuals who historically have not accessed
services and extended our reach to rural areas of Lane County. Noteworthy events this year include
participation in the Pride Festival, Oakridge Resource Fair, and Veterans Stand Down. Collaborating
with Connected Lane County, the service provider for the WIOA Youth Program, we facilitate the
transition of individuals from youth programs to adult programs, offering services at Spark Lab and
other locations.

As mentioned earlier, our two main customers are job seekers and employers. Our key services for
employers include Job Fairs, On-the-Job Training (OJT), and Rapid Response.



e Job Fairs/Hiring Events:

In September 2023, WorkSource Oregon Lane hosted a successful career fair with
over 250 job seekers and 29 employers participating.

Talent Match Events: Our upcoming event focuses on healthcare, happening
tomorrow from 10:00am — 2:00pm.

We actively assist in hosting events and recruiting job seekers for specific employers,
such as Sierra Pacific, Weyerhaeuser, and the City of Eugene.

e On-the-Job Training (OJT) Program:

Our OJT Program is designed to help employers hire individuals who may lack
certain job skills but are a good fit for the company.

We work 1:1 with both the employer and employee to develop a training plan and
provide ongoing support to ensure success and long-term retention.

Businesses, licensed in Oregon and physically located in Lane County or adjoining
counties, can participate in this program, receiving reimbursement of 50% of wages
paid to the OJT trainee, up to $5,000.

Targeted Occupations: Healthcare, manufacturing, food and beverage, and
technology.

Length of Program: Not less than 8 weeks and may not exceed 16 weeks.
Between July 1, 2023, and November 30, 2023, 26 job seckers participated in the
program, helping 22 employers offset training costs by $105,088.90.

Notably, 38% of OJT's this year are contracted with employers in Florence and
Oakridge.

e Rapid Response for Layoffs or Closures:

Since July of this year, we have assisted with at least nine layoffs or business/location
closures.

Our challenge lies in timely awareness of layoffs, and once engaged, we provide in-
person or virtual information on unemployment insurance, health care marketplace,
and guide affected workers to the WorkSource Center for re-employment and/or
training.

We offer a specialized Job Search Strategies Workshop for affected workers two to
four times a month, and in some cases, collaborate with the Oregon Employment
Department to host career fairs for those affected.

Good Jobs Challenge — Driving Prosperity Program: This collaborative initiative involves
partnership with SOWIB (Southern Oregon Workforce Investment Board), LWP, and Rogue
Workforce Partnership, with the shared goals of:

e Connecting individuals to quality employment opportunities.

e Ensuring the development of a skilled and diverse workforce.

e Enhancing education and training opportunities.

e Tacilitating the creation of high-quality, family-sustaining jobs, including those in unionized

sectors.

Aisling Truck Academy serves are the primary training provider for this program. In the previous
program year, the WIOA Program allocated over $125,000 towards tuition and support services,
benefiting 20 individuals in obtaining their Commercial Driver’s License (CDL). This program is
designed to reach underserved populations or those who may not have access to such programs:

e 45% of participants were recipients of SNAP benefits.



e 30% resided in rural areas of Lane County.

e 30% identified as BIPOC.

e 25% had previous involvement with the criminal justice system.
e The average wage for these 20 individuals is $24.43 an hour.

This year, we are recruiting and training an additional 64 individuals. At the halfway point, we have
already made significant progress, with 32 individuals either completing the program, currently in
progress, or scheduled to start in January.

Additional Highlights:

e Homelessness Response:

o Inresponse to the Governor’s Executive Order on Homelessness, our STEP team
secured $400,000 All-In-Funds for the Rapid Rehousing of 18 households.

o 83% of these households have already been successfully housed, with half of them
benefiting from support for vocational training and the attainment of industry
credentials in high-wage, high-demand occupations.

o We have received confirmation that this program will extend through June 2025.

e JOBS Program Success:

o The JOBS program funded $360,000 in tuition funding, enabling 101 individuals to
pursue industry-recognized certificates.

o Of these participants, 82 successfully completed training.

o Average wages for those completing the JOBS Program are $23.36 per hour.

Matt Sayre, Executive Director of Collaborative EDO (CEDO), Nicole Desch, Vice President of
Business & Workforce Development, and Caitlin Vargas, Vice President of Community Impact and
Partnerships presented the following overview of CEDO.

e Establishment and Purpose:

e CEDO, a 501(c)3 non-profit, was founded in April 2023 to serve as Lane County’s
collaborative economic development organization, focusing on the creation of high-
wage jobs.

e The organization achieves its goals through a range of activities, including targeted
business recruitment, entrepreneurial support, workforce development, business
expansion, regional marketing, strategic innovative projects, and the formation of
effective public/private partnerships.

e Collaboration with Lane Workforce Partnership (LWP):
e CEDO serves as LWP’s business services arm, with an annual contract for three key

responsibilities:
* Providing leadership to Lane County’s Industry Sector Partnerships (led by
Matt Sayre).

* Connecting the workforce with industry opportunities (led by Nicole Desch).
* Promoting the growth of the Entrepreneurial Ecosystem (led by Caitlin
Vargas).

10



CEDO?’s 2023 Milestones:
e April 6,2023:
o CEDO launched in response to the community’s call for a regional EDO that serves
both urban and rural areas of Lane County in a politically neutral manner.
June 2023:
o Attained 501(c)3 status in under 90 days.
e August 2023:
o CEDO Board expanded to 12 people with connections to LWP including Shaun
Hyland, Heidi Larwick, and Tiffany Cink.
e September 2023:
o Co-hosted the World-Class Industries tailgate with TAO and Oregon Bio, drawing
over 200 attendees and showcasing successful sector strategies.
e October 2023:
o Opened our first office and publicly announced three strategic priorities.
e December 2023:
o Hosted the largest gathering of startup founders, entrepreneurs, and community
supporters at the final PubTalk of the year, co-hosted with Launch Oregon on the
University of Oregon campus.

Addressing Economic Prosperity Challenges:

e Lane County faces economic challenges with a widening wage gap, impacting the region’s
quality of life, including housing affordability.

e Collaborative EDO aims to increase economic growth by focusing on targeted sectors,
identified for their higher percentage of occupations paying above the median wage in Lane
County.

e Prior to the establishment of Collaborative EDO, Lane County lacked the presence of an
Economic Development Organization (EDO) serving the entire region. This absence placed
Lane County at an economic disadvantage compared to the state and national landscape.
The consequence has been missed opportunities to access Federal and State funding,
typically directed towards regional EDOs. These missed opportunities affect both urban and
rural communities in Lane County.

CEDO?’s Mission, Vision, and Values:
e Mission:
o Accelerate inclusive economic prosperity.

e Vision:
o Grow Lane County’s targeted industries to increase the number of high-wage jobs.
e Values:

o Believe in realizing the region’s full potential through a collective impact strategy,
collaborating with our partners to increase resources, information, and opportunities.

CEDO Initiatives:
e Welcome: Targeted Industry Sector Recruitment

11



o Focuses on business recruitment, attracting high-wage employers to Lane County
and supporting their expansion (site selection, access to a talented workforce, and
curating incentive programs), including recruiting supply chain partners of existing
companies.

e Innovate: Entrepreneurial Services

o Cultivate innovation by providing resources to startup companies and building
connections across Oregon’s entrepreneurial ecosystem.

o Empower historically underrepresented founders on their entrepreneurial journey.

o Services include referrals to resources, facilitate connections to capital, and provide
training to aspiring entrepreneurs on successfully launching their businesses.

o Accomplishments since April 2023:

®  Successfully matched 51 entrepreneurs with experienced local mentors.

® Facilitated training connections for 20 women-led startups, fostering growth
and skill enhancement.

* Enabled 38 innovative founders (statewide) to access valuable funding
opportunities, fueling their entrepreneurial journeys.

®  Supported the growth of diverse ecosystem with 60% of total entrepreneurs
helped identifying as underrepresented entrepreneurs (women and
individuals who identify as an ethnic minority).

= Over 45 entrepreneurs repeatedly attend a “PubTalk”. PubTalks, an
extension of Oregon Entrepreneurs Network program, is a networking and
educational event that helps entrepreneurs access resources in a low-barrier
and personable atmosphere.

o Our pre-accelerator program serves as a valuable platform for delivering
entrepreneurship education while also providing access to mentors, networking
opportunities, and funding. Additionally, our monthly events serve as a catalyst for
aspiring entrepreneurs, offering guidance on starting a small business and creating an
environment that nurtures entrepreneurial aspirations.

e Thrive: Workforce Development & Industry Engagement
o Support existing traded sector companies (goods/services ate sold both in and
outside of Lane County) in thriving through active workforce development strategies
and industry engagement.
o Upcoming Industry Summit in spring 2024 to showcase sector strategies and
promote innovation, growth, and competitiveness in the region.
o Accomplishments:
® Tacilitated connections for more than 177 businesses, ensuring they have
access to essential resources for growth and success.
= Established connections between over 100 college students and local
employers, paving the way for potential career opportunities and valuable
professional partnerships.

This comprehensive approach positions Collaborative EDO as a key player in addressing economic
challenges and fostering growth and prosperity in Lane County.

V. CHAIR’S REPORT

e Summary of Action Items:
o Shondra Holliday mentioned that the action item summaries from the LWP Board,
Executive Board, and Lane Council meetings are available on page 7 of the board
packet.

12



VI.

e LWP Board Member Engagement in Committees/Workgroups:

@)

Two board committees are now active: the Community Engagement Committee and
the Workforce Services Operations Committee. If you are interested in serving on
one of these committees, please reach out to LWP staff. We are also in the process
of recruiting community members so if you know of individuals who might be a
good fit for one of these committees, please let us know.

The Community Engagement Committee will focus on:

©)

O O O O

Publicity/Public Awareness
Uniform Message/Branding
Outreach Strategies

Event Planning

Coalition Building

The Workforce Services Operations Committee will focus on:

@)
@)

O
©)

Accessible One-Stop Service Delivery System

Special Populations, including homeless/unhoused, individuals with disabilities,
returning citizens, and rural communities.

Talent Pipeline

Career Pathways

The first meeting of the Workforce Services Operations Committee is scheduled for next
Wednesday. The One-Stop Operator will also be an integral part of this committee, and business
representation is welcomed if you find this committee of interest.

Pages 8 and 9 of the board packet contain a summary of committees and workgroups where LWP
board members are currently engaged. If you have any changes to your listing, please contact Anne

Nestell.

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR’S REPORT

Ashley Espinoza provided a summary of recent highlights.

e DOL Critical Jobs Quality Grant Hospitality Sector, Oregon Coast:

@)

In collaboration with Southern Oregon Workforce Investment Board (SOWIB),
Northwest Oregon Works (NOW), and the Oregon Restaurant & Lodging
Association (ORLA).
Coordinating the engagement of a Sector Strategist through the hospitality industry
association, with finalization anticipated by the end of the grant’s second month. The
Sector Strategist’s key responsibilities include:

= Establishing a cross-regional support team, commencing with employer

convenings;
* Defining the scope of the Oregon coast hospitality industry;
® Facilitating industry listening sessions and conducting surveys;

13



* Undertaking a comprehensive workforce study to assess career advancement
opportunities, access to low-barrier jobs, and potential for stackable
credentials to support promotion and access to higher pay scales.

* Generating an occupational outlook career pathway report.

e WORKIing Together Conference:

o The recently held WORKing Together Conference was highly successful, reaching
its capacity with 500 attendees. The board member reception facilitated networking
opportunities among the boards, the Oregon Employment Department, and the
Higher Education Coordinating Commission. The breakout session highlighting
“Constructing a Brighter Future” received positive feedback, with survey responses
ranking it among the most engaging and exciting sessions.

o Next year, the conference will take place October 22 — 23 in Bend at the RiverHouse
Conference Center.

e Lyle Lang Retirement from LWP:

o After 27 years of service, Lyle Lang will be retiring from LWP. In honor of his
contributions, an office/partner gathering was held on December 5, during which
our conference room was named in his honor. Additionally, Lane County CTE
teachers and students from Willamette High School presented a beautiful plaque
acknowledging Mr. Lang’s contributions.

e Constructing a Brighter Future Internship (6 — 9 Months):
o Lyle Lang played a foundational role in the Constructing a Brighter Future program,
and with his retirement, efforts are underway to sustain this important work. Lane
ESD secured a grant from the Oregon Community Foundation to support the
continuation of the program. Nine applicants from Handshake, PPPM, DuckRISE,
and LCC have submitted their applications. The selection committee is currently in

the process of reviewing documents with interviews scheduled for the week of
December 18™.

e Lane County Community Collaborative:

o The Lane County Community Collaborative convenes via Zoom on the 1%
Wednesday of each month from 10:30am to Noon. With over 50 participants,
including economic workforce development, and community stakeholders, the
collaborative aims to optimize collective efforts and resources to address the diverse
needs of the community. The meetings serve as a platform for engaging discussions,
meaningful connections, and fostering a culture of collaboration, leading to
innovative solutions and empowering collective action. Key functions include
regional coordination (efforts & resources); knowledge sharing, and relationship
building. Each meeting features a “Community Spotlight” that highlights various
organizations such as Arts and Business Alliance of Eugene (ABAE), Oregon
Employment Department Economists, Springfield Chamber, University of Oregon,
and more. A comprehensive recap/report is distributed following the meeting.

e Latino a/x Leadership Group — Leadership Institute Pilot:
o The Lane County Latino a/x Leadership Workgroup established through a
collaborative effort, aims to create a stronger platform for Latino a/x leaders in the
region. In partnership with the University of Oregon School of Planning, Public

14



Policy, and Management and Plaza (Centro Latino Americano, Downtown
Languages, ad Huerto de la Familia merged into one organization called Plaza), the
Leadership Institute Pilot is led by the Capaces Leadership Institute, based in
Woodburn, Oregon. The pilot, scheduled for 2024 on January 20®, January 27",
February 3*, February 10", and February 17, will run from 9:00am to Noon each
session. Bach participant in the 10-to-15-person cohort will receive a $100 stipend
per session, covering topics such as exploring rich Latine history, self-
assessment/reflection, leadership system development, nuances of decision-making
bodies, and development of essential skills in communication to diverse audiences.

e Strategic Planning Process:
Ms. Espinoza presented a summary of the strategic planning process timeline and reported
on the progress achieved to date. Our current focus involves constructing an “operational
bridge” for the LWP team, outlining specific tactics, and assigning ownership. The final draft
of the strategic plan will be submitted to the board for final approval. This strategic plan
serves as the foundation for the local plan, which, following a 30-day public comment
period, will be presented to the state board in March. Upon completion of the State’s
approval process, we anticipate receiving our final approval notice at the beginning of July.
Subsequently, the Final Approved Plan, incorporating any necessary changes, will be brought
back to this board. The final local plan will then be published on our website.

e Upcoming Events:
o LWP office will be closed from December 25" — January 2™
o Bugene State of the City Address on January 8"
o Celebration of Business Event hosted by the Eugene Chamber of Commerce on
January 30™.

e 2023 Workforce Champion Award Recipient:

o Heidi Larwick has been named as L.ane Workforce Partnership’s 2023 Workforce
Champion. In the world of challenging and rewarding work, where each day is a
testament to the importance of engaged and dedicated partners, we are thrilled to
shine a spotlight on Ms. Larwick.

VII. BOARD MEMBER UPDATES

e Bailey McEuen (Homes for Good): We currently have new projects in development which
aim to contribute affordable housing to the community. About a year ago, we assumed
responsibility for behavioral services at our permanent supportive housing communities,
presenting a substantial change and challenge for us. Recently we have secured funding to
help stabilize these communities.

e Tony Scurto (Lane ESD): The Special Education Department is working to establish an all-
inclusive summer camp tailored for students with life skills disabilities. Last Saturday, we
successfully organized what we believe to be the first unified robotics tournament. Parents

loved it and the kids had an absolute blast.

15



David Heavirland (US Dept. of Veteran Affairs): This year has seen substantial changes,
including the arrival of a new Medical Center Director, a new Director for our Compensated
Vocational Rehabilitation Program, and a new Program Supervisor for our homeless
program. Mr. Heavirland emphasized the ongoing need to support homeless veterans
seeking employment.

Shondra Holliday (Lane County Medical Society): This year, our foundation has branched
off into its own entity with its own board. This move enables us to develop programs
supporting physicians in areas such as crisis intervention and general wellness. Our goal is to
enhance the support for physicians, ultimately benefiting the community. Additionally,
efforts are underway to establish stronger connections with rural areas.

Jeff Graham (Danone/So Delicious): Acknowledging the challenges of the past year, it has
also presented opportunities. From a business perspective, we faced overproduction, leading
to unintended shutdowns for a couple of weeks. Mr. Graham looks forward to developing
relationships with board members. In addition, Danone/So Delicious will be launching a
national recruiting campaign and Mr. Graham is interested in exploring the connections
between this campaign and the initiatives of the Community Engagement Committee.

Courtney Griesel (Sierra Pacific Industries): Our team organized a hiring event this week at
the WorkSource Center, resulting in approximately 27 walk-ins and 15 interviews conducted.
Currently, the two operations in Lane County are just under 20 FTE short of being fully
staffed. We are experiencing out-migration in the workforce and the traditional
compensation methods are no longer as effective. This situation is having us consider
populations for hiring that we might not have previously seen as viable candidates. We have
started working through what that means for our company. Recently, we toured one of the
Jackson County facilities with Steve Yamamori to explore opportunities for hiring a
workforce facing challenges in other aspects of life, where a supportive work environment
may contribute to their success. Additionally, we have had the privilege of hosting tours for
high school students in Lane County over this month and last, which has been fantastic. We
are thankful for the collaboration we have had with the welding faculty and the
machining/CNC programs at LLane Community College. The LCC staff have been
responsive and have been collaborating with us on hiring, flexing schedules, etc. Despite the
challenges of a tough economy, there are great things happening.

Grant Matthews (Lane Community College): If it has been a while since you visited the LCC
campus, we invite you to join us. Exciting developments are underway with two new
buildings — the Health Professions building looks like a building now and the Industry and
Trades Education Center building is beginning to take shape. These projects are on track for
completion in the upcoming spring and fall, respectively. We are excited to shift our focus
towards discussing specific programming and workforce development opportunities with
these new buildings. For those interested in touring the new facilities, arrangements can be
made through Grant. For those interested or with family and friends who might be
interested, applications are now open for our new Bachelor of Applied Science in Business
Degree program — the first of its kind in the area. This program, designed in collaboration
with local businesses, emphasizes applied learning and prepares individuals for roles in
business leadership and management. Additionally, we are in the process of working with the
state to establish a Bachelor of Nursing Degree. The state is currently finalizing their
administrative rules. In our Career Pathways Program which works closely with the Oregon
Employment Department, WorkSource Center, and other agencies, we are actively training a
new career coach to serve the Cottage Grove area.

16



VIII.

IX.

Stan Pickett (Delta Sand and Gravel): Thanked LLane Community College for their new
buildings, as they have kept many of the Delta team members busy. A special thanks to Lyle
Lang for his dedicated work within the Construction-Aggregate Sector, guiding our efforts
for several years. During Mr. Lang’s retirement party, I had the chance to connect with Bob
Fittin from Catholic Community Services and it looks like there is an opportunity for
training refugee workers as CDL drivers. It is always great to make these types of
connections.

Julie Davidson (Oregon Employment Department): Ms. Davidson mentioned that OED
also partners with Catholic Community Services and shared a recent success story involving
a refugee. She also brought attention to a significant development in Unemployment
Insurance, which will be undergoing a major modernization project. The rollout is scheduled
for March 4®, with a one-week shutdown of the system preceding it. During this period,
claimants will not be able to file new claims. Although public information will be shared
beforehand, the WorkSource Centers, known to many as the face of “Unemployment
Insurance,” will be prepared to assist individuals. Unemployment is prepared to backdate
claims, ensuring that individuals do not lose any weeks of benefits. Workforce Operations, in
partnership with the centers, is set to undergo the modernization of the labor exchange
system in 2024, aiming for a go-live date in 2025. The current system was developed in 2004
as an in-house project. Ms. Davidson provided an update on the Impact of Able-Bodied
Adults without Dependents. Lane County was granted a waiver starting January 1%, 2024,
which alleviates the previous mandate requiring individuals to actively seek work (80 hours a
month) in order to receive monthly SNAP benefits.

Holly Powell (Vocational Rehabilitation): Vocational Rehabilitation has undergone
significant changes this past year, with a primary focus on revisiting our approach to youth
services. While traditionally our focus has centered on the junior and senior years of high
school, we can serve youth as young as 14 so we are extending our reach. The overarching
goal is to develop earlier engagement and shift our perspective to focus on long-term
objectives rather than short-term goals. Additionally, we are actively looking to streamline
our processes as they are a bit tedious and long. Our aim is to expedite engagement to
achieve a higher rate of success.

OTHER BUSINESS

No other business was noted.

ADJOURNMENT

Ms. Holliday adjourned the meeting.

17



LOCAL STRATEGIC PLAN
July 1, 2024 — June 30, 2028

BACKGROUND

Lane Workforce Partnership, the local Workforce Development Board for Lane County’s
workforce investment system is required by the US Department of Labor (USDOL) to submit a
four-year Plan for Title 1 of the Workforce Innovation and Opportunity Act of 2014.

As required, the draft plan was posted for a 30-day public comment period. There were no
comments received during the public comment period, which closed on February 21, 2023. The
final plan requires Workforce Development Board approval. Final approved plans are due to the
state Workforce and Talent Development Board for review and approval by March 18, 2024.

DISCUSSION

The Plan contains operational and compliance plans for services that are delivered in an
integrated manner at WorkSource Lane locations and through Lane Workforce Partnership youth
services providers. It reflects Oregon’s workforce services integration initiative that involves
partner agencies and encompasses policy direction from the Lane Workforce Partnership’s Board
of Directors, the Governor, and the Oregon Workforce and Talent Development Board.

Lane Workforce Partnership held six public forum focus group sessions to solicit input into the
development of the plan from stakeholders across Lane County. Three sessions were held in
rural communities, two in metro communities, and one with youth/young adults. In addition, a
strategic planning retreat was held with the Workforce Development Board members.

See the attached plan for review.

RECOMMENDATION

To approve the Lane Workforce Partnership Local Plan for July 1, 2024 — June 30, 2028. The
plan will be submitted to the Oregon Workforce and Talent Development Board for review and
approval by the due date of March 18, 2024.

A copy of the final approved plan will be posted on the Lane Workforce Partnership’s website,
www.laneworkforce.org under Reports. Printed copies will also be available at the administrative
office located at 1401 Willamette Street, Second Floor, Eugene.

18



LANE WORKFORCE

PARTNERSMHIP

VAV

Workforce Innovation and Opportunity Act
Local Plan

Lane County

Submitted by

Lane Workforce Partnership

July 1, 2024 — June 30, 2028

19



Strategic Portion

Table of Contents

Section

Section 1: Vision and Leadership Strategic Vision and Goals 3
High Performing Board 8
Section 2: Data and Analysis Economic and Workforce Analysis 11
Priority Populations and Communities 18
Section 3: Alignment and Improvement | Strategic Partnerships and Alignment 20
Continuous Improvement 31
Operational Portion Section Page
Section 4: Services and Activities Available Workforce Development Activities 36
WorkSource Oregon 45
Physical and Programmatic Accessibility 47
Section 5: Compliance Local Board 50
Required Elements 51




Strategic Portion

Section 1: Vision and Leadership

It is expected that Section 1 responses will be greatly influenced by the members of the local workforce
development board and other community stakeholders. Further, it is expected that there will be strong
alignment with the current WTDB Strategic Plan and Joint Priority Setting.

Please answer the questions in Section 1 in eight (8) pages or less. Provide a response for all items identified.
Reports and/or expanded analysis can be included as links and/or attachments.

Strategic Vision and Goals

1.1 20 CFR 679.560(a)(5): Strategic Vision and Goals

A. Provide the local board’s strategic vision and goals for its local workforce system;
B. Describe how the local board’s strategic vision and goals:
e Support economic growth and economic self-sufficiency (as defined) in the local area;
e Prepare an educated and skilled workforce for work or to attain employment including youth and
individuals with barriers to employment in the local area; and
e Provide performance accountability in the local area including WIOA primary indicators of
performance.

1.1A.

Lane Workforce Partnership’s mission is to “Meet the workforce needs of employers and individuals through
partnerships and innovation.” Our vision for the region is “Lane County will have a trained workforce and
individuals will have the knowledge and skills for career success.”

Lane Workforce Development Board’s Strategic Plan will be provisionally approved on 2/22/24 and final
adoption of the Strategic Plan may require modifications to the Local Plan. The Workforce Board’s Provisional
Strategic Plan for 2024 — 2028 goals are:
1) Increase awareness and use of the workforce system.
2) Embrace accountability to workers and business through a culture of transparency.
3) Create strategic alignment and innovative collaboration among public & private partners and
businesses.
4) Advance equitable prosperity through an inclusive workforce, overcoming barriers to workforce
participation.
1.1 B.
Why these goals are important to Lane County:
Goal 1 - Increase awareness and use of the workforce system: Increased awareness and participation optimize
use of the system and its partners effectiveness as a crucial resource for responsive and positive outcomes in
education, employment, and economic advancement.

21



Goal 2 - Embrace accountability to workers and business through a culture of transparency: Fostering a culture
of transparency and continuous improvement promotes confidence, drives organizational capacity, and
advances an environment that values learning and excellence, resulting in meaningful and sustainable results.
Goal 3 - Create strategic alignment and innovative collaboration among public and private partners and
businesses: Harnessing collective strength and available resources better meets pragmatic workforce needs and
is a strategic enabler to address complex challenges, expose new opportunities, enhance efficiency, and create
lasting impacts.

Goal 4 - Advance equitable prosperity through an inclusive workforce, overcoming barriers to workforce
participation: Prioritizing workforce equity unlocks opportunities and reveals diverse talents, educating an
innovative, dynamic workforce for long lasting sustenance for individuals, businesses, and community.

As evidenced throughout Lane Workforce Partnership’s Local Plan, the Local Board’s Strategic Plan goals and
objectives are designed to support the economic growth and self-sufficiency of Lane County residents. This will
be accomplished by increasing access to all communities to support the development of a prepared, educated,
and skilled workforce. The goals are designed to remove access barriers, increase alignment of the public
workforce service delivery system, support employment in good jobs that pay family sustaining wages, and
continuously improve the impact of our investments in Lane County. The Local Workforce Development Board
strives to be a high-performing local area and is dedicated to performance accountability and transparency.

The board, local leaders, and community members believe that the goals and strategies identified in the
strategic plan will assist our local area in achieving the negotiated federal performance measures. The local
goals were designed in alignment with the challenges described by community partners. The alignment, and the
continued commitment to work collaboratively, has demonstrated positive impacts and benefits to all
populations served. Lane Workforce Partnership (LWP) has consistently demonstrated exceptional federal
performance achievement through proper contract management, program design, and collaborative service
delivery. In times when challenges are faced in meeting negotiated performance on one of the core measures,
LWP develops and deploys a plan of action for improvement.

WIOA is designed to help jobseekers access employment, education, training, and support services to succeed in
the labor market and to match employers with the skilled workers they need to compete in the global economy.
Lane Workforce Partnership focuses on operational goals centered on skill development and employment,
aiming to prepare individuals for competitive opportunities in high-demand occupations within Lane County.

Business services staff continuously work with the business community to remain aware of evolving needs. In
2019, the Regional Business Services Team was formed to leverage this collective knowledge, reduce duplication
in business services, and increase efficiency. These efforts are designed to help all partners reach the core
accountability measures as set forth in WIOA.

WorkSource Oregon Lane is the hub for all workforce activities (both businesses and jobseekers), which provides
a more cohesive approach to economic stability in Lane County. It is understood that to grow economic
stability, there needs to be an inclusive, collective approach with common goals and co-reporting of data. This
allows agencies to accomplish our collective and individual goals. As demonstrated in the co-enrollment efforts
at the WorkSource center, when everyone works together, performance measures are met and exceeded.

22



1.2 WTDB 2023-2024 Strategic Plan Alignment (Oregon Requirement)

Describe how the local board’s vision and goals align with and/or supports the vision, mission, and
imperatives of the Oregon Workforce and Talent Development Board (WTDB):

The WTDB approved their 2023-2024 Strategic Plan in March 2023.

Vision
Equitable Prosperity for All Oregonians

Mission
Advance Oregon through education, training, jobs and careers by empowering people and employers.

Imperatives
e Aninclusive workforce system that advances equitable prosperity.

e C(Clear understanding of and improved use and impact of the workforce system.

e The WTDB is embraced by the Governor as an accountable convener, empowered facilitator and
informed advisor.

e Strategic and close alighnment between education, economic development, and workforce
development, including public and private partners.

1.2

A safe, healthy, and thriving economy is important to the leaders in Lane County. The Lane Workforce
Partnership strategic plan aligns with this overarching vision. To that end, each of the goals identified by LWP
aim to support the Oregon Workforce and Talent Development Board’s (WTDB) vision and mission. WTDB's
vision, “Equitable Prosperity for All Oregonians” is supported by each of LWP’s goals.

Lane Workforce Partnership convened stakeholders across Lane County to inform the development of their
2024 - 2028 Strategic Plan with the goal of identifying items that are working well in our communities as well as
workforce challenges in each region. Focus group sessions were held in three rural communities and two urban
communities. The Workforce Board then used the information provided by the community to identify the
pressing challenges in our region, which informed the Board’s priority focus areas for the coming years.

As evidenced below, there is close alighment between the WTDB’s imperatives and LWP’s Goals and Objectives
for the 2024 — 2028 period.

WTDB Imperative 1:
“An inclusive workforce system that advances equitable prosperity” mirrors LWP Goal to “Advance equitable
prosperity through an inclusive workforce, overcoming barriers to workforce participation.”

In Lane County, despite the growing diversity of the workforce, significant barriers to equal employment and
wage disparities exist by race and ethnicity. Non-Hispanic white workers make up larger than average parts of
the workforce in the top eight (8) industries that pay the highest average monthly wages, while workers of color
are more represented in four (4) of the six (6) lowest paid industries in Lane County (data from the U.S. Census
Bureau’s Quarterly Workforce Indicators). Those residing in rural communities experience the most difficulties

23


https://www.oregon.gov/workforceboard/about/Documents/Planning%20and%20Assessments/WTDB%20Strategic%20Plan/2023-24%20WTDB%20Strategic%20Plan%20-%20FINAL.pdf

in accessing services as well as jobs that pay well and therefore make up a larger percentage of the overall
population living at or below the federal poverty level.

To address these pressing challenges, LWP’s objectives are to:
1) Increase diverse access and participation in all public workforce systems through targeted inclusivity

initiatives. and
2) Operationalize and influence the utilization of the equity lens on 100% of LWP investments.

WTDB Imperatives 2 and 4:

“Clear understanding of and improved use and impact of the workforce system” and “Strategic and close
alignment between education, economic development, and workforce development, including public and
private partners” align with LWP goals to “Increase awareness and use of the workforce system” and “Create
strategic alignment and innovative collaboration among public & private partners and business.”

The challenges we face, which lead to these two priority focus areas, are a result of critical workforce
development legislation that has not been reauthorized by Congress, specifically the Trade Act and the
Workforce Innovation and Opportunity Act programs; antiquated wage and hour regulations that create barriers
to flexible workplace scheduling that would meet the needs of employees as well as the business needs of
employers; and age restrictions which place barriers to training and employment of youth and young adults.
Couple these regulatory challenges with the fact that the Workforce Service Delivery System and all it has to
offer to the community is not well known amongst both businesses and job seekers.

LWP’s objectives to accomplish these goals are to:
Increase awareness and use of the workforce system objectives:

1) Create awareness of workforce system services
2) Simplify navigation of the workforce system; reducing barriers to access and use
3) Create more robust youth career pathway pipeline awareness across all sectors

Create strategic alignment and innovative collaboration among public & private partners and businesses
objectives:

1) Influence the regulatory environment to align with the 21 century workforce.

2) Adopt a list of essential employability skills (EES), define the skill, and determine how attainment is
measured.

3) Incorporate the Voice of Business in the workforce development conversation.

LWP’s goal to “Embrace accountability to workers and business through a culture of transparency” creates
alignment across each of the WTDB’s imperatives, as well as supporting a transparent workforce system in Lane
County.

In listening sessions at the local level, as well as clearly hearing what Oregon’s legislators are asking of the
system, it is apparent there is a perception that the workforce service delivery system does not meet

24



expectations. Performance accountability and transparency needs to be communicated clearly and broadly.
The workforce service delivery system should communicate its collective stories, highlighting the high quality of
work and the positive impact on the communities it serves.

To address this, the objectives for LWP’s goal “Embrace accountability to workers and business through a
culture of transparency” are:

1) Transform the WorkSource Oregon service delivery to fit expected future needs of job seekers and
employers to adjust to trends and technological changes.
2) Prepare for data alignment for shared state/local performance score cards.

1.3 Joint Priority Setting (Oregon Requirement)

Describe how the local board’s goals, strategies, programs, and projects align with and will contribute to
achieving the priorities established in September 2023 through Joint Priority Setting:

e Concretely improve the connection between employers and the workforce system consistent with
economic development priorities.

e Concretely deepen the integration of K-12 education in the entire workforce system.

e Improve workforce system impact by investing new and existing targeted resources that support
work-based learning.

e Advance equity by identifying and closing the largest gaps in participant access to education, training,
and job placement services.

e Complete necessary steps to align data in the WSO System to result in shared state and local
performance reports/scorecards.

13
Lane Workforce Partnership’s operations align with each of WTDB joint priorities established in September 2023
as follows:

Concretely improve the connection between employers and the workforce system consistent with economic
development priorities is accomplished through the robust Industry Sector Partnerships in Lane County. LWP
launched the first industry sector partnership in 2015 in response to the needs of the tech industry. The
collaborative achievements of this partnership were so successful that LWP has since replicated the model for
four additional Industry Sector Partnerships and is poised to launch two more.

Concretely deepen the integration of K-12 education in the entire workforce system: As demonstrated in the
section on youth workforce services below, LWP has meaningful connections to K-12 education. LWP’s flagship
project, “Constructing a Brighter Future” connects K-12 Career Technical Education (CTE) with social solutions
addressing homelessness in Lane County. (additional information below)

Improve workforce system impact by investing in new and existing targeted resources that support work-based
learning: For years, LWP has benefited from highly successful On-the-Job Training and Youth/Young Adult Work
Experience programs. In partnership with businesses across the county, these work-based learning
opportunities have supported hundreds of adults and youth in learning skills and gaining employment. This past
year, LWP expanded work-based learning through the launch of Customized Training Solutions for Businesses.

25



Under Customized Training Solutions for Businesses, LWP encourages public/private partnerships that support
training of marginalized populations while at work coupled with social supports that provide stability outside of
the workplace.

Advance equity by identifying and closing the largest gaps in participant access to education, training, and job
placement services: Implemented in 2017, LWPs equity lens is based on the notion that everyone has the
opportunity to obtain quality, living wage employment or be placed in employment-related training regardless
of their national origin, race, gender, sexual orientation, disability, first language, or other distinguishing
characteristics. Different approaches to delivery of workforce services may be necessary in order for each
customer to achieve success in training or employment.

Complete necessary steps to align data in the WSO System to result in shared state and local performance
reports/scorecards: LWP publishes performance reports semiannually, providing updates at both the mid-point
and year-end. These reports are inclusive of data from all partners providing services in the WorkSource
Oregon Lane service delivery system. While the data is robust, LWP is seeking ways in which it can be more
meaningful and aligned to state-wide performance scorecards.

High Performing Board

1.4 20 CFR 679.560(b)(17): High Performing Board

Describe the local board’s goals, strategies, programs, and projects as they apply to becoming or remaining a
high performing board consistent with the two resources below:

1. InBuilding a High-Performing State Workforce Board: A Framework and Strategies for States, the National
Governor’s Association describes a high-performing state workforce board as one that provides
leadership to the entire education and workforce system to create sustainable change including three key
roles:

a. Communicate the Vision for the workforce system;
b. Model and manage Strategic Partnerships that achieve the vision; and
c. Use data and accountability systems to Keep the System Accountable to the vision.
These are not exclusive to state workforce boards.
2. In A Call to Action for Workforce Development Boards, the United States Department of Labor outlines
four strategic roles that all high-performing boards will play:
Strategist: Understanding trends, setting the collective vision.
b. Convener: Bring partners together, align services and vision.
c. Manager: Design and manage customer-centered service delivery.
d. Optimizer: Use data to drive decisions, continuous improvement.

Q

14

Lane Workforce Partnership is highly engaged in decisions impacting workforce development in the region. The
board members participate in a variety of activities that guide the direction for which they intend staff to
proceed. The full board invests time in working together on the goals and strategies of the strategic plan. It is
the board’s vision that decisions are driven by data and are relevant to the current economic conditions in Lane
County. The board intends to drive the success of Lane Workforce Partnership and its funded service providers
through strategic investments to build the skills needed by industries that are economic drivers in the local area.

26


https://www.nga.org/wp-content/uploads/2018/07/NGAHighPerformingStateWorkforceBoard.pdf

During Program Year 23/24, Lane Workforce Partnership hired the Center for Workforce Excellence
International to conduct training on the strategic functions of a high-performing board. All current Workforce
Board members were scheduled to attend the training. The training elements covered:

Workforce Development Board Member Composition
Election of Board Chair/Officers

Maintaining Standing Committees

Local Plan Development

Workforce Research and Regional Labor Market Analysis
Convene, Broker and Leverage Partnerships

Employer Engagement

Career Pathways Development

Proven and Promising Practices

Technology (accessibility and effectiveness)

Program Oversight (investment and programmatic outcomes)
Negotiations of Local Performance Accountability Measures
Selection of Operators & Providers

Coordination with Education Providers

Budget & Administration

Accessibility for Individuals with Disabilities

As a result of the training, the Workforce Development Board formed two standing committees:

Workforce Services Operations Committee
Community Engagement Committee

As demonstrated by their actions, Lane Workforce Development Board member’s engagement exemplifies the
characteristics of a high-performing workforce board:

As strategists, the Lane Workforce Development Board:

o works with Industry Sector Partnerships to identify industry trends and make informed
decisions about investments.

o Collects, reviews, analyzes, and makes public information on the performance of the workforce
service delivery system in Lane County through semi-annual reports.

As a convener, the Lane Workforce Development Board staff:

o Convenes the Local Leadership Team, whose members include each of the mandatory WIOA
partner programs.

o Conducts the Community Collaborative monthly meeting. Lane County Community
Collaborative membership includes over 50 partners from education, economic development,
businesses, industry sector strategists, workforce development, and community-based
organizations.

o Works with the One-Stop Operator to facilitate the Regional Business Services Team monthly
meeting.

o Works with the Board’s Business Services provider to convene the Industry Sector Strategist’s
Lead meetings.

o Convenes two committees of the Workforce Board whose members include board members
and community stakeholders.

o Held multiple community focus group meetings in the development of the 2024 — 2028
Strategic Plan.

As the manager of the local workforce service delivery system, the newly formed Workforce Services

27



Operations Committee will oversee the implementation of the WorkSource Oregon Standards in Lane’s
WorkSource Centers as well as a system of continuous process improvement.

e As evidenced by the Workforce Board’s reports, the local board is data driven and focused on
continuous improvement. The board’s focus of optimization of the local system is operationalized
through the review and analysis of:

o Mid-Year Workforce System Performance Report

o Year-End Workforce System Performance Report

o State of the Workforce Report: Every two years, LWP prepares a comprehensive “State of the
Workforce” report. Produced in English and Spanish, this report provides current labor market
information specific to economic trends in Lane County. Current labor market intelligence is
provided by a regional economist. An analysis and report on LWP-funded employment and
training programs is presented in the report. The report is used by LWP to make decisions
regarding the efficiency of current investments and where the board is getting a return on
those investments, which drive decisions regarding future investments.

Key Definition

Self-Sufficiency: This refers to the The Self-Sufficiency Standard for Oregon (current version). This measure is

aspirational for Oregon and describes how much income families of various sizes and compositions need to
make ends meet without public or private assistance in each county in Oregon. The Self-Sufficiency Standard is a
measure of income adequacy that is based on the costs of basic needs for working families: housing, child care,
food, health care, transportation, and miscellaneous items, as well as the cost of taxes and the impact of tax
credits. This varies by family type.

28


https://www.oregon.gov/workforceboard/data-and-reports/Documents/The-Self-Sufficiency-Standard-For-Oregon-2021.pdf

Section 2: Data and Analysis

It is expected that Section 2 include both data and relevant analysis for each local area. Further, it is expected
that Questions 2.1 — 2.3 will be a collaborative effort between the local workforce development board and the
Oregon Employment Department’s regional economist and workforce analyst stationed in each local area.

Please answer the questions in Section 2 in eight (8) pages or less. Provide a response for all items identified.
Please limit the inclusion of tables and charts to those that are critical to your analysis. Reports and/or expanded

analysis can be included as links and/or attachments.

Economic and Workforce Analysis

2.1 20 CFR 679.560(a)(1)(i): Economic Analysis — Part 1 Overall

Provide an analysis of the economic conditions in the local area.

2.1

The economy in Lane County has diversified over the past three decades from one that was largely dependent
upon the wood products industry to one that is high-tech, forward thinking, environmentally conscious, and
diverse. Food product manufacturers have found niches in craft beer and organic products; the tech sector has
added firms; the county has grown into a regional health care hub; the bioscience sector is expanding; and state
and federal government agencies (including the University of Oregon) have provided stability.

In early 2020, Lane County’s economy was in the midst of the longest expansion in recent history, adding 23,600
jobs (growth of 17 percent) from September 2010 through February 2020.

The growth ended abruptly in March 2020, when the COVID-19 pandemic reached Oregon. Due to people
staying home and restrictions on activities with close contact to avoid spreading the virus, economic activity
slowed significantly. In Lane County, small job losses experienced in March became major job losses in April.
Between February and April, Lane County lost about 26,100 jobs — a drop of 16 percent — while the
unemployment rate increased from a record low of 3.5 percent to a record high of 14.0 percent.

All major sectors lost jobs due to the COVID-19 pandemic. The first and most restrictive measures were placed
on restaurants and bars, severely impacting the leisure and hospitality industry. The sector lost 8,900 jobs, or
slightly more than half of all jobs in the industry. Other service industries, including personal services like hair
stylists and gyms, dropped about 20 percent. Health care and social services dropped 10 percent, largely from
closures of doctor’s and dentist’s offices. The goods producing industries of construction and durable goods
manufacturing were least affected by COVID-19 restrictions, losing about 5 percent each. Food and beverage
stores actually increased employment, adding about 2 percent as additional staff for grocery pick-up services
needed to be hired.

Since the depth of the COVID-19 recession in April of 2020, Lane County has experienced rapid employment
growth. Seasonally adjusted data show Lane County had regained 23,100 jobs by January 2023, or about 89% of
the jobs lost during the recession. Since January 2023, however, job growth has slowed. Estimates show that
between February and September of 2023 employment varied month to month between 162,000 and 163,000
payroll jobs.

29



All industry sectors added jobs after the COVID-19 recession. Many have surpassed their prerecession levels. As
of February 2023, not seasonally adjusted data show these include financial activities (600), manufacturing (500)
and construction (400). However,
Projected Job Openings In Lane County's Taget Sectors, 2020 - 2030 many industries have yet to reach
mGrowth mExits = Transfers their pre-pandemic peak including
| health care and social assistance (-
Health Care * 10,414 1,600), professional and business
services (-900) and local education

(-900), which includes the

Construction- Aggregate . .
Unlver5|ty of Oregon.

904

5,161

|

Wood Products
102

3,750

[

Like national trends, employment
growth combined with a high level
of retirements has caused a tight
labor market. Lane County’s
unemployment rate has dropped
back down to near record lows. As

Food apd Beverage 2,710

610

Tech
780

2,103

[

Transportation/- 1,556 of September 2023, the seasonally
602 adjusted unemployment rate was
-5,000 0 5,000 10,000 15,000 20,000 25,000 3,7%,

Since the 1970s, Lane County has experienced a widening wage gap with the U.S. and the rest of Oregon. By
2022, annual average wages in Lane County were 19% lower than the rest of the state. An industry mix made up
of lower-paying industries compared to the Portland area explains some of the wage gap between Lane County
and the rest of the state. The University of Oregon provides a ready supply of new graduates to fill entry-level
professional positions, which contributes to keeping wages low for those occupations due to high competition.
Additionally, quality of life factors can cause workers to accept a lower wage to continue living in a desirable
area. In Lane County, such factors include less congestion than major metropolitan areas and proximity to
outdoor recreation.

Housing costs are lower in Lane County than other areas of Oregon and the west coast, but lower wages make
affordability an issue. It’s estimated that in 2022 it would take 6.7 years of median income to purchase a home
in Lane County compared to 5.8 in the Portland area and 4.7 in the United States.

2.2 20 CFR 679.560(a)(1)(i): Economic Analysis — Part 2 In-Demand Industries

Describe existing and emerging in-demand industry sectors and occupations in the local area.

2.2

In Lane County, spearheaded by Lane Workforce Partnership (LWP), we have strong industry partnerships built
within our business community. These industry partners work in alignment to help the workforce system build a
strong workforce based on labor market needs. In Lane County, the identified industry sectors are Bioscience,
Construction-Aggregate, Creatives, Food and Beverage, Technology, Transportation, and Wood Products. LWP is
committed to working with business, industry, and community partners to solve workforce challenges and other

30



competitive needs. These target industries not only have average to above average wages for Lane County, but
they have a large number of forecasted openings as well. Roughly 36 percent of Lane County’s high-wage, high-
demand jobs in 2020 were in targeted sectors, the largest being health care, construction, and technology.
These jobs include software developers and other computer occupations, registered nurses, medical assistants,
carpenters, electricians, and heavy truck drivers.

The industries adding the most jobs between the depth of the pandemic recession in April 2020 and April 2023
are also some of the largest. Leisure hospitality, one of the hardest hit during the COVID-19 recession, added
8.300 jobs. Other industries adding a large number of jobs since the recession include professional and business
services (1,600), manufacturing (1,400) and health care and social assistance (1,200) and local education (1,100).

Going forward, projections from the Oregon Employment Department for the 2021 - 2031 period show that
Lane County employment is expected to grow 12%. The industry adding the most jobs is leisure and hospitality
(4,800, 32%) mostly due to recovery from the pandemic recession. Second is health care and social assistance
(4,600, 17%) due to an aging and growing population. Trade, transportation, and utilities is a large industry
sector that is projected to grow by 2,500 jobs (9%) due to a recovery from the COVID-19 recession in retail trade
and demand for transportation services as more people shop online and need products delivered.

In addition to growth openings all industries provide opportunity through replacement openings. Replacement
openings are created in two ways. First, through exits when someone leaves the labor force, largely due to
retirement. And secondly, through transfers, when someone stays in the labor force and shifts to a different
occupation, often through advancement. Some slow growing industries such as wood products have an older
workforce and provide opportunity through replacement openings.

In general, in-demand occupations are related to growing industries. Vacancy data from the Oregon
Employment Department show that in 2022 many of the most in-demand occupations are in health care and
restaurants including personal care aides, nursing assistants, registered nurses, cooks, and food preparation
workers. Construction workers like laborers and carpenters are well represented. Truck drivers are needed
across industries and have a high level of vacancies.

The 2021 — 2031 projections show that, at the detailed occupational level, the occupations with the most
openings largely have lower educational requirements and lower pay. Fast food workers, home health and
personal care aids, educational instruction and library workers, registered nurses, and waiters and waitresses
are the five occupations with the most job openings. Out of the top 15 occupations adding the most job
openings, registered nurses, general and operations managers, and software developers are the exception as
high demand occupations with relatively high wages.

2.3 20 CFR 679.560(a)(1)(ii): Employment Needs of Employers

Describe employment needs of employers in the local area in existing and emerging in-demand industry
sectors occupations described in 2.1.B.

23
Help Wanted Online (HWOL) data provided by Lightcast for January through September 2023 showed more than

33,000 unique postings. While not every job is posted online, this data represents many of the largest
occupations in our area with constant needs, which offer vastly different wages at different training levels.

31



Registered nurses were the most advertised occupation, with retail sales workers and their supervisors,
customer service representatives and wholesale and manufacturing sales representatives completing the top 5.
Jobs with high volume of advertisements online tended to fit into one of two categories: leisure and hospitality
roles that are struggling to replace workers lost in the pandemic recession, or skilled roles in high-growth
industries such as construction or healthcare.

Evidence from the Oregon Employment Department’s quarterly Job Vacancy Survey also suggests a similar
finding with roles such as personal care aides and construction laborers showing large numbers of vacancies
throughout the year.

Ten-year job projections (2021-2031) show broad demand for most occupation types. The occupations with the
most openings —accounting for growth in a field as well as openings due to replacements such as retirement —
tend to show entry-level occupations in the largest industries, especially those with high turnover such as food
prep and retail. However, certain specialized but broad-based occupations such as general managers, heavy truck
drivers, and registered nurses make the list as well.

The occupations that are growing the fastest in the 10-year time horizon tend towards specialized and emerging
careers. Nurse practitioners and physician assistants in the medical field and information security analysts in a
variety of fields are examples. The other category of fastest-growing jobs are occupations that were severely
impacted by COVID control measures, such as cooks and counter workers.

More specific workforce needs emerge in work within targeted sectors.

Wood product manufacturing, food and beverage, and construction-aggregate require workers who know how
to operate specialized machinery and equipment within each field, but also generally skilled workers such as
welders, industrial mechanics, forklift operators and shipping and receiving clerks. Many of the most difficult to
fill positions for these industry groupings are for general labor, such as construction laborers, manufacturing
sales representatives, truck drivers, and material movers, which may need short range specific training. There are
also several hard to fill specialized roles, such as carpenters, plumbers, and HVAC installers.

Because of the recent growth trends, and the size of the industry, health care has a tremendous number of roles
that are difficult to fill. Personal care aides and nursing assistants are the two positions with the highest number
of difficult to fill vacancies in Lane County, which represent the broad base of a growing industry. Specific medical
roles requiring longer training, such as RNs, licensed practical nurses, and massage therapists also had many
vacancies.

Some overlap exists with the bioscience industry and the previous two categories, such as general maintenance
and manufacturing workers. As a locally emerging industry, specialized occupations with in-demand skills are
likely to grow rapidly, including life science, health information, forensic science, and biological technicians.

Technology and creative workers in the Lane County economy represent regional strengths in smaller economic
subsectors or spread throughout all industries. Data scientists, operation research analysts, information security
analysts and software developers are all high-growth occupations that require new skills and training. Creative
careers such as web developers, several varieties of drafters, landscape architects, interior designers, and art
directors are all projected to have above average growth in the next ten years.

32



2.4 20 CFR 679.560(a)(2): Knowledge and Skill Requirements

A. Provide an analysis of the knowledge and skills needed to meet the employment needs of the employers
in the local area; and

B. Describe specific knowledge and skill requirements needed to meet the employment needs of the
employers in in-demand industry sectors and occupations.

2.4 A.
According to Lightcast data, common skills sought by employers in online ads include a number of soft skills and

job readiness competencies. Communications, customer service, management, sales, and orientation to details
were the top 5 most requested skills.

The most requested specialized skills were merchandising, nursing, auditing, accounting, and marketing. Aside
from a valid driver’s license, the top requested qualifications were Basic Life Support Certification, Registered
Nurse (RN), CPR Certification, Food Handler's Card, and First Aid Certification.

Several basic skills are tied to the largest occupations, such as RNs. However, basic soft skills are in demand
across the workforce, and several years of tight labor markets make it more important for job seekers to make
the best use of basic skills to obtain employment and meet the needs of employers.

High-wage and high-demand occupations are available across all education levels in Lane County. For many
occupations that have typical entry level education at the associate degree level or less, career-specific training
or higher educational attainment can be an advantage in the labor market. Specific details for Lane County high-
wage, high-demand careers are available at this link.

2.4B.
Focusing on high-wage and high-demand careers that require entry level education of an associate degree or

less, the most demanded general skills and aptitudes fall into three categories: mechanical and construction
skills; healthcare customer service; and financial, business, and executive functions.

Mechanical and construction skills, represented by occupations such as heavy truck drivers and carpenters,
require the ability to use tools and skill sets to solve problems in a variety of challenging environments.
Familiarity with construction tools, building skills, automotive operation, and a general willingness to learn new
things and operate independently are in-demand skills for entry into these occupations, although most
employers expect to train workers on the job given entry-level requirements are met.

Healthcare, and specifically customer interaction within medicine, is a highly demanded skill within the local
labor force. Medical assistants and substance abuse counselors, two examples of large and rapidly expanding
occupations, demand workers with medical competence and training but also interpersonal communication
skills to help patients feel comfortable with their treatment options.

Business and financial functions, typified by bookkeeping clerks and wholesale sales representatives, are
employed across all industries. All major industries are projected to grow in Lane County over the long term, and
businesses of all types will continue to require workers with the financial skills to maintain and expand their

33


https://www.qualityinfo.org/documents/20126/110691/Lane+High-Wage%2C+High-Demand%2C+High-Skill+Occupations+2021-2031/b7d5e3e3-4386-bbee-8e54-bb97ddbdcafa?version=1.10

markets. The areas of greatest demand will be for aligning mathematical and business skills to the
communication and teamwork skills needed to maintain a thriving establishment.

Many of the industry-specific occupations are outlined in the above section. It is difficult to generalize across the
diverse range of skill sets required for these jobs, because knowledge of industry specific processes and
techniques will vary. However certain competencies such as workflow and project management, general
mathematics, problem solving, self-motivation, verbal communication, and teamwork are widely demanded
across many occupations. Training programs that emphasize these skills are likely to have more success in
connecting jobseekers to successful long-term employment, since these baseline skills are more difficult to train
on the job.

2.5 20 CFR 679.560(a)(3): Workforce Analysis

A. Provide an analysis of the local workforce, including current labor force employment and unemployment
data;

B. Provide information on local labor market trends; and

C. Describe the educational and skill levels of the local workforce including individuals with barriers to
employment.

25A.

Labor force employment recovered from a pandemic low of 149,314 to an all-time high of 176,310 in

April 2022. It has since dropped back to 170,930, which is lower than pre-pandemic levels. At the statewide
level, self-employment grew during the pandemic and helped labor force employment grow. It has since
dropped off and may be a reason for the downward trend in Lane County.

From a recent peak of 14.7% in April 2020 at the depths of the COVID recession, the unemployment rate has
dropped rapidly. Pent up demand from the economy reopening and federal stimulus dollars helped increase
employment growth. On the supply side, an increase in retirements has limited supply, creating a tight labor
market. As of September 2023, the unemployment rate is near record lows at 3.7%. The record low rate for Lane
County is 3.5% recorded in December 2019.

The labor force participation rate in Lane County recovered slightly from a low of 55.9% in 2020 to 56.4% in
2022, about the same as the 56.5% recorded in 2019 before the pandemic. In Lane County, the high proportion
of population in the 16 to 24 years range due to the University of Oregon causes the LFPR to be historically
lower than the statewide rate, which was 62.8 in 2022.

2.5B.

An aging population and retirements in the Baby Boom generation are one reason for lower labor force
participation and unemployment rates. The population aged 60 years and over grew from 17% to 31% between
2000 and 2022. As the population has aged the labor force participation rate has dropped from 66.5% in 2000 to
56.4% in 2022.

As Lane County’s labor force has become older it is also becoming more diverse. While the number of total
workers grew by 11%, or 12,700 workers, from 2000 to 2023, the rate of change in most races and ethnicities far
surpassed that pace. In fact, the number of workers who are Hispanic, Latino, Black, or African American in Lane
County more than doubled in just over two decades. Asian and Pacific Islander workers, as well as workers of

34



two or more races, also grew their representation rapidly, by between 50 and 75 percent. Although they remain
the largest group of workers in Lane County, there are nearly 3,000 fewer non-Hispanic White workers than in
the year 2000. This represents the relatively older age of the non-Hispanic white population, as well as the
increasing diversity of the total residential population from which our workers are drawn.

25C

Lane County educational attainment is around the same as the nation for the general population. While Lane
has a slightly smaller portion of the population that did not graduate high school, it also has slightly fewer
people with a bachelors’ degree or higher.

Comparing Lane wages against the nation by occupational group provides some insight where the area has
concentrated pools of worker skills and where it lacks them, although this correlation is not necessarily
predictive. According to the 2022 metro area occupational wage estimates released by the Bureau of Labor

Statistics, Lane pays a wage premium relative to the nation in careers in health care and natural resources, while
professional services, legal, management, and financial careers tend to have a lower average wage.

Because hiring needs — particularly due to replacement, which make up more than 80% of projected job needs —
are widespread across industries and occupations, there is demand for workers and training in careers where
Lane specializes, as well as where it does not.

Individuals with barriers to employment follow many of the national trends when it comes to local workforce
participation, although there are some exceptions. Expanding access to the labor force and career advancement
among these populations is a key consideration for workforce expansion and shared prosperity.

Individuals with disabilities in Lane County (table) have a higher workforce participation rate than the national
average. Even though their employment rate and overall participation is lower than it is for Lane County
residents without a disability, the local population with a disability has higher educational attainment than the
national population with a disability. Despite higher participation, though, this population faces key economic
headwinds. In Lane County, people with a disability earn less than their counterparts without a disability (64% of
earnings relative to 67% in the U.S.), and people with or without a disability are more likely to live below the
federal poverty line, with a greater portion of those with a disability falling in that category.

In addition to the growing diversity of the labor force, and increased importance of creating more equal
opportunities for those facing barriers to employment, there is also substantial geographic variation in work
opportunity and access across the county. Most of the rural areas, especially those further removed from the
Eugene-Springfield economic core, tend to have higher levels of unemployment and fewer high-wage job
opportunities.

35


https://www.bls.gov/regions/west/news-release/occupationalemploymentandwages_eugene.htm
https://data.census.gov/table/ACSST5Y2021.S1811?q=disability&g=010XX00US_050XX00US41039

Priority Populations and Communities

2.6 Priority Populations and Communities (Oregon Requirement)

A. Based on the Economic and Workforce Analysis, the local area’s demographic data, and the local board’s
understanding of local underserved populations and communities, identify and describe the populations
and communities that will be prioritized for services in the local area.

B. Based on this analysis, describe the local investment strategy toward Priority Populations.

2.6 A.
There are three broad categories of disparity that can be targeted by Workforce Development Board programs:

rural area support, overcoming demographic inequities, and bridging gaps for those facing special barriers to
employment.

Rural areas of Lane face overlapping challenges in workforce development. Lower wage work tends to be
available at rural establishments. In addition, rural households, especially those distant from urban areas, tend
to have higher unemployment and less access to the types of jobs that cluster in cities, such as health care or
professional services.

There are dozens of different axes of demographic inequality when it comes to employment and wages, which
are not issues that are unique to Lane County. Several of the major categories are race, ethnicity, age, and sex.

Despite the growing diversity of the workforce, significant barriers to equal employment and wage disparities
exist by race and ethnicity. Non-Hispanic white workers make up larger than average parts of the workforce in
the top 8 industries that pay the highest average monthly wages, while workers of color are more represented in
4 of the 6 lowest paid industries in Lane County (data from the U.S. Census Bureau’s Quarterly Workforce
Indicators).

Age plays a role in access to employment, and changing population structures make addressing different aged
workers even more critical. Young workers tend to have higher unemployment in general, especially during
recessions, and due to structural factors have pursued fewer job opportunities than previous generations. At the
same time, the population past traditional retirement age is growing rapidly and many older workers are
extending employment later in life than decades ago. Both are underutilized populations in the workforce across
the spectrum of community needs.

With regards to sex, women tend to be underrepresented in certain industries, and especially in certain
occupations. Despite slow gains by women in areas like manufacturing and construction, skilled trades and
apprenticeable occupations are still dominated by men. Even in industries that have more female than male
workers, such as finance and health care, women’s representation in higher-wage or executive occupations
tends to decline. While these issues are not unique to Lane County, the Workforce Development Board plays a
critical role in creating greater gender equity when it comes to training, education, and access to workforce
institutions.

36



Finally, the workforce development system needs to focus on populations and groups facing special barriers to
employment. The justice-involved population, for example, is a group which nationally and historically has faced
substantial barriers to employment, although little data is available on local trends. Individuals with disabilities
are more likely to be unemployed, not in the labor force, or earning less than the federal poverty level. The
foreign-born population is less likely to have educational credentials that are recognized in the U.S., which
hampers their ability to connect fully to their labor force potential.

These illustrative examples show how structuring workforce training programs that meet participant needs can
both drive economic prosperity and fulfill businesses’ need for workers at a time of great labor demand.

2.6 B.

Local investments focus on strategies designed to connect people to work-based learning opportunities while
also receiving needed social support. The Workforce Development Board has shifted from investing primarily in
Individual Training Accounts (ITAs) to primarily paid Work Experience, Paid Transitional Employment, On-the-Job
Training, and Customized Training Solutions. These strategies connect individuals with the workforce, where
training is facilitated by partnering businesses, fostering stability through the investments these businesses
make in their employees.

Lane Workforce Partnership promotes the development of public/private partnerships between businesses and
community-based organizations. These partnerships are instrumental in providing workforce training combined
with social supports to our most marginalized community members.

Key Definition

In-Demand: WIOA section 3(23) defines “in-demand industry sector or occupation” as,

e anindustry sector that has a substantial current or potential impact (including through jobs that lead to
economic self-sufficiency and opportunities for advancement) on the State, regional, or local economy,
as appropriate, and that contributes to the growth or stability of other supporting businesses, or the
growth of other industry sectors; or

e an occupation that currently has or is projected to have a number of positions (including positions that
lead to economic self-sufficiency and opportunities for advancement) in an industry sector so as to have
a significant impact on the State, regional, or local economy, as appropriate.

e The determination of whether an industry sector or occupation is in-demand under this paragraph shall
be made by the State board or local board, as appropriate, using State and regional business and labor
market projections, including the use of labor market information.

37



Section 3: Alignment and Improvement

It is expected that Section 3 responses will be based on strategic discussions with the local board, partners in the
local area, and business and industry leaders. Further, it is expected that there will be strong alignment with the
Economic and Workforce Analysis and Priority Populations and Communities in Section 2.

Please answer the questions in Section 3 in twelve (12) pages or less. Provide a response for all items identified.
Reports and/or expanded analysis can be included as links and/or attachments.

Strategic Partnerships and Alignment

3.1 20 CFR 679.560(b)(1)(i): Local Area Programs and Partners

Identify the programs, partners, and providers that are included in the local area’s workforce development
system. Include both organizations that provide WorkSource Oregon Programs (as defined) and Other
Workforce Programs (as defined).

3.1
WorkSource Oregon Lane Local Leadership Team and Partners Providing Services:
e QOregon Employment Department (OED)
o Employment Services
o Veterans Services
e Easter Seals of Oregon
e Department of Human Services (DHS)
o Self-Sufficiency Programs
o Vocational Rehabilitation (VR)
e  Oregon Commission for the Blind
e Lane Community College (LCC)
e Oregon Extension Manufacturing Partnership (OMEP) (One-Stop Operator)
e Lane County Health & Human Services (LCH&HS)

Youth Services Partners
e Connected Lane County (CLC)
e Lane County Education Services District (ESD)

Business Services
e Collaborative Economic Development Oregon (CEDO)

Lane County Community Collaborative — includes over 50 partners from education, economic development,
businesses, industry sector strategists, workforce development, and community-based organizations.

38



3.2 20 CFR 679.560(a)(6): Local Area Program Alignment Strategies

Considering the analysis in Section 2, describe the local board’s strategy to align the WorkSource Oregon and
Other Workforce Programs and resources identified in 3.1 to achieve the strategic vision and goals of the
local board.

3.2

The Lane County workforce service providers have operated as an integrated workforce service delivery system
for many years. The system is led by the Lane’s Local Leadership Team whose members include LWP, DHS, OED,
LCC, Lane County H&HS, Easter Seals, and OMEP. The Local Leadership Team ensures the alignment of
workforce programs as well as providing oversight in the implementation of the WIOA requirements and the
WorkSource Oregon Standards.

As a high-performing Workforce Board, LWP collects and publishes program outcome data provided by system
partners twice per year. The report (Semi-Annual and Year-End Program) is a compilation of program outcomes
and information on services provided throughout Lane’s Workforce Service Delivery System and is inclusive of all
partner programs.

3.3 20 CFR 679.560(b)(1)(ii) and (b)(9): Coordination with Education

Building off the response in 3.2, describe how the local board will coordinate relevant secondary and
postsecondary education programs and activities in the local area including, but not limited to, Essential
Employability Skills (as defined) and Career and Technical Education (CTE) Programs of Study to coordinate
strategies, enhance services, and avoid duplication of services.

3.3
LWP staff participate on various boards and committees to connect workforce activities with secondary and
post-secondary education programs.

e Lane Workforce Development Board members include:
o Title Il staff from Lane Community College
o Lane Educational Service District
e LWP Executive Director is an elected member of the Bethel School District Board.

LWP has a very small staff but by working with other partners and board members to produce common
messaging and goals, the reach locally and statewide has grown exponentially. Through convening of interested
parties around education, working on common goals, and having a voice on numerous boards and committees,
the alignment and economic stability message is reaffirmed throughout Lane County. Board members are called
to action which allows staff to capitalize on their individual efforts to support and further the goals of the board
and the community at large.

The following chart shows just some of the boards and committees in which the staff participate, but the list
grows considerably when you include board members and partner agencies.

39


https://www.oregon.gov/ode/learning-options/cte/resources/pages/ctepos_application_resources.aspx

Secondary School Projects K-12 & Post-Secondary Projects

. . . Lane Community College/Lane ESD Advisory
Reginal Advisory Committees .
Committee

Multiple industry sector partnerships
including: Transportation; Health Care, Food &

Connected Lane County Board of Directors Beverage Manufacturing;
Construction/Aggregate; Technology, Creatives,
Childcare

Springfield Chamber of Commerce Work Ready Associated General Contractors Workforce

Education Committee Development Board

Bethel School District Board of Directors

Lane Workforce Partnership is dedicated to empowering the next generation through contract administration
and funding of the comprehensive Workforce Innovation & Opportunity Act (WIOA) programs that equip youth
and young adults, aged 14 to 24, with essential skills and experiences. The LWP WIOA Youth Provider is
Connected Lane County (CLC). CLC's mission is “to equip Lane County youth with the tools to help them gain
confidence in their abilities to see value in their decisions. We break down barriers, build bridges and create
strategic partnerships to connect youth with education and employment pathways to transform their future
potential.

CLC initiatives are designed to support youth through a range of offerings, including work-readiness training,
valuable work experiences, and other career pathway opportunities. They cultivate a strong foundation with a
focus to prepare them for successful high school graduation, facilitate their transition to post-secondary
education, and ultimately guide them towards a career.

As the Local Workforce Development Board for Lane County, LWP has been a consistent partner to convene,
facilitate and invest in proven strategies to better align industry and education to prepare youth and adults for
future employment and increase their access to work activities. Examples of how LWP staff are involved with
Lane County engagements include industry-education youth board and committee work memberships,
providing industry connections for local sectors to showcase workforce activities and events with secondary and
post-secondary education programs, and development/coordination of local work-based learning opportunities.

In partnership with local educators, community-based organizations, and industry, LWP supports numerous
youth career connected activities, events, and work-based learning opportunities. Below are samples of each:

40



2022-23 YOUTH CAREER CONNECTED ACTIVITIES:

e Lane Pre-Apprenticeship Construction Technology (PACT)
In the school year 2022-23, LANE PACT began its second year. This is a registered, BOLIl-approved youth
apprenticeship program model that is used to prepare high school students to be qualified/competitive
applicants for a registered apprenticeship or begin employment in the skilled trades.

e 2023 Summer Educator Externships
In partnership with Associated General Contractors (AGC), a week-long series of construction externships
were offered to Lane County High School Counselors. These externships offer firsthand onsite industry
exposure to local happenings, and in turn, this information is communicated to students.

e 2023 Lane County Youth Trades Academy (YTA)
YTA offers Lane County students 8 weeks of training and hands on experience in four trades — rotation
among electrical, plumbing, carpentry and sheet metal/HVAC. A total of 23 high school juniors and seniors
participated in this experience.

2022-23 YOUTH CAREER CONNECTED EVENTS:

e Industry partners participated in multiple in-school presentations to Lane County High School and Middle
School Students.

e CLC coordinates job shadows, hands on learning opportunities, work experience, and industry tours within a
wide range of local sectors.

e Lane Community College Hands on Career Day.

e Manufacturing Career Day.

e CLC hosted a Middle School Trades & Health Expo.

e Lane County Sand and Gravel Tour.

e Career tours in partnership with the University of Oregon for Tech and Bioscience Industries

2022-23 YOUTH CAREER CONNECTED WORK-BASED OPPORTUNITY:

e Constructing a Brighter Future
A total of 15 Lane County Schools and approximately 200 students have been building 16 one room shelters
and 23 sheds. The shelters serve as transitional housing for local residents who are currently experiencing
homelessness. The sheds are for three Lane County St. Vincent de Paul housing sites. These construction
projects not only benefit the local community but creates an initiative that introduces young people to the
multiple career pathways in high demand/high wage construction trades employment.

3.4 20 CFR 679.560(b)(12): Coordination with Adult Education and Literacy

Describe how the local board will coordinate WIOA Title | workforce investment activities with adult
education and literacy activities under WIOA Title Il. Include how the local board will carry out the review of
local applications submitted under Title Il consistent with 20 CFR 679.370(n).

34

41



The local Title Il provider is a local workforce development board member and participated in the local
workforce strategic planning session. In addition to activities described above that cross both secondary and
post-secondary education, both agencies will work closely together to make sure that the plans are aligned, and
that collaboration continues to ensure that Title Il activities are represented and aligned with Title | services
within the workforce system.

3.5 Leverage Strategies (Oregon Requirement)

A. Identify the sources of current leveraged funds outside of WIOA Title | funding and state general
funds to support the workforce development system in the local area.

B. Describe how this leveraged funding will impact the local system.

C. Describe the local board’s strategies for acquiring additional/future leveraged funds.

3.5A.
LWP consistently seeks out opportunities for competitive grants from federal agencies as well as state and local
opportunities. Current leveraged funding sources include:
e Good Jobs Challenge Grant — Department of Commerce EDA Grant awarded to SOWIB. LWP partnered
with SOWIB to support the transportation and logistics industry need for Commercial Truck Drivers.
e (ritical Jobs Sector Grant —awarded to LWP from the Department of Labor to support the establishment
of a Hospitality Industry Sector Partnership along the entire coast of Oregon.

3.5B
LWP prioritizes supporting industry through Industry Sector Partnerships. A strong partnership in an industry
sector is led and supported by businesses, with the local workforce board playing a role in its initiation.

Leveraged funding: The Good Jobs Challenge Grant has enabled LWP to re-launch the Transportation and
Logistics Industry. Funding has also focused on training over 100 commercial truck drivers in Lane County. As a
result of these investments, the industry is working together to address the critical workforce shortage and
creating strategies to train for the myriad types of skills needed. For example, the local truck driving school
provides training on the basic skills needed to pass the department of motor vehicles licensing exam and the
businesses provide the finishing training (driving oil tankers, construction vehicles, or log trucks).

The Critical Jobs Sector Grant will provide the resources needed to launch the Hospitality Industry Sector
Partnership for the coastal communities of Oregon. Leveraged funds from this project, implemented in
partnership with two other Workforce Boards, will be used to survey those who work in the industry and inform
career pathway skills development into good jobs in the hospitality.

3.5C.

Funding for LWP program priorities creates a challenge, as opportunities to solicit funding is highly competitive
and not always aligned with local goals. Local strategies include conducting research for available local, state,
and federal grants that typically fund workforce development initiatives. LWP is also seeking avenues in which
we are able to diversify our funding sources. This is critical given the significant year-over-year cuts to the WIOA
funds allocated to the local area.

42



3.6 Next Generation Sector Strategies (Oregon Requirement)

A. ldentify and describe each industry in the local area where a next generation sector partnership (as
defined) is currently active. Include in the description, the rationale for each active next generation sector
partnership, recent outcomes, and how it will align with industry consortia where appropriate.

B. Identify and describe each industry in the local area where there will be an attempt to convene a new
sector partnership within the timeframe of the local plan. Include in the description, the rationale for
each new next generation sector partnership and how it will align with industry consortia where
appropriate.

C. Identify and describe the strategy for any additional targeted sectors in the local area where the next
generation sector model is not being used.

3.6 A.
All industry sector partnerships launched in Lane County are launched under the Next Generation Sector
Partnership model. Presently, six sector partnerships have launched and are thriving in Lane County.

Technology Industry Sector Partnership:

Since 2015, we have focused on the Tech sector in Lane County, which comprises around 616 firms across
various industries such as software publishing, data processing services, and electronic manufacturing. By 2021,
these enterprises employed 3,693 individuals and contributed to an impressive total payroll exceeding $312M.
Notably, the average annual wage in the local tech industry stands at $84,534, surpassing the Lane County all-
industry average of $52,596.

Projections show a 22% employment growth rate for local tech companies between 2020 and 2030, compared
to a 15% growth rate for all industries combined. Additionally, an anticipated demand for 3,757 replacements
will result in a total of 3,889 job openings.

Recognizing the industry’s need for skilled workers, the workforce development and education community have
acknowledged the importance of collaborative efforts to strengthen the local talent pipeline. Furthermore,
workforce development, education, and economic development entities recognize that supporting this vital
industry presents an opportunity to boost the local economy and cultivate high-wage jobs in the area.

Current Initiatives Include:
e Talent Retention: Experience Oregon Tech
e Tech Community Building
e Advocacy
e Eventsincluded the Big Mix, Hack for a Cause, and TAD Talks.

Food and Beverage Industry Sector Partnership:

Since 2017, we have focused on the thriving Food and Beverage Manufacturing sector. With over 163 companies
in this sector, the collective workforce comprises 4,027 individuals, contributing over $211M in wages to the
local economy. Looking ahead, this sector is anticipated to experience growth, adding 610 new jobs by 2030,
representing a 16% expansion rate — exceeding the average growth rate of 15% across all industries.

43



Over the next decade, an estimated 4,434 replacement openings are expected, resulting in a total of 5,044 job
openings. In 2021, the average annual wage in the Food and Beverage Sector in Lane County was $52,500,
slightly below the overall average of $52,596 across all industries. Notably, the educational requirements for
positions within the Food and Beverage Sector are relatively modest, with the majority of occupations only
requiring a high school diploma or less. However, employers in this industry frequently face challenges in
recruiting and retaining workers, despite the low educational barriers.

Current Initiatives Include:
e Product and Value Promotion
e Knowledge and Resource Share
e Collaborative Development Projects
e Events including Quarterly Food Business Unpacked, Eugene Food Startup Weekend, and
Hiring/Job Fairs
e Growing People LEAN Training

Construction-Aggregate Industry Sector Partnership:

Since 2016, we have focused on the Construction-Aggregate sector, comprising approximately 1,186 companies.
In 2021, these companies employed 8,212 individuals and contributed $488M to the total payroll. While the
construction-aggregate industry is projected to grow at a slightly slower pace than the overall economy, with an
expected 11% increase between 2020 and 2030, it still anticipates creating 904 new jobs. This growth rate is
comparatively lower than the 15% expected across all industries during the same period.

Over the next decade, there will be 7,831 replacement openings, resulting in a total of 8,736 available positions.
By the end of this forecasted period, employment levels in the sector are expected to reach pre-recession highs,
which peaked at 8,380 in 2007. Notably, the annual average wages in the construction-aggregate field are higher
than the overall average for all industries, standing at $59,429 in 2021, compared to $52,596. It’s worth
mentioning that despite the higher wages, most entry-level positions in construction-aggregate only require a
high school diploma or less, making it a promising opportunity for individuals seeking well-paying jobs with
lower educational levels.

Current Initiatives Include:
e Industry Engagement and Collaboration
e Youth connection in partnership with Connected Lane County and Elevate Lane County
e Youth awareness — CTE support and expansion
e Promote Trade Opportunities- Skilled to Work KEZI 9 News Initiative
e Events like Manufacturing Day, Construction Utility Career Day, Sand and Gravel Tours, High
School Presentations, and Hiring/Job Fairs

Wood Products Industry Sector Partnership:

We have focused on the Wood Products sector in Lane County since 2018. Initially centered on advanced wood
products manufacturing, our perspective evolved through extensive discussions with industry leaders, leading us
to broaden our scope. Our definition now encompasses a diverse range of activities, including logging and
forestry companies, as well as manufacturers of wood-based products like paper and furniture.

This sector comprises approximately 219 companies, collectively employing 6,037 workers as of 2021, and
generating a total payroll exceeding $399M. With an average annual wage of $66,067, the Wood Products

44


https://www.connectedlane.org/
https://elevatelanecounty.org/
https://www.kezi.com/features/skilled-to-work/

industry surpasses the overall average of $52,596 for all industries. Its historical significance in Lane County’s
economy spans generations, and today, through the implementation of innovative technologies, it continues to
hold economic importance.

Looking ahead, forecasts indicate a growth rate of 2% for the Wood Products sector between 2020 and 2030,
resulting in the creation of 102 new jobs over the specified period. However, it is crucial to recognize the
impending replacement needs within the industry, predominantly driven by retirements. These replacements
are anticipated to account for 5,883 replacement openings out of a total of 7,985 job openings over the course
of the next 10 years. Such dynamics highlight the significance of strategic planning and investment to ensure the
continued success and sustainability of the Wood Products sector in Lane County.

Current Initiatives Include:
e Industry Education; advanced technology, safe work environment, and job diversification
e Community Pride and Awareness
e Youth Education in Partnership with Forest Today and Forever
e Advocacy for Policy and Licensing Alignment
e Events Including Manufacturing Day, Oregon Logging Conference, and Hiring/Job Fairs

Creatives Industry Sector Partnership:

In 2019, we initiated an innovative collaboration with Lane Arts Council and ArtCity, launching a dedicated effort
focused on the dynamic and diverse Creative Sector. Drawing inspiration from successful industry sector
initiatives in Technology, Food and Beverage Manufacturing, Wood Products, and Construction-Aggregate, this
initiative acknowledged the substantial contributions of the creative sector to our community.

Encompassing a wide array of industries such as apparel production, art, publishing, performing arts, museums,
and historical sites, the creative sector faced significant challenges during the COVID-19 pandemic but is
showing gradual signs of recovery. Notably, the performing arts sector is showing promising signs of rebounding
from the losses incurred.

As of 2021, the creative sector comprises 565 establishments, employing 4,027 individuals who contribute over
$171M in wages to our area. With an average wage of $52,842, slightly above the Lane County all-industry
average of 552,596, the creative sector plays a vital role in fostering thriving town centers and supporting the
growth of local commerce.

Employers today actively seek creative thinkers capable of envisioning beyond conventional boundaries, offering
innovative solutions to address diverse problems in our community and the world. Creativity consistently ranks
among the top skills sought by employers, as highlighted by the World Economic Forum in 2020. Our county is
home to thousands of artist entrepreneurs and hundreds of businesses that rely on the visionary ideas and skills
of creatives to achieve their business goals.

Creativity serves as the seed of innovation, propelling the growth of high-wage and high-demand industries
dependent on the imaginative thinking of artists. Various fields, including design, branding, media, city planning,
manufacturing, and architecture, rely on artists’ expertise, knowledge, and innovative perspectives to shape
remarkable solutions for business and community challenges.

45


https://foreststodayandforever.org/

Current Initiatives Include:
e Build a community and network of artists across creative disciplines
e Raise up the perception and value of local arts in our community
e Improve income and opportunities for local artists
e Promote professional development for local artists and stronger arts businesses
e Collect data on the arts sector
e Eventsinclude: Artist Feedback Sessions, Arts Media Campaign

Transportation and Logistics Industry Sector Partnership:

Established in 2021, the Transportation Industry Sector Partnership encompasses crucial sectors such as truck
transportation, transit and ground passenger transportation, warehousing and storage, along with their
associated activities. Within these industries, there are a total of 187 firms contributing to an annual average
employment of 2,957, with a combined payroll amounting to S151M in 2021.

Forecasts from the Oregon Employment Department indicate robust growth for the sector, with expectations of
adding 602 new jobs, representing a 21% growth rate from 2020 to 2030. This growth surpasses the overall
industry average of 15% during the same period.

Furthermore, the trade, transportation and utilities sectors as a whole are poised for expansion. Projections
suggest a growth of 3,200 jobs (11%), primarily driven by the post-COVID recovery in retail trade and the
increasing demand for transportation services. The shift towards online shopping and the subsequent need for
efficient product deliveries have contributed to this growth trajectory.

Current Initiatives Include:
e Regional CDL training through the Economic Development Association grant.
e Future Ready Oregon Prosperity 10K Grant awarded to four Lane County
transportation/aggregate companies to provide CDL training.
e Promotion of new CDL training facility in Lane County.
e Researching opportunities to provide CDL training to businesses in rural Lane County.
e Ongoing new driver recruitment sessions are scheduled at WorkSource Lane.
e Industry Champion — Tyree QOil

Childcare Industry Sector Partnership:

Childcare is an essential foundation that enables the smooth functioning of all other aspects of work. The
significance of having access to high-quality and affordable childcare cannot be overstated, as it has been
proven to enhance employee productivity, attendance, and retention. Unfortunately, Lane County is currently
facing a childcare crisis, labeled as a “childcare desert,” with only 1 childcare slot available for every 4 children
aged 0 — 5 years. For infants and toddlers, there is just 1 slot for every 7 in our community. These figures,
derived from pre-pandemic data, have likely worsened over the past few years.

To compound this issue, the average monthly cost of full-time childcare locally stands at $866 per child
representing a staggering 21% of the average median household income for families with children under 6 in
Lane County. For families living at or below the federal poverty level, childcare expenses consume 52% of their
household income. While families bear the burden of these costs, childcare providers are struggling to cover
operational expenses, often offering relatively low wages with limited or no benefits.

46



Recognizing the gravity of this situation, the Childcare Sector Strategist position was made possible through
funding by the United Way of Lane County, in collaboration with Quality Care Connections at Lane Community
College, Lane Workforce Partnership, the Early Childhood Hub of Lane County, Eugene Area Chamber of
Commerce, Onward Eugene, and other key stakeholders.

Key strategic goals for the Childcare Sector in Lane County:

e Support existing childcare providers by addressing workforce recruitment and retention
challenges.

e Increase awareness of the importance of quality early childhood care and education, the role of
Childcare Resource and Referral agencies (CCR&Rs), and career opportunities in the childcare
sector.

e Build childcare capacity by supporting quality local childcare providers in scaling existing
programs and helping those interested in starting a childcare business to build sustainable
businesses.

e Increase the cultural responsivity of childcare by focusing on BIPOC providers, culturally specific
organizations, and linguistically specific/diverse providers & organizations.

e Strengthen employers’ understanding of childcare benefits and support employer-based
childcare strategies;

e Advocate for public policy and investments that support childcare providers and families.

3.6B
Planned Industry Sector Partnerships during the 2024 — 2028 period include:

BioScience Industry Sector Partnership: In partnership with the Oregon Bioscience Association, the goal will be
to grow the biosciences sector in Lane County by fostering an increase in both jobs and businesses. The
objective is to enhance the visibility of Lane County’s resources beyond the region and actively recruit
businesses that align well with the region’s strengths.

Healthcare Industry Sector Partnership: In response to a crucial shortage of trained workers, the imperative to
diversity the workforce, and a shortage of healthcare training providers in Lane County, the partnerships aim to
create collaborative work-based training solutions that effectively support workforce development.

Semi-Conductor Industry Sector Partnership: Lane County is working with Stratacache, a semi-conductor chip
manufacturing company planning to locate in Eugene. This presents a unique opportunity to establish an
Industry Sector Partnership dedicated to the semi-conductor industry and its supply chain.

Hospitality Industry Sector Partnership: In partnership with two workforce boards whose regions include the
coastal communities of Oregon, Lane Workforce Partnership is leading the launch of the Hospitality Industry
Sector Partnership. This sector stands as a key economic driver in Oregon, featuring a robust yet often
misunderstood career pathway.

3.6 C.

The Next Generation Sector Partnership model serves as our guiding framework, shaping the approach to our
efforts by coordinating and facilitating industry-led convenings with the support of community partners. This
approach is designed to enhance our regional economy and link individuals to self-sufficient wage jobs. LWP
actively endorses the use of the Next Generation Sector Partnership model, and consequently, there are no
plans for the establishment of partnerships outside of this model.

47



3.7 20 CFR 679.560(b)(3)(i): Employer Engagement in Workforce Development

Describe the strategies and services (as defined) that will be used in the local area to facilitate engagement of
employers in workforce development programs, including small employers and employers in in-demand
industry sectors and occupations.

3.7

WorkSource Oregon Lane facilitates a very active Regional Business Services team, extending its support to
businesses of all sizes within Lane County. Business Services encompass a range of offerings including posting job
listings, customized recruitments, rapid response services, and tailored training solutions to address businesses’
workforce development needs. Utilizing the facilities, businesses access workforce solutions such as job listings,
talent pool job referrals, and a robust on-the-job training program.

The Regional Business Services team, convened by the One-Stop-Operator, is strategically structured to enhance
efficiency and minimize duplication in business services. Comprising business service staff from partner agencies
across Lane County, the team collaborates to better serve the diverse needs of the local business community.

Lane County’s On-the-Job Training (OJT) program operates as a business-driven initiative, with active participation
from over two dozen businesses in the region. Staff consistently engage with new businesses, with a particular
focus on priority industry sectors, to encourage and support their involvement in the program.

Recognizing the potential for increased impact, LWP has contracted with Collaborative Economic Development
Oregon (CEDO) to act as the arm of the Workforce Development Boards’ business services efforts. CEDOQ’s
involvement aims to enhance outreach into the business community, raising awareness of available services and
programs. Additionally, CEDO takes the lead in LWP Industry Sector Partnership initiatives and provides support
by convening sector leads.

3.8 20 CFR 679.560(b)(3)(ii): Meeting the Needs of Businesses

Describe the strategies and services that will be used in the local area to support a workforce development
system that meets the needs of businesses.

3.8

Lane Workforce Partnership contracts with Collaborative Economic Development Oregon (CEDO) to serve as the
backbone for business services. CEDO plays a crucial role in supporting LWP’s Industry Sector Partnerships,
developing layoff aversion strategies, coordinating services, and aiding the team delivering direct business
services.

LWP’s One-Stop Operator oversees the convening and coordination of services provided by the Regional
Business Services Team. This team includes business services staff from all partners within the WorkSource
Oregon Service Delivery System.

Direct Business Services is a shared responsibility among partners, with a majority of services delivered by

Oregon Employment Department’s Business and Employment Specialists, working in collaboration with
Employment Specialists from Lane County Health & Human Services (WIOA Title 1 Service Provider).

48



3.9 20 CFR 679.560(b)(3)(iii) and (b)(4): Coordination with Economic Development

Describe the strategies and services that will be used in the local area to better coordinate workforce
development programs and economic development including the promotion of entrepreneurial skills training
and microenterprise services.

3.9
In Lane County, partners work together to support new businesses seeking to locate in the region. The strategy
to align economic and workforce development is a collaborative effort with:

e lLane Workforce Partnership

o Collaborative Economic Development Oregon

e lLane County Community and Economic Development

e City of Eugene — Economic Development

e Business Oregon

3.10 20 CFR 679.560(b)(3)(iv): Linkages to Unemployment Insurance

Describe the strategies and services that will be used in the local area to strengthen linkages between
WorkSource Oregon (as defined) and unemployment insurance programs.

3.10

Oregon Employment Department’s Business and Employment Specialists at WorkSource Oregon Lane facilitate
the connection to unemployment insurance programs. These staff members offer support to residents
navigating unemployment insurance, providing answers to questions, and assisting customers who require
access to a computer or phone for accessing the unemployment services office.

Continuous Improvement

3.11 20 CFR 679.560(b)(2)(i): Expand Access to Services

Describe how the local board will work with entities in WorkSource Oregon (as defined) to expand access to
employment, training, education, and supportive services for eligible individuals, particularly those with
barriers to employment.

3.11

Workforce Benefits Navigator Consortia:

In addressing the challenge of ensuring equitable access to services in the region, Lane Workforce Partnership
intends to develop a Lane County Navigator Consortia beginning in PY 23/24. This approach mirrors the successful
model of our Industry Sector Partnerships. Our philosophy is centered on learning from and honoring the existing
expertise within Lane County’s communities, steering away from the conventional approach of using one or two
Navigators in a community.

Instead, LWP plans to work collaboratively with Community Based Organizations (CBOs), providing funding to

49



support the development of Navigators. This initiative aims to leverage the expertise of current Navigators and
partner staff offering Navigation-type services. By tapping into existing resources and supporting capacity building
within CBOs, we aim to establish a sustainable network of Navigators in Lane County.

This strategy supports the formation of the Navigator Consortia comprised of CBOs specializing in serving various
targeted population groups in Lane County. The focus is on engaging individuals in the community who already
provide support and possess knowledge about the specific needs of their community(s). The development of the
Navigator Consortia will also serve as a catalyst for building and strengthening relationships, reaching out to Tribal
Communities, unengaged rural communities, and targeted population groups currently not engaged in workforce
services.

Navigators, embedded within communities, play a crucial role in identifying solutions to challenges unique to each
community, both geographically and population specific. Similar to Industry Sector Partnerships addressing
common problems collectively, Navigators are uniquely positioned to help resolve community challenges. This
approach will allow the Workforce Service Delivery System to wrap our services around targeted communities,
rather than expecting the community to come to the service. This approach will also provide a mechanism for the
workforce service delivery system partners to integrate with the communities in Lane County.

STEP Program:
In 2017, workforce partners recognized the need to increase our collective efforts in supporting individuals

receiving SNAP benefits. The team identified that many of those on SNAP were not only living in poverty, but
were also homeless, unstably housed, individuals with disabilities, and people with low to no skills, making it
challenging for them to connect with meaningful employment. In response, the team worked collectively to
have a concerted impact on meeting the needs of these diverse population groups.

Lane County officially named this collaborative initiative the Self-Sufficiency Training and Employment Program
(STEP), setting a model for the state of Oregon to follow. The STEP partners offer similar services with specific
areas of expertise, such as housing or vocational training. In Lane County, this collaborative partnership
includes:

e Oregon Employment Department

e Lane County Health and Human Services

e Food for Lane County

e Goodwill Industries

e Lane Community College

20 CFR 679.560(b)(2)(ii): Career Pathways

Describe how the local board will work with entities in WorkSource Oregon (as defined) to facilitate
development of career pathways.

3.12
WIOA places a strong emphasis on career pathways. For participants benefitting from scholarship training

services, LWP expects the achievement of industry recognized credentials that are both stackable and portable by
the completion of the training program. Scholarship training shall only be approved for occupations in which

50



there is demand in Lane County.

In the case of the OJT program, the training focus aligns with industries prioritized by the Lane Workforce
Development Board, emphasizing occupations with higher demand and growth potential.

LWP will continue to partner with Lane Community College’s Career Pathways program. Both LWP and LCC share
a vested interest in creating education and training programs offering multiple entry and exit points. Currently,
LCC runs a successful Career Pathways program that supports our most marginalized communities in Lane County.
Additionally, LCC provides successful apprenticeship training programs and continues to develop curriculum for
industry recognized credentials, certificates, degrees, and non-credit training certificates. LWP will continue to
convene industry partners for their active participation in the development of career pathway programs.

3.13 20 CFR 679.560(b)(2)(ii): Co-enroliment

Describe how the local board will work with entities in WorkSource Oregon (as defined) to facilitate co-
enrollment in WSO programs.

3.13
All services delivered through the WorkSource Centers in Lane County will be integrated and coordinated

throughout the service delivery continuum. Co-enrollment of participants will occur when it is in the best interest
of the participant. The leveraging and braiding of funding sources will be optimized to prevent duplication of
resources, ensure maximum efficiency, and take into account the requirements and goals of each funded program.

In Lane County, it is the practice that the alignment of partner services provides for enroliment of participants
seeking self-directed services in general employment services, while the local workforce development board
requires WIOA Title 1 Adult and Dislocated Worker participant enrollment at the point which triggers the provision
of individual staff assisted services, primarily training services. Contractors and sub-recipients of WIOA funds
through LWP shall collaborate with WorkSource partner staff to integrate services, ensuring alignment and
coordination across programs. This collaboration may include co-enrollment of participants when applicable and
in the best interest of the participant.

3.14 20 CFR 679.560(b)(2)(iii): Improve Access to Postsecondary Credentials

Describe how the local board will work with entities in WorkSource Oregon (as defined) to improve access to
activities leading to a recognized postsecondary credential (including a credential that is an industry-
recognized certificate or certification, portable, and stackable).

3.14

Access to training services through WorkSource Oregon Lane is facilitated through various methods, with
priority given to a consumer choice model. Customers who are certain about their desire for training services
are directed to the program that aligns with their needs, typically WIOA Title 1, but potentially other available
funded programs. For those customers who are uncertain about their desire for training, guidance is provided to
start their journey with job search and/or career exploration.

51



All customers seeking training services are required to either engage one-on-one with a Career Advisor for
career exploration or participate in the Career Exploration Workshop. This ensures that customers have the
most current information about their chosen career, including the intended credentials and labor market
demand in Lane County.

All funded training programs must end in an industry-recognized credential and have employment demand in
Lane County. Lane Workforce Partnership encourages customers entering entry-level training to consider
stackable credentials.

3.15 20 CFR 679.560(b)(5)(i): Continuous Improvement of Eligible Providers

Describe how the local board will ensure the continuous improvement of eligible providers through
WorkSource Oregon (as defined) and that such providers will meet the employment needs of employers,
workers, and job seekers in the local area.

3.15

WorkSource Oregon Lane operates as a co-located, integrated workforce services delivery system. The local
leadership team continually receives feedback and works to refine services offered through all partners. Led by
LWP and the contracted One-Stop Operator, the Local Leadership Team reviews the outcomes of services
delivered by training providers for which funds have been invested as part of the Scholarship Training Program
(also known as an Individual Training Account).

In cases where providers on the State of Oregon managed Eligible Training Provider List (ETPL) show negative
results in terms of training completion and entered employment, LWP works with the provider on corrective
actions. If poor performance persists, LWP will discontinue referrals of potential trainees to the provider and
may submit a request to the state to delist the provider’s program.

For the OJT program, the decision to enter into an OJT should also take into consideration the track record of
the businesses who have previously undertaken OJTs. WorkSource Oregon Lane staff must not enter into an OJT
Training Plan with a business who has previously exhibited a “pattern of failing” to provide OJT participants with
continued long-term employment with wages, benefits, and working conditions that are equal to those provided
to regular employees who have worked a similar length of time and are doing the same type of work. Only
businesses with a history of successful training and retention of OJT employees shall be used as repeat OJT
training sights.

3.16 20 CFR 679.560(b)(20): Intake and Case Management

Describe any recent innovations, promising practices, or efforts to increase and streamline access to
programs and services at WSO centers particularly as it relates to case management.

3.16
The past year, LWP has placed a heavy emphasis on supporting holistic case management through Public/Private

partnerships. These collaborations involve community-based organizations serving specific populations and
engaging with the business community. This approach allows for the coordination of training, employment, and
social support, leading to increased employment rates and improved stabilization.

52



Key Definitions

WorkSource Oregon (WSO) Programs: The WTDB approved a WorkSource Oregon Definition dated May 24,

2023 on June 9, 2023. For the purposes of local planning, WorkSource Oregon refers to the “WorkSource
Oregon Primary Programs and Resources” included in the definition.

Other Workforce Programs: These represent the entire workforce system in addition to “WorkSource Oregon
Primary Programs and Resources”. For the purposes of local planning, these include “Additional WorkSource
Oregon Programs and Resources” identified in the WorkSource Oregon Definition dated May 24, 2023 that are a

part of WIOA and also programs such as K-12 and postsecondary education, workforce-related/supporting
community-based organizations, labor and apprenticeship, and allied partners.

Essential Employability Skills: They go by many names, such as soft skills, interpersonal skills, essential skills,
social skills, 21st century skills, and applied skills. They are the collection of skills necessary to succeed in the
workplace that can be learned in academic settings and are enhanced through simulated and actual workplace
experience. They are sometimes referred to as behaviors and traits but can be learned and refined through
modeling and practice. They include, but are not limited to, adaptability, critical thinking, communication,
empathy, open-mindedness, problem-solving, teamwork, and work ethic. The number of EES and the individual
importance of each cannot be disconnected from industry and occupation.

Next Generation Sector Partnership: Next Generation Sector Partnerships are partnerships of businesses, from

the same industry and in a shared labor market region, who work with education, workforce development,
economic development and community organizations to address the workforce and other competitiveness
needs of the targeted industry. Next Gen Sector Partnerships are Industry-Driven, Community-Supported, and
Sustainable over time. Next Gen Sector Partnerships are active all over the country.

Employer Services Strategies: May include the implementation of incumbent worker training programs, on-the-
job training programs, work-based learning programs, apprenticeship models, customized training programs, or
utilization of effective business intermediaries and other business services and strategies in the local area.

53


https://www.oregon.gov/workforceboard/about/Documents/Handbook/06.Oregon%27s%20Workforce%20System/7.2%20WSOCoreSystemDefinition%20FINAL%205%2024%2023.pdf
https://www.oregon.gov/workforceboard/about/Documents/Handbook/06.Oregon%27s%20Workforce%20System/7.2%20WSOCoreSystemDefinition%20FINAL%205%2024%2023.pdf
https://www.nextgensectorpartnerships.com/aboutnextgenerationpartnerships

Operational Portion

Section 4: Services and Activities

Please answer the questions in Section 4 in twelve (12) pages or less. Provide a response for all items identified.
Reports and/or expanded analysis can be included as attachments.

Available Workforce Development Activities

4.1 20 CFR 679.560(a)(4): Workforce Development Activities — Part 1 Adults

(Includes both WIOA Adults and Dislocated Workers)

A. Provide an analysis of workforce development activities for adults in the local area including education
and training and including individuals with barriers to employment;

B. Describe specific strengths and weaknesses of these adult workforce development activities in the local
area to address the education and skill needs of the workforce and the employment needs of employers;

C. Describe the capacity to provide these adult workforce development activities in the local area to address
the education and skill needs of the workforce and the employment needs of employers;

D. Identify successful models and best practices in the local area for adult workforce development activities.

4.1A

Through a strong partnership with the Oregon Employment Department (OED), and our local WIOA service
delivery partners, we have developed a comprehensive range of services for both businesses and jobseekers.
These programs, available at the WorkSource Center, are accessible to the general population and specifically
designed to address the needs of targeted populations, including veterans, homeless individuals, SNAP
recipients, older workers, and young adults. The array of services includes workshops for job search skills,
assistance in developing job search tools, access to training services, career exploration and navigation, and
individualized career advising.

The trained staff at WorkSource Oregon Lane stay current with industry and job search trends to provide reliable
and timely assistance to customers. LWP works closely with public and private training entities that serve our
county to make sure appropriate skills training, as identified by industry, is available in the community. LWP
assists new training providers with the Eligible Training Provider List (ETPL) application when needed, which
ensures that participants in need of WIOA supported training have access to all available training options.

Through LWP investment in training at WorkSource Lane, we provide a very robust On-the-Job Training (OJT)
program. The OJT program provides jobseekers with an opportunity to become employed and learn new skills
while earning a paycheck. For employers, the OJT program provides a reimbursement of up to $5,000 per
trainee to off-set the extraordinary costs associated with providing the training.

Training funds allocated by LWP for scholarships (Individual Training Account), On-the-Job Training, and
Customized Training Solutions for Businesses are strategically directed towards industries with the highest
employment demand and career pathways to higher-wage jobs in Lane County. As a result, a majority of
training funds are used to educate participants in the healthcare, transportation, and construction industries.

54



In response to the workforce needs of the construction/aggregate industry, LWP plans to continue its work, in
partnership with Lane County Education Service District’s Career and Technical Education programs, on the
Constructing a Brighter Future project. Constructing a Brighter Future teaches youth skilled trades through the
construction of tiny homes which are used to house those who are houseless in Lane County. This project was
launched from the BOLI approved Lane PACT program, which is a pre-apprenticeship training program for the
construction industry. In just a few years it has expanded from constructing sheds to help victims who lost
everything during the devastating wildfires in Oregon, to providing a social solution by providing transitional
housing for those most in need.

LWP recognizes that addressing all the workforce needs in Lane County requires collaboration with other
agencies dedicated to serving marginalized populations and tackling pressing community issues. By investing
funds in existing agencies and convening target groups, LWP has a substantial impact, bringing workforce issues
to the forefront with community leaders and leveraging funds with assurances and oversight. The motto of LWP,
“we do not have to reinvent workgroups to address issues — instead we need to partner with agencies,
businesses, and community leaders to propel us forward,” emphasizes the power of collaboration in solving
workforce challenges.

4.18B

The number one strength of LWP’s adult and dislocated worker workforce development services lie in the strong
partnerships throughout Lane County. Through these collaborative efforts, LWP effectively braids and leverages
resources to better serve the community. As an example, customers have been supported in receiving training
and supportive service funds through Adult WIOA, STEP (SNAP 50/50), and the DHS JOBS program.

A primary challenge faced in Lane County is the shortage of training providers. While Lane County is home to the
University of Oregon and a comprehensive community college, there is a general lack of educational options for
short-term certificate training that is designed to quickly provide someone with the skills needed to obtain an
industry recognized credential and secure employment.

41C

The available capacity to meet the demand for services is limited. Geographically, Lane County is roughly the
size of the State of Connecticut, and it can take more than two hours to drive from an inland community to the
coastal borders of the region. The County is rather isolated geographically speaking, with two “metropolitan”
cities located centrally, surrounded by farmland, timberland, and small rural communities. The term
“metropolitan” is used loosely in this context as the entire population of the county is only 380,000. In order to
meet the needs of the total population, staff are challenged with spanning services across the metro and rural
communities. The challenges related to the size of the county are compounded with the lack of broadband
access in the rural communities. If internet access is available, it is often too expensive for rural residents, who
have a higher percentage of the population living at or below the Federal poverty level. With the limited
resources, staff are required to commute to rural communities for the provision of in-person services, when
virtual services are not an option for those in need.

Beyond the constraints on staffing resources, funding for training services is often exhausted early in the
program year. LWP prioritizes training investments, with a majority of training funds being allocated to
scholarships (Individual Training Accounts) and On-the-Job Training. LWP also uses a small amount of available
funding to support the needs of the business community through Customized Training Solutions for Businesses.

55



41D

Through LWP’s Customized Training Solutions for Businesses, we have created very successful models of
public/private partnerships. These partnerships provide a win for both the business community and Lane
County’s most marginalized residents. Businesses provide the skills training tailored to their workforce
development needs and partner with community-based organizations with targeted services (most social
supports and other supportive services) to provide the holistic supports that people face outside of their work
environment. Those who are receiving the training are employed from day one and are taught valuable skills.
The relationship is developed in a more supportive environment between the employer and the employee,
which results in an increase to the businesses retention rate. The employee also receives support with housing,
transportation, childcare, and other related services, which helps them to focus on getting to work each day and
learning.

4.2 20 CFR 679.560(b)(8): Workforce Development Activities — Part 2 Youth

(Includes WIOA Youth)

A. Provide an analysis of workforce development activities for youth in the local area including education
and training and including individuals with barriers to employment;

B. Describe specific strengths and weaknesses of these youth workforce development activities in the local
area to address the education and skill needs of the workforce and the employment needs of employers;

C. Describe the capacity to provide these youth workforce development activities in the local area to
address the education and skill needs of the workforce and the employment needs of employers;

D. Identify successful models and best practices in the local area for youth workforce development activities.

4.2 A

Lane Workforce Partnership (LWP) is dedicated to empowering the next generation through contract
administration and funding of the comprehensive Workforce Innovation & Opportunity Act (WIOA) programs
that equip youth and young adults, aged 14 to 24, with essential skills and experiences. The LWP WIOA Youth
Provider is Connected Lane County (CLC). CLC's mission is “to equip Lane County youth with the tools to help
them gain confidence in their abilities to see value in their decisions. We break down barriers, build bridges and
create strategic partnerships to connect youth with education and employment pathways to transform their
future potential. “

CLC initiatives are designed to support youth through a range of offerings, including work-readiness training,
valuable work experiences, and other career pathway opportunities. They cultivate a strong foundation with a
focus to prepare them for successful high school graduation, facilitate their transition to post-secondary
education, and ultimately guide them towards a career.

As the Local Workforce Development Board for Lane County, LWP has been a consistent partner to convene,
facilitate and invest in proven strategies to better align industry and education to prepare youth for future
employment and increase their access to work activities. Examples of how LWP staff are involved with Lane
County engagements include providing industry connections for local sectors to showcase workforce activities

56



and events with secondary and post-secondary education programs and development/coordination of local
work-based learning opportunities.

The following chart identifies some of the education focused boards and committees in which LWP staff
participates. This list grows considerably when you include board members and partner agencies.

K-12 K-12 & Post Secondary

Career Technical Education Consortium — CTEC Lane Community College/Lane ESD Regional Advisory
Committee Member

Springfield Chamber of Commerce Work Ready Multiple industry sector partnerships including:

Education Committee Construction, Transportation, Healthcare, Food &
Beverage, Technology, Creatives, and Childcare

Elevate Lane County Advisory Committee Associated General Contractors Workforce
Development Board

In partnership with local educators, community-based organizations and industry, LWP supports numerous
youth career connected activities, events, and work-based learning opportunities. Below are samples of each:

2022-23 YOUTH CAREER CONNECTED ACTIVITIES:

e Lane Pre-Apprenticeship Construction Technology (PACT)
In school year 2022-23, LANE PACT began its second year. This is a registered, BOLI-approved youth

apprenticeship program model that is used to prepare high school students to be qualified/competitive
applicants for a registered apprenticeship or begin employment in the skilled trades.

e 2023 Summer Educator Externships
In partnership with Associated General Contractors (AGC), a week-long series of construction

externships were offered to Lane County High School Counselors. These externships provide onsite
industry exposure of what is happening locally and in turn communicate this information to
students.

e 2023 Lane County Youth Trades Academy (YTA)
YTA offers Lane County students 8 weeks of training and hands on experience in four trades —

rotation among electrical, plumbing, carpentry and sheet metal/HVAC. A total of 23 high school
juniors and seniors participated in this experience.

2022-23 YOUTH CAREER CONNECTED EVENTS:

o Industry partners participated in multiple in-school presentations to Lane County High School and
Middle School Students.

o CLC coordinates job shadows, hands on learning opportunities, work experience, and industry tours

within a wide range of local sectors.

Lane Community College Hands on Career Day.

Manufacturing Career Day.

CLC hosted a Middle School Trades & Health Expo.

Lane County Sand and Gravel Tour

O O O O

57



2022-23 YOUTH CAREER CONNECTED WORK-BASED OPPORTUNITY:

e Constructing a Brighter Future
A total of 15 Lane County School Districts and approximately 200 students have been building 16
one room shelters and 23 sheds. The shelters serve as transitional housing for local residents who
are currently experiencing homelessness. The sheds are for 3 Lane County St Vincent de Paul
housing sites. These construction projects not only benefit the local community but create an
initiative that introduces young people to the multiple career pathways in high demand/high wage
construction trades employment opportunities.

4.2B

The number one strength of LWP’s youth programs lies in the strong collaboration of partners. Programs, such
as Constructing a Brighter Future would not be possible without the collective efforts of LWP, Lane ESD,
Connected Lane County, private businesses, and community-based organizations. The project combines work-
based learning in construction skills for youth participating in CTE programs with social support designed to
provide housing for the un-housed in Lane County.

In Lane County, we are also strengthened by the innovation of our youth Service Provider, Connected Lane
County. Connected Lane County has worked to expand youth services from a downtown Eugene location, Spark
on 7™, to Spark at Booth Kelly located in Springfield Oregon. Spark on 7" and Spark at Booth Kelly provide a
variety of programs that support our most vulnerable youth and young adults. These range from work ready
skills, job search assistance, to hard skills training, and paid work experience. Connected Lane County’s
programs, which are only partially funded by WIOA Youth funds, touch the lives of hundreds of youth and young
adults each year.

4.2C

As with LWP’s adult programs, lack of funding creates a significant challenge to meeting the needs of those
served in our youth programs. As mentioned above, the size of the county creates a need to expand youth
services into rural regions. Funding and staffing constraints prevent us from being able to do thisin a
meaningful way. During this past program year, LWP provided funding to Connected Lane County for the
purchase of a van that is used to transport youth/young adults to work related activities and work experiences.

42D
Connected Lane County’s programs of Elevate, Navigate, and Excelerator (spelled correctly per the program
name) combined with Spark create a promising learning environment for the youth of Lane County.

Elevate is the longest-standing program and provides career-connected learning opportunities for youth and
professional development opportunities for educators.

Navigate offers individualized work readiness and school re-engagement support services for youth facing
significant barriers to employment and education.

58



Excelerators are designed to prepare young people for work through accelerated education, training, and hands-
on skills application in growing career fields. Each Excelerator focuses on a different high-demand field,
including training, certifications, and relevant skills-building to prepare young people for careers. Excelerators
are focused in Manufacturing Technology, healthcare, and technology.

Spark is CLC’s most innovative program that connects community, education, and industry by providing youth
with a safe place to learn, innovate, and create. Spark on 7™ and Spark at Booth Kelly provide a valuable asset in
Lane County, which include gender neutral facilities, laundry machines, and drop-in hours.

4.3 20 CFR 679.560(b)(6): Employment and Training Activities

Considering the response in 4.1, provide a specific description and assessment of the type and availability of
adult and dislocated worker employment and training activities in the local area.

4.3

Through a strong partnership with the Oregon Employment Department (OED), and our local WIOA service
delivery partners, we have built a range of services for both businesses and jobseekers at WorkSource Oregon
Lane. The mix of services include a variety of workshops, one-on-one coaching, and training services.

Workshop topics include:
e Career Exploration
e Job search skills
e Resume Development
e How to Apply for Scholarships and Financial Aide
e Basic Computer Skills
e Essential Employability Skills (Bridges to Success Workshops)

Training services include:
e Scholarship for Occupational Skills Training
e On-the-job Training
e Customized Training Solutions

One-on-one coaching services cover:

e Assistance with developing job search tools
Development of Individual Employment Plans
e (Career exploration and navigation
Individual career advising

Supportive Services that may be provided as needed include (but may not be limited to):
e Transportation Assistance
e  Work tools and clothing
e Childcare Assistance
e Technology needed for training and/or job search activities

4.4 20 CFR 679.560(b)(18): Training Services

59



A. Describe how training services outlined in 20 CFR 682 will be provided through the use of individual
training accounts. If contracts for training services are used describe how they will be coordinated with
the use of individual training accounts under 20 CFR 682; and

B. Describe how the local board will ensure informed customer choice in the selection of training programs
regardless of how training services are to be provided.

44 A

In Lane County, the term scholarship is interchangeable with Individual Training Account (ITA). LWP follows the
WIOA regulations for ITAs in the administration of its scholarship training program. Each year, LWP sets individual
limits on the amount of funding awarded for each scholarship. The scholarship training fund limit is currently set
at $5,000. Training must be expected to end in one year or less from the date of the award. For participants
engaged in multiple year training programs, only the final year of training may be funded by program funds.

WorkSource Oregon Lane uses a competitive process for the application and award of scholarships. The
scholarship packet gives staff the opportunity to assess the job and training readiness of the customer along
with the labor market outlook in the area. In addition, staff utilize the National Career Readiness Certificate
(NCRC) to assess the educational level of the customer for success in a training program.

Training is focused on occupations in which the labor market data demonstrates demand or those that are in the
local area targeted sectors. Furthermore, the staff assesses the financial need along with the likelihood of
successful completion of the training program. WorkSource Lane staff work to align the customer’s preferred
training facility with their training plan and financial resources to ensure successful completion and job
placement.

LWP policy requires WorkSource staff to follow the priority of service provisions when determining scholarship
awards. Scholarship applications are scored, and all those meeting requirements are placed in order of priority.
Award decisions are then made based on funding availability. When there isn’t enough funding to award all
applications that meet requirements, only those applicants that meet priority are funded. In addition, they are
funded in the order in which the priority population is set out in the WIOA regulations, as follows:

Order of Priority: Priority must be provided in the following order:

1. First to veterans and eligible spouses who are also included in the groups given statutory priority
for WIOA Adult formula funding. This means that veterans and eligible spouses who are also
recipients of public assistance, other low-income individuals, or individuals who are basic skills
deficient receive first priority for services with WIOA Adult formula funds for individualized
career services and training services.

2. Second, to non-covered persons (that is, individuals who are not veterans or eligible spouses)
who are included in the groups given priority for WIOA adult formula funds.

3. Third, to veterans and eligible spouses who are not included in WIOA's priority groups.

Fourth, priority populations established by the Governor and/or Local WDB.

5. Last, to non-covered persons outside the groups given priority under WIOA.

e

448B

LWP does not enter into contractual training agreements with local training providers. All training is provided via
the scholarship (Individual Training Account) process, on-the- job training with the local business community, or
customized training solutions with the local business community.

60



To ensure maximum customer choice, WorkSource Oregon Lane staff work with each customer to create an
individual employment plan. Staff explain the available training options as well as the financial resources
available to support the individual in the pursuit of a new career. Staff guide the customer in accessing the State
of Oregon managed Eligible Training Provider List (ETPL) to ensure customers are aware of all available training
options located physically in Lane County, easily accessible from a neighboring county, or available through virtual
on-line training.

4.5 20 CFR 679.560(b)(7): Coordination with Rapid Response Activities

Describe how the local board will coordinate workforce investment activities carried out in the local area with
statewide rapid response activities.

4.5

Lane Workforce Partnership follows, and requires its Service Providers to follow, the State of Oregon’s Rapid
Response Policy. Service Providers are also required to follow Lane Workforce Partnership’s Rapid Response
policy, which closely aligns with the State of Oregon policy as well as the WIOA regulations.

The local workforce board acts as a conduit for businesses that find themselves in need of rapid response
services. LWP works with its business services provider, Collaborative Economic Development Oregon, to
expand awareness of rapid response services within the business community. This outreach includes awareness
of services related to layoff aversion strategies designed to help a business that is struggling and at risk of
conducting layoffs.

Our relationships within the business community, as well as our industry sector partnerships, are used to
identify and gather information for early warning of a potential layoff. LWP also follows economic conditions
caused by events such as natural disasters, to mobilize layoff aversion and rapid response services to the
impacted business and their workers.

LWP’s Adult/DW WIOA Title | service provider is contracted to provide rapid response services to local
businesses and their impacted workers when a layoff does occur. Rapid response is a service delivered to Lane
County businesses that has provided notification of a layoff or closure. Services vary depending on the type of
layoff, the number of individuals affected, and the time made available to deliver services.

LWP requires its service provider to document all local rapid response services into the State of Oregon’s ORRATS
for tracking purposes.

LWP prioritizes the need for rapid response services by allocating resources to staff dedicated to monitoring
economic conditions, potential layoff events, and the provision of services when an event occurs. Ifitis
determined that a layoff can be averted through the training or skills upgrade of a business’s workforce, LWP
will work with the businesses to determine the best training method to accomplish this. If funding is available,
LWP will offer work-based training, such as OJT or customized training in an effort to avert the layoff. LWP
measures its success of these programs through the number of employees trained and retained by the
businesses.

The following describes the sequence of pre-layoff/rapid response activities that may be provided:
1. Initial notification of layoff or closure: The pre-layoff process begins when the DW unit local or state

liaison receives a formal WARN notice or similar information through informal channels (e.g., a
phone call or newspaper article). State and local DW staff will make contact and share information of

61



layoff/closure via phone or email with state or local partners. The provision of services may also be
initiated when dislocated workers enter the WorkSource center and report to staff that they have
lost their job due to being laid off.

2. Initial on-site meeting with company representative and worker representative: The goal is to
complete the investigation and be onsite with the company within 48 hours, where practical.

3. Transition team: If time allows and staff are notified prior to the layoff or closure, a transition team
is established to assist in the delivery of re-employment/transitional services. The transition team is
comprised of:

Oregon Employment Department’s Unemployment Insurance representative(s)

Oregon Health Marketplace representative(s)

WIOA Rapid Response Coordinator
WorkSource Oregon Lane Business Services representative

Union representative and/or labor liaison (if applicable)

-0 o0 oTp

Trade Act representative (if applicable).

4. Employee survey: A survey of the workers is conducted to obtain their direct input concerning the
types of services they would like to see made available.

5. Employee information session: Ideally, members of the local DW and/or the state DW unit
coordinate these sessions at the worksite. However, in instances when the layoff has occurred prior
to the Rapid Response team being notified or times when the business is not able to accommodate
on-site sessions, the sessions are held at the WorkSource Center.

6. Pre-layoff services planning: Information gathered from employees, company management, and the
union (if applicable) will determine the plan for services to affected workers.

7. Employer feedback: Follow up.

4.6 20 CFR 679.560(b)(10): Coordination with Supportive Services

Describe how the local board will coordinate WIOA Title | workforce investment activities in the local area
with the provision of transportation and other appropriate supportive services.

4.6

In Lane County, supportive services are the use of funds to pay for services that are necessary to enable an
individual to participate in activities authorized under the Workforce Innovation and Opportunity Act (WIOA)
and special grant funds issued by Lane Workforce Partnership. Supportive services may only be provided to
eligible individuals who are registered in the State of Oregon’s WorkSource Oregon MIS System and who have
completed documentation in I-Trac and are specifically enrolled in Individualized Career or Training services.
There must be documentation in the participant file in Lane Workforce Partnership’s electronic document
management system, eBridge, that supports the participant’s eligibility and enrollment as well as
documentation that they are unable to obtain support services through their own means or through other
programs which provide such services. Supportive Services are only allowable when they are necessary to
enable eligible individuals to participate or remain in authorized training or job search services.

Supportive Services payments are only to be made in accordance with the Lane Workforce Partnership’s
Supportive Services Policy. The requirements for Supportive Services are as follows:

62



e The service is necessary for the participant to successfully complete training and/or career services, which
includes job search assistance.

e Supportive services are capped at, and may not exceed, $1,500 per person. This cap is inclusive of all
supportive services and funds combined.

WorkSource Oregon

4.7 WorkSource Oregon/One-Stop Delivery System (Oregon Requirement)

List all WorkSource Oregon (WSO) Centers in the local area and provide for each site the:

e Location (City);

e WSO Center Type (Comprehensive, Affiliate, Partner Site/Specialized);

e List of Partners Represented; and

e Means of Service Availability by each Partner (physically present, direct linkage through
technology, or referral only).

Each Center must be consistent with the One-Stop Center definitions and requirements contained in the One-
Stop Certification Policy (including Attachment A - WSO Centers and Other Sites — Requirements Matrix,
Attachment B - One-Stop Center Certification Minimum Requirements, Attachment C - Certification
Documentation Requirements, and Attachment D - References.) and the Memorandum of Understanding and
Cost Sharing Policy (and attachments).

4.7
WorkSource Oregon Lane, located in Eugene, is the region’s only comprehensive center. Partners represented

in the center include:

Physically Present:
e WIOATTitle | — Adult and Dislocated Workers Services, provided by Lane County Health & Human
Services under contract with Lane Workforce Partnership
o  WIOA Title Il — Wagner Peyser — Oregon Employment Department’s Workforce Services
e Easter Seals of Oregon — CSEP Title V Program
e Oregon Employment Department’s Veterans Programs

Direct Linkage and Referral:

e WIOATitle Il - Lane Community College
e Department of Human Services
o Self-Sufficiency Programs
o Vocational Rehabilitation Programs

Affiliate Centers - All partners listed below have a physical presence in the affiliate center. All affiliate centers
have electronic linkage and/or a referral connection to the comprehensive center and all partner services.

WorkSource Oregon McKenzie Center — located in Eugene

63


https://www.wioainoregon.org/uploads/3/9/2/2/39223489/final.wioa.onestopcertification.2020.pdf
https://www.wioainoregon.org/uploads/3/9/2/2/39223489/final.wioa.onestopcertification.2020.pdf
https://www.wioainoregon.org/uploads/3/9/2/2/39223489/170609a_final_attachment_a_-_oregon_one_stop_centers_and_sites_requirements.pdf
https://www.wioainoregon.org/uploads/3/9/2/2/39223489/170609b_final_attachment_b_-_one-stop_center_certification_minimum_requirements.pdf
https://www.wioainoregon.org/uploads/3/9/2/2/39223489/final.wioa.attchc.onestopcert.2020.pdf
https://www.wioainoregon.org/uploads/3/9/2/2/39223489/final.wioa.attchc.onestopcert.2020.pdf
https://www.wioainoregon.org/uploads/3/9/2/2/39223489/final.wioa.attchc.onestopcert.2020.pdf
https://www.wioainoregon.org/uploads/3/9/2/2/39223489/170609d_final_attachment_d_-_references.pdf
https://www.wioainoregon.org/uploads/3/9/2/2/39223489/170403_-_attachment_b_-_references.pdf
https://www.wioainoregon.org/uploads/3/9/2/2/39223489/final.wioa.mou.2020.pdf
https://www.wioainoregon.org/uploads/3/9/2/2/39223489/final.wioa.mou.2020.pdf

o Partners in the center include:
o DHS Self-Sufficiency Program
o DHS Vocational Rehabilitation Program

WorkSource Oregon Cottage Grove — located in Cottage Grove

o Partners in the center include:
o DHS Self-Sufficiency Program
o DHS Vocational Rehabilitation Program

WorkSource Oregon Florence Center — located in Florence

o Partners in the center include:
o Oregon Employment Department- Workforce Services
o WIOATitle | Adult and Dislocated Worker Services

WorkSource Oregon Springfield — located in Springfield

o Partnersin the center include:
o DHS Self-Sufficiency Program
o DHS Vocational Rehabilitation Program

4.8 One-Stop Operator Procurement (Oregon Requirement)

A. Identify the One-Stop Operator.

B. Describe the procedures and timelines for future procurement of a One-Stop Operator consistent with
the One-Stop Operator Procurement Policy (including Attachment A - Process for Local Workforce
Development Boards as One-Stop Operator).

4.8 A.
The current One-Stop Operator is the Oregon Manufacturing Extension Partnership (OMEP).

4.8 B.

The One-Stop Operator is selected through a procurement process. The current procurement is for a four-year
period which began during program year 2021/2022. The next procurement is scheduled to be conducted in the
Spring of 2025 for a four-year period to begin on July 1, 2025, for Program Year 2025/2026.

4.9 One-Stop Center Certification (Oregon Requirement)

Identify the established procedures for ongoing certification of one-stop centers consistent with One-Stop
Certification Policy (including Attachment A - WSO Centers and Other Sites — Requirements Matrix,
Attachment B - One-Stop Center Certification Minimum Requirements, Attachment C - Certification
Documentation Requirements, and Attachment D - References.

64


https://www.wioainoregon.org/uploads/3/9/2/2/39223489/onestopoperatorprocurement.repost.2022.docx
https://www.wioainoregon.org/uploads/3/9/2/2/39223489/170609a_final_-_attachment_a_-_one-stop_operator_procurement_policy_-_local_board_process.pdf
https://www.wioainoregon.org/uploads/3/9/2/2/39223489/170609a_final_-_attachment_a_-_one-stop_operator_procurement_policy_-_local_board_process.pdf
https://www.wioainoregon.org/uploads/3/9/2/2/39223489/final.wioa.onestopcertification.2020.pdf
https://www.wioainoregon.org/uploads/3/9/2/2/39223489/final.wioa.onestopcertification.2020.pdf
https://www.wioainoregon.org/uploads/3/9/2/2/39223489/170609a_final_attachment_a_-_oregon_one_stop_centers_and_sites_requirements.pdf
https://www.wioainoregon.org/uploads/3/9/2/2/39223489/170609b_final_attachment_b_-_one-stop_center_certification_minimum_requirements.pdf
https://www.wioainoregon.org/uploads/3/9/2/2/39223489/final.wioa.attchc.onestopcert.2020.pdf
https://www.wioainoregon.org/uploads/3/9/2/2/39223489/final.wioa.attchc.onestopcert.2020.pdf
https://www.wioainoregon.org/uploads/3/9/2/2/39223489/final.wioa.attchc.onestopcert.2020.pdf
https://www.wioainoregon.org/uploads/3/9/2/2/39223489/170609d_final_attachment_d_-_references.pdf
https://www.wioainoregon.org/uploads/3/9/2/2/39223489/170403_-_attachment_b_-_references.pdf

4.9

Lane Workforce Partnership follows the State of Oregon guidance and policy for certification of the One-Stop
Centers. The most recent certification of the centers was completed during the summer of 2023, which certified
the comprehensive and affiliate centers listed above.

In Lane County, the LWP Director of Workforce Programs and the One-Stop Operator are tasked with
completing the certification of the centers. The process includes a physical site visit to each of the centers,
interviews with center management, and a determination of the types of services available physically, virtually,
or through a referral.

4.10 WorkSource Oregon Operational Standards (Oregon Requirement)

A. Do all Comprehensive and Affiliate WSO Centers in the local area provide services that meet or exceed
the WorkSource Oregon Operational Standards effective June 9, 2023?
B. If not, please describe the strategies to bring WSO Centers into compliance.

4.11 20 CFR 679.560(b)(11): Improving Service Delivery

Describe plans, assurances, and strategies for maximizing coordination, improving service delivery, and
avoiding duplication of Wagner-Peyser Act (29 U.S.C. 49 et seq.) services and other services provided through
WorkSource Oregon (as defined).

4.11

The Local Leadership Team works collaboratively on the alignment of workforce services in Lane County. Asa
component of WorkSource Oregon Standards implementation, the LLT is consistently working toward
continuous process improvement. This includes a review of customer flow, direct participant service delivery,
gaps in services, and partner responsibilities as well as trending needs of the local area.

Physical and Programmatic Accessibility

4.12 20 CFR 679.560(b)(5)(iii): Accessibility

A. Describe how entities within WorkSource Oregon (as defined), including one-stop operators and one-stop
partners, will comply with 29 CFR, Part 38, if applicable, and applicable provisions of the Americans with
Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. 12101 et seq.) regarding the physical accessibility of facilities, programs

65


https://wsostandards.weebly.com/uploads/5/8/7/9/58796091/wso_operational_standards_2023.pdf

and services, technology, and materials for individuals with disabilities.

B. Describe how entities within WorkSource Oregon (as defined), including one-stop operators and one-stop
partners, will comply with 29 CFR, Part 38, if applicable, and applicable provisions of the Americans with
Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. 12101 et seq.) regarding the programmatic accessibility of facilities,
programs and services, technology, and materials for individuals with disabilities.

C. Considering the response in A. and B., describe how entities with WorkSource Oregon (as defined)
provide staff training and support for addressing the needs of individuals with disabilities.

4.12 A.

WorkSource Lane’s Oregon Employment Department’s Area Manager conducts an ADA review of the building
for physical accessibility. The Local Leadership Team partners (Oregon Commission for the Blind and Oregon
Department of Human Services/Vocational Rehabilitation) support programmatic accessibility.

4,12 B.

LWP and the OED Area Manager regularly assess the accessibility of the facilities, equipment, technology, and
materials (including workshop materials) to ensure they are view through the board-adopted equity and
inclusion lens and are accessible to all population groups.

4.12C.

The Department of Vocational Rehabilitation staff support staff in the provision of services in WorkSource Lane.
Training sessions are provided as needed on topics related to meeting the needs of individuals with disabilities.
Staff are trained in the use of adaptive technology and access to language lines. Staff are also required to
attend Trauma Informed Care training.

4.13 20 CFR 679.560(b)(5)(ii): Virtual/Remote Access

Describe how the local board will facilitate access to services provided through WorkSource Oregon (as
defined), including in remote areas, through the use of technology and other means.

4.13

LWP certified the DHS offices in Cottage Grove and Springfield as an affiliate WorkSource Center in 2017, thus
enabling residents of rural communities to access WorkSource services and attend job search workshops. OED
staff is stationed at the affiliate WorkSource Center in Florence and WIOA Title | staff provide services in
Florence at least once per week, which includes the expansion of On-the-Job Training services in the rural
community.

WorkSource Oregon Lane staff assist rural areas by offering more services virtually, which includes career
services, career exploration, development of job search tools, and workshops that are provided state-wide by
OED. These services are available from any location across the county in which the customer can access the
internet.

All WIOA Title | staff are equipped with technology that allows them to provide services from any location to any
location via the internet. Staff have “hot spots” that enable them to access the internet in areas of the county

66



that remain internet deserts. Staff are using platforms, such as GoToMeeting, to meet with customers virtually.
Staff will continue to use virtual services to enable the workforce system to expand services to rural Lane
County.

One constraint in Lane County is the lack of awareness and access to services for rural communities and some
special population groups. Our solution to this is the development of the Benefits Navigator Consortia, which
will be tasked with building awareness and the creation of a referral system.

67



Section 5: Compliance

Please answer the questions in Section 5 in ten (10) pages or less. Most responses should be staff-driven as each
are focused on the organization’s compliance with federal or state requirements. Provide a response for all
items identified. Required documents can be included as attachments.

Local Board

5.1 20 CFR 679.320: Local Board Membership

(TEGL 27-14, cited in Policy, is no longer active)

Complete the Local Board Membership Roster form provided (same as Attachment C - Local Board
Membership Roster Template) consistent with Oregon WTDB Policy Local Board Membership Criteria
(including Attachment A - Local Board Membership Requirements, Attachment B - LWDB Membership
Calculator (Excel), Attachment C - Local Board Membership Roster (template) (updated 11/1/2021), and
Attachment D - References. Submit the Local Board Membership Roster form as an attachment.

5.2 20 CFR 679.320: Local Board Membership Policy

(TEGL 27-14, cited in Policy, is no longer active)

Submit as an attachment the local board policy and process for nomination and appointment of board
members compliant with Oregon WTDB Policy Local Board Membership Criteria (including Attachment A -
Local Board Membership Requirements, Attachment B - LWDB Membership Calculator (Excel), Attachment C -
Local Board Membership Roster (template) (updated 11/1/2021), and Attachment D - References.

5.3 20 CFR 679.310(a): Local Board Certification

Complete Local Workforce Development Board Certification Request form provided (available in October
2023 through Basecamp) consistent with WIOA Title | Policy Appointment and Certification of Local
Workforce Development Boards (including Attachment A - LWDB Certification Request Letter Template,
Attachment B - LWDB Board Certification Process, and Attachment C - References). Submit the Local
Workforce Development Board Certification Request form as an attachment.

5.4 Equal Opportunity Officer (Oregon Requirement)

Provide the name, organization, and contact information of the designated equal opportunity officer for
WIOA within the local area.

68


https://www.wioainoregon.org/uploads/3/9/2/2/39223489/wtdblwdbmembershipcriteria.final.01122022.pdf
https://www.wioainoregon.org/uploads/3/9/2/2/39223489/attachment_a_-_local_board_membership_requirements_107b.pdf
https://www.wioainoregon.org/uploads/3/9/2/2/39223489/attachment_b_-_2015_lwb_membership_calculator_107b.xlsx
https://www.wioainoregon.org/uploads/3/9/2/2/39223489/attachment_b_-_2015_lwb_membership_calculator_107b.xlsx
https://www.wioainoregon.org/uploads/3/9/2/2/39223489/attachment_c_-_local_board_membership_roster.11012021.docx
https://www.wioainoregon.org/uploads/3/9/2/2/39223489/attachment_d_-_references_107b.pdf
https://www.wioainoregon.org/uploads/3/9/2/2/39223489/wtdblwdbmembershipcriteria.final.01122022.pdf
https://www.wioainoregon.org/uploads/3/9/2/2/39223489/attachment_a_-_local_board_membership_requirements_107b.pdf
https://www.wioainoregon.org/uploads/3/9/2/2/39223489/attachment_a_-_local_board_membership_requirements_107b.pdf
https://www.wioainoregon.org/uploads/3/9/2/2/39223489/attachment_b_-_2015_lwb_membership_calculator_107b.xlsx
https://www.wioainoregon.org/uploads/3/9/2/2/39223489/attachment_c_-_local_board_membership_roster.11012021.docx
https://www.wioainoregon.org/uploads/3/9/2/2/39223489/attachment_c_-_local_board_membership_roster.11012021.docx
https://www.wioainoregon.org/uploads/3/9/2/2/39223489/attachment_d_-_references_107b.pdf
https://www.wioainoregon.org/uploads/3/9/2/2/39223489/local_board_appointment_and_certification_policy_final.pdf
https://www.wioainoregon.org/uploads/3/9/2/2/39223489/local_board_appointment_and_certification_policy_final.pdf
https://www.wioainoregon.org/uploads/3/9/2/2/39223489/attachment_a_-_lwdb_certification_request_letter.docx
https://www.wioainoregon.org/uploads/3/9/2/2/39223489/wioa.localboardcertification.attachb.2020.pdf
https://www.wioainoregon.org/uploads/3/9/2/2/39223489/attachment_c_-_references_107c.pdf

5.4
Cindy Perry, Director of Workforce Programs. Lane Workforce Partnership. 1401 Willamette St., Second Floor,
Eugene, OR 97401. 541-255-8116 / cindy@laneworkforce.org

5.5 Local Board Documents (Oregon Requirement)

Provide completed copies of the following local board approval forms as an attachment:
e Statement of Concurrence
e Partner Statement of Agreement

e Assurances

WIOA compliant versions of these documents are available in October 2023 through Basecamp.

Required Elements

5.6 20 CFR 679.560(b)(14): Responsible Entity for Grant Fund Disbursement

Identify the entity responsible for the disbursal of grant funds described in 20 CFR 679.420, as determined by
the chief elected official or the Governor under the same section (20 CFR 679.420).

5.6
Lane Workforce Partnership has been designated by the local Chief Elected Official as the fiscal agent for Lane
County.

5.7 20 CFR 679.560(b)(15): Competitive Process for Subgrants

A. Describe how the local board remains a neutral broker of adult, dislocated worker, and youth services
consistent with Oregon Executive Order 13-08 by describing the competitive process that will be used to
award subgrants and contracts for WIOA Title | activities.

B. Submit an organization chart as an attachment that depicts a clear separation of duties between the
board and service provision.

C. Provide the current names of contracted organizations and the duration of each contract for WIOA Title |
Adult, Dislocated Worker, and Youth services.

5.7 A.

LWP uses a competitive procurement process to select its service providers and One-Stop Operator. The service
provider’s procurements are for a five-year period and the One-Stop Operator Procurement is for a four-year
period. Contracts are written for a one-year period with the option to extend the agreements for four additional
one-year periods (three additional one-year periods for the One-Stop Operator) based on meeting performance
outcomes, monitoring results, available funding, and legislative developments.

69


https://www.oregon.gov/gov/eo/eo-13-08.pdf

5.7 B.
See attached organizational charts.

5.7C.

Lane Workforce Partnership is in contract with Connected Lane County for the provision of Youth formula
funded program services until June 30, 2025. LWP intends to issue a request for proposal for youth formula
funded services in the spring of 2025. LWP plans to release a request for proposal in the spring of 2025 for youth
formula funded services for contracts that begin July 1, 2025.

Lane Workforce Partnership is in contract with Lane County Health and Human Services for the delivery of WIOA
adult and dislocated worker formula funded program services until June 30, 2026. LWP is currently planning to
release a request for proposals for adult/DW formula funded services in the spring of 2026 for contracts that
begin July 1, 2026.

Lane Workforce Partnership is in contract with the Oregon Manufacturing Extension Partnership (OMEP) for the
provision of One-Stop Operator services until June 30, 2025. LWP is preparing to release a request for proposals
for the One-Stop Operator in the spring of 2025 for contracts that begin July 1, 2025.

5.8 20 CFR 679.560(b)(12): WIOA Title Il Application Review

Describe how the local board will carry out the review of local applications submitted under Title Il consistent
with 20 CFR 679.370(n)(1).

5.8

The local Title Il provider is on the local workforce board and participated in the local workforce strategic
planning session. In addition to those activities described above that cross both secondary and post-secondary
education, both agencies will work closely together to make sure that the plans are aligned, and that
collaboration continues to ensure that Title Il activities are represented and aligned with Title | services within
the workforce system.

5.9 20 CFR 679.560(b)(13): Local Cooperative Agreements

Submit as an attachment executed cooperative agreements which define how all local service providers,
including additional providers, will carry out the requirements for integration of and access to the entire set of
services available in WorkSource Oregon (as defined) to enhance the provision of services to individuals with
disabilities and other individuals, such as cross training of staff, technical assistance, use and sharing of
information, cooperative efforts with employers, and other efforts at cooperation, collaboration, and
coordination consistent with 20 CFR 679.370(n)(3).

See attached: Memorandum of Understanding between required partners.

70



5.10 20 CFR 679.560(b)(5)(iv): Memorandum of Understanding and Infrastructure Funding Agreement

Describe the roles and resource contributions of the WorkSource Oregon partners by providing as an
attachment the current Memorandum of Understanding and Infrastructure Funding Agreement for the local
area.

5.11 20 CFR 679.560(b)(16): Negotiated Performance

Provide as an attachment, the local levels of performance negotiated with the Governor and chief elected
official consistent with 20 CFR 677.205-230, to be used to measure the performance of the local area and to
be used by the local board for measuring the performance of the local fiscal agent (where appropriate),
eligible providers under WIOA Title | subtitle B, and the WorkSource Oregon delivery system in the local area.

5.12 20 CFR 679.560(b)(21): Priority of Service

Describe the direction given by the Governor (WTDB Priority of Service Policy) and the local board to the one-
stop operator to ensure priority for adult career and training services will be given to recipients of public
assistance, other low-income individuals, and individuals who are basic skills deficient consistent with WIOA
sec. 134(c)(3)(E) and 20 CFR 680.600.

5.12
Lane Workforce Partnership’s Priority of Service Policy, found here aligns with WIOA regulations and state policy
to ensure priority of service requirements are met.

5.13 20 CFR 679.560(b)(19): Public Comment Period

Describe the process used by the local board, consistent with 20 CFR 679.550(b), to provide a 30-day public
comment period prior to submission of the plan, including an opportunity to have input into the development
of the local plan, particularly for representatives of businesses, education, and labor organizations.

5.13

Lane Workforce Partnership conducted five community focus group meetings to solicit community input for the
development of the Board’s 2024 — 2028 Strategic Plan. These meetings, attended by diverse community
stakeholders, were hosted in three rural communities (Junction City, Florence, Cottage Grove) and two metro
communities (Eugene, Springfield) within Lane County.

The 2024 — 2028 Local Plan was published on Lane Workforce Partnership’s website for a 30-day period

beginning January 28, 2024. An announcement regarding the 30-day public comment period was posted across
all of Lane Workforce Partnership’s social media platforms and included in various local media outlets .

71


https://www.wioainoregon.org/uploads/3/9/2/2/39223489/wtdb_-_priority_of_service.final.12142021.pdf
https://www.laneworkforce.org/wp-content/uploads/WIOA-Priority-of-Service-for-Individual-Career-Services-and-Training-Services.pdf

5.14 Compliance Concerns (Oregon Requirement)

O

State any concerns the local board has with ensuring the compliance components listed below are in place.
Copies of documents are not required at this time but may be requested during monitoring.

e Administration of funds

e Agreement between all counties and other local governments, if applicable, establishing the
consortium of local elected officials

e Agreement between the Local Elected Officials and the Workforce Development Board

e Local Workforce Development Board Bylaws

e Code of Conduct

e Approved Budget

e Required policies on the following topics:

e Professional Services Contract for Staffing/Payroll Services, if applicable
e Contract for I-Trac Data Management System

Financial Management including cost allocation plan, internal controls, cash
management, receipts of goods, cost reimbursement, inventory and equipment, program
income, travel reimbursement, audit requirements and resolution, annual report,
property management, debt collection, procurement, allowable costs

Program Management including equal opportunity for customers, supportive services,
needs related payments, file management, eligibility, self-sufficiency criteria, individual
training accounts, layoff assistance, priority of services, grievance for eligible training
providers list, determination of an insufficient number of eligible training providers in the
local area (if applicable), transitional jobs, stipends, training verification/refunds,

Risk Management including records retention and public access, public records requests,
monitoring, grievance, incident, disaster recovery plan

Board Policies including board appointment, board resolutions, conflict of interest
Human Resources including employee classification, benefits, holidays and PTO,
recruitment and selection, employee development, discipline, layoffs, terminations, and
severance, drug policy, sexual harassment, equal opportunity/non-discrimination

5.14

The local board has no compliance concerns.

72



Table of Contents

Introduction

Goal 1:

Goal 2:

Goal 3:

Goal 4:

Goal 5:

Prepare workers for self-sufficiency employment in a new and
changing economy.

e Personalized Services for Job Seekers in Targeted industries Page 76
e Performance Outcomes for WIOA Programs Page 76
e Business Engagement Services Page 77
e Fund Development Pages 77 - 78

Connect Individuals to education, skill-building, and employment
opportunities in occupations most impacted.

e Training Investments Page 79
e Research Impact of Aging/Retiring Workforce Page 80

Prepare our youth for future employment.
e Connect Industry Workforce Needs to Education Pages 81 - 82
e WIOA Youth/Young Adult Paid Work Experience Page 83
e Oregon Youth Employment Program Pages 83 - 84

Catalyze the community around diversity equity and inclusion (DEI)
to expand workforce leadership and participation opportunities for all.

e Increase Service Utilization Among Targeted Populations Pages 85 - 88
e Vocational Rehabilitation Services Workforce Metrics Page 89

Align strategic partnerships to expand our collective capacity to address
systemic workforce challenges.

e Community Engagement and Industry Sector Partnerships Pages 89 — 90

e Industry Engagements Pages 90-91
e Engage Relevant Agencies and Programs Pages 91-92

Page 74

Pages 75 -78

Pages 78 - 80

Pages 80 - 84

Pages 84 — 89

Pages 89 — 92

73



Introduction:

Lane Workforce Partnership (LWP) is the designated local Workforce Development Board for Lane
County, Oregon. The local board is charged with making targeted investments in the community utilizing
funding in line with its mission: To meet the workforce needs of employers and individuals through
partnership and innovation.

This report is a compilation of outcomes achieved through two primary investments in Lane County: 1)
Adult and Dislocated workforce services; and 2) At-Risk Youth/Young Adult programs.

WorkSource Oregon Lane is the primary location in which Lane Workforce Partnership invests federal
funds to deliver employment services to adults and dislocated workers. Lane Workforce Partnership has
distributed $629,272.66 to Lane County Health and Human Services for the period of July 1, 2023,
through December 31, 2023, for program services throughout Lane County.

In addition to the funds invested by Lane Workforce Partnership, the following partners invest funds and
resources each year through a committed partnership to create a strong workforce system for Lane
County:

Department of Human Services
o Self-sufficiency Programs
o Vocational Rehabilitation Services
e Lane Community College
Oregon Employment Department
Easter Seals of Oregon

LWP contracts with Connected Lane County to serve at-risk youth and young adults in Lane County. The
primary focus of this investment is to create or expand programs that will increase the graduation rates,
connect youth to higher education opportunities, and expand work experience opportunities. LWP
invested $476,344.51 in federal funds targeted to serve at-risk youth. Connected Lane County expanded
their service locations with the opening of Spark at Booth Kelly in Springfield.

During the development of the 2020-2024 local strategic plan, specific goals and strategic objectives
were developed to align the work of the LWP with the work of Oregon Workforce and Talent
Development Board within the context of Lane County’s local economic and workforce environment.

74


https://www.laneworkforce.org/wp-content/uploads/LWP-WIOA-Local-Plan-2.22.21.pdf

Year-End Performance Report
July 1, 2023 - December 31, 2023

This report serves as documentation of the effectiveness of workforce development services, and the
implementation of the Local Strategic Plan. Elements from this report will be updated semi-annually and
posted on the Lane Workforce Partnership’s website.

Note: The following strategies related to Goals 2 and 5 are a continuous work in progress that require
ongoing research:

Goal 2 (Strategy 2): Analyze the impact of Al/technology on worker displacement.

Goal 5 (Strategy 2): Analyze impacts of technology on industry employment and on workforce
training.

Goal 5 (Strategy 4): Analyze, gather, and disseminate projected data about job
evolution/changes/growth.

The constantly changing landscape of technology in the workforce warrants constant and in-depth
review. The 2022 State of the Workforce Report addresses the labor market in Lane County with an
analysis of projected changes and growth in Lane County’s industries. The report also focuses on the
people who are in the workforce. With the evolution of artificial intelligence and its impact on the
workforce, what we are seeing is that workers continue to be in high demand. Increased automation
and the use of robotics seems to have enhanced many jobs rather than eliminate them. The integration
of artificial intelligence and human interaction is one companies seem to embrace as they continue to
evolve their product lines.

Program Year 2022/2023 Goals and Progress Measures

Goal 1: Prepare workers for self-sufficiency employment in a new and changing economy.

Strategies:
1. Analyze worker self-sufficiency data driven by systemic challenges (e.g., housing, childcare,
legislative policy).
2. Be the community voice for individual workers seeking self-sufficiency employment.
3. Broker relationships to create solutions to address identified systemic challenges.
4. Build capacity to support innovative solutions by seeking incremental funds for investment.

Progress Measures:

Performance Outcomes for WIOA Youth, Adult, and Dislocated Worker programs
Fund development
Analysis of Lane County’s economy as published in the 2022 State of the Workforce Report

75


https://www.laneworkforce.org/wp-content/uploads/2022-State-of-the-Workforce.pdf

WorkSource Lane Personalized Services for Job Seekers in Targeted Industries

The first step toward receiving services at the WorkSource Center is to have a “Welcome” Conversation
with staff. During the welcome conversation, customers are informed of the services available to them.
From July 2023 to December 2023, 4,915 new customers came into the Center seeking services. This
number increased by 1,275 customers compared to the prior PY2022 July — December total.

Completed Welcomes: Regular + RESEA
(WorkSource Lane Office)

700
598
600 547 518 547 553 537
498 494 497 493

500 444 423

400

300

200

100

0
July August September October November December
M # of Job Seekers (PY22)  m# of Job Seekers (PY23)
Performance Outcomes for WIOA Programs
WIOA Youth Performance
Measure Program Year 2023
WIOA Youth Goal Actual Q1 Percent of Goal
Employment Rate Q2 73.3% 57.4% 78.3%
Employment Rate Q4 78.6% 71.1% 90.4%
Median Earnings Q2 S4,604 $5,756 125.0%
Credential Attainment Rate 66.9% 57.7% 86.2%
Measurable Skill Gain 48.3% 41.6% 86.1%
WIOA Adult Performance

Measure Program Year 2023
WIOA Adult Goal Actual Q1 Percent of Goal
Employment Rate Q2 73.4% 80.4% 109.5%
Employment Rate Q4 69.8% 77.2% 110.6%
Median Earnings Q2 $7,160 $9,636 134.5%
Credential Attainment Rate 89.2% 84.6% 94.8%
Measurable Skill Gain 83.8% 47.7% 56.9%

76



WIOA Dislocated Worker Performance

Measure Program Year 2023

WIOA Dislocated Worker Goal Actual Q1 Percent of Goal
Employment Rate Q2 74.4% 78.0% 104.8%
Employment Rate Q4 71.6% 71.3% 99.5%

Median Earnings Q2 $7,461 $9,766 130.9%
Credential Attainment Rate 90.9% 78.3% 86.1%
Measurable Skill Gain 89.7% 41.0% 45.7%

Business Engagement Services
e WorkSource Lane Staff Assisted Hires from Job Postings — resulted in 45 hires

e WorkSource Lane Business Engagement Events — 5 events with 34 participating businesses
e Number of Businesses Participating in OJT and Work Experience - 25

Fund Development

PY 2023/2024 Fund Development

July 1, 2023 - December 31, 2023
H1B Visa Infrastructure DOL July 7, 2023 $1,999,999 | Not Selected
Critical Sector Job Quality DOL July 17, 2023 S446,786 Awarded

Driving Prosperity
October 2022 - June 2024

Lane Workforce Partnership partnered with the Southern Oregon Workforce Investment Board on a Good
Jobs Challenge grant through the Department of Commerce. The project, Driving Prosperity, will train 100
commercial truck drivers in Lane County over a two-year period.

Year to Date Year to Date Year One Year Two Total Contract
Goal Actual Goal Goal Goal
100 73 50 50 100

Driving Prosperity
Awarded $896,873

Applicant Name Contracted Amount Spent
Lane County $130,000.00 $117,634.82
Babb/Delta Construction $32,500.00 SO
Siuslaw Broadband/Hyak $52,000.00 SO
Sierra Pacific Industries $32,500.00 SO

77



Oregon Health Authority HOWTO Program

Lane Workforce Partnership partnered with Nurturely and received funding from Oregon Health Authority
HOWTO program. The goal of this project is to promote perinatal health equity through the certification,
inclusion, and sustainability of Black, Brown, Indigenous, and Spanish-Speaking doulas in the Lane County
workforce. Our project will increase racial and cultural inclusion in the current healthcare systems, by
bolstering the diversity of the Doula workforce through Doula Training, Doula Transition, Doula
Sustainability, and Doula Support.

Nurturely Performance through December 31, 2023

Doula Training Total Planned Performance Actual Performance
Contract Enrollment Goal through 12/31/23 through 12/31/23
45 16 16

Note: Nurturely is planning two cohorts for Program Year 2023/2024, which will result in
enrollments being at or above target by the end of year two of this project.

Applicant Name Awarded Amount Spent
Nurture $910,776.00 $378,963.94

Note: The grant period is July 1, 2022, through June 30, 2025.

Goal 2: Connect individuals to education, skill-building, and employment opportunities in occupations
most impacted.

Strategies:

1. Invest in training programs, including on-the-job training, apprenticeship and customized
training focused on replacement opportunities for youth/young adults in jobs most impacted by
retirement and other types of projected worker shortages.

2. Analyze the impact of Al/technology on worker displacement.

a. See notes related to this strategy addressed in Goal 5 (page 16)

3. Invest in career pathway models.

Progress Measures:
e Training investments (All Partners’ Programs)

78



Training Investments (All Partners’ Programs)

WorkSource Lane On-the-Job Training Program (OJT)
July 1, 2023 - December 31, 2023

Measure Goal Number Served

# of OJT placements 40 27

# of businesses with OJT 13

# OJT placements with new businesses 6

# of OJT placements by target industry Construction/Aggregate: 2
Creatives: 1

Food/Beverage Manufacturing: 1
Healthcare: 4
Other: 4
Technology: 6
Transportation: 5
Wood Products: 4
# of OJT placements:
$17.00/hr. - $19.99/hr. 14
$20.00/hr. or more 13

Workforce Partner Investments July 1, 2023 — December 31, 2023

Department of Human Services — JOBS Program

Measure Total
# of JOBS Plus placements 8
# of businesses participating in JOBS Plus 7
# of work experience placements 17
# of businesses participating in work experience 7
# of Vocational Training Completions 24
# of Vocational Training Completers Placed in 15
Employment
Ave‘ra?ge Wag.e.at Employment for Vocational $24.33/hr.
Training Participants
Lane Community College - Title Il
Measure Total
# of individuals achieving an increase in skill gains in 114
reading
# of individuals achieving an increase in skill gains in math 53
# of individuals earning a GED 20
# of individuals achieving an increase in skill gains in 36
listening
# of individuals achieving an increase in skill gains in 3

speaking




Special Projects

Research Impact of Aging/Retiring Workforce

In partnership with Oregon Employment Department’s economist, Lane Workforce Partnership staff
published the 2022 State of the Workforce Report for Lane County. This report outlines the impact of
the aging workforce in Lane County as well as the industries that are expected to have a large number of
replacement job openings. Replacement openings are often a result of retirements.

Lane County Projected Job Openings by Industry
Growth and Replacement , 2019-2029
1 1

Education and Health Services

Trade, Transportation, and Utilities I I
Leisure and Hospitality I
Professional and Business Services ] Growth Openings
Manufacturing |
Government | m Exits
Financial Activities | I
4 Transfers
Construction | I
Other Services (except Government) | Il
Natural Resources and Mining
Information
0 10,000 20,000 30,000 40,000 50,000 60,000

Source: Oregon Employment Department

Goal 3: Prepare our youth for future employment.

Strategies:
1. Investin proven strategies and partner with successful youth programs to better align industry
and education to increase student access to work opportunities.
2. Bethe community voice to improve policy makers understanding/willingness to remove
apprenticeship pipeline barriers.

Progress Measures:
e Create and track outcomes for multiple Lane County industry awareness and work-based
opportunities for middle/high school and community college students.
e Identify individual sector’s apprenticeship barriers and chart progress of measurable results to
overcome these barriers.

80



Connect Industry Workforce Needs to Education — LWP partners with Elevate Lane County

to coordinate industry awareness for students, teacher externships, and

work-based learning opportunities.

Measure

Number Served

# of Lane County students participating in industry tours
# of participating industry sectors in tours

# of Lane County schools participating in industry tours

# of Lane County students participating in DevNW
Financial Foundation courses

# of Lane County students participating in the 2023/2024
Middle School Career Expo

# of Lane County schools that participated in the
2023/2024 Middle School Career Expo

# of Lane County businesses represented at Career Expo

# of Lane County students participating in the Hiring Fair
# of Lane County schools that participated in the Hiring
Fair

# of Lane County businesses represented at the Hiring
Fair

# of students participating in job shadows

# of students participating in a mentorship with industry
# of high school teachers participating in an externship
Industry sectors participating in externships

# of high school students participating in an internship

Industry sectors participating in internships

# of high school students participating in a micro
internship

Industry sectors participating in micro internships

110
Manufacturing x 6 companies
8

4
697

15

37
NA

NA

NA

39

16
27

81



Additional Information

Measure Number Served

School Presentations:
e # of presentations to educators: 2
e # of educators: 45
e # of students: 650
e # of high schools: 8
e # of middle schools: 0
e # of industry representatives: 0
# of Lane County schools participating in codeORcreate

(student tech hackathon) 12
# of Lane County students participating in codeORcreate 49
# of participating industry reps in codeORcreate 7
# of Lane County schools participating in marketinglAM NA
# of Lane County students participating in marketing)AM NA
# of participating industry reps in marketinglAM NA
# of Lane County youth participating in MFG Tech NA
Excelerator

# of Lane County industry reps participating in MFG Tech NA
Excelerator

# of Lane County youth participating in Youth Support 23
Specialist Training

# of Lane County youth participating in Wonder 30
Wednesday Life Skill Building Workshops

# of WIOA Youth/Young Adults served 241

Testimonial

CS has been in the WIOA program since October 2023 and has already completed many of her goals. She
participated in DevNW Financial Literacy classes and has been placed on the waitlist for IDA funds. She
also completed a job shadow with a local bakery and enjoyed it so much that she decided to pursue a
work experience with them so that she can hopefully either become employed by them, or gain all the
skills needed to gain employment at another bakery. She loves baking and started her work experience
at the bakery this month. Her host supervisor reports that she is doing extremely well in her position. —
Connected Lane County

BZ has been in the WIOA program for a few years now. He graduated high school in spring of 2023 and
started attending LCC in the fall for computer science with help from his Resource Navigator. He is doing
very well with his grades and is really enjoying his classes. He has been gainfully employed for over a
year now and continues to show initiative and motivation towards his goals. BZ has reported feeling very
supported by WIOA and the Navigate program. — Connected Lane County

82



WIOA Youth/Young Adult Paid Work Experience Opportunities

Measure July 1, 2023 -
December 31, 2023

# of WIOA youth/young adult participating

. . 14
in a work experience

# of youth/young adult who completed an

internship and achieved positive 1

evaluations

Testimonials

JM has participated in WIOA actively since she started a couple of years ago. She has participated in
Wonder Week, Job Shadows, Financial Literacy classes, and diligently attended Wonder Wednesdays.
More recently, she has started a work experience at a local healthcare facility and has applied to the spring
Health Excelerator. JM says this about the program: “Some things | have enjoyed about the Navigate
program is the guidance they gave me and resources to support and the people are very nice and patient
with me.” — Connected Lane County

Fred has found immense value in the work experience opportunities he has been fortunate to engage in.
These experiences have allowed him to explore options he had not previously considered, and he
appreciates the opportunity to acquire new knowledge. He said his favorite part is “getting to learn about
the local workplaces and opportunities in a fun and ideal environment.” — Connected Lane County

Oregon Youth Employment Program

Lane Workforce Partnership was awarded $939,219.00 from the Higher Education Coordinating
Commission (HEC) for the Oregon Youth Employment Program (OYEP) for the period of July 1, 2023 —
June 30, 2025.

The focus of the Oregon Youth Employment Program is to serve youth and young adults ages 14 — 24
through work-based learning opportunities including paid internships, pre-apprenticeship training,
occupational skills training, and other workforce services in three high wage/high demand sectors:
construction, manufacturing, and technology. LWP entered into a Service Agreement with Connected
Lane County for Program Year 2023/2024.

LWP invested $412,453.74 for the period July 1, 2023 — December 31, 2023.

OYEP Performance July 2023 — December 2023

Enrollment through
December 31, 2023

60 60

Enrollment Goal

83



Youth Served in OYEP were the most marginalized in our community. The following chart demonstrates
the barriers of those who participated in the program:

Barriers of Youth Participants

ACADEMIC GAP
CRIMINAL JUSTICE SYSTEM | 0
DISABILITY
ENGLISH LANGUAGE BARRIER
EXPERIENCING ECONOMIC HARDSHIP
FOSTER CARE SYSTEM | 0

HOMELESS/HOUSELESS/UNSHELTERED E |
LGBTQIA2S+
0

PARENTING OR PREGNANT
SKILLS GAP

Goal 4: Catalyze the community around diversity, equity, and inclusion (DEI) to expand
workforce leadership and participation opportunities for all.

Strategies:
1. Be a catalyst for systemic change that raises DEI to the level of sector strategy.
2. Convene an advisory board as a model of DEI leadership.
3. Invest in workforce board training to understand unconscious bias and to lead by example.
4. Embed DEl in all LWP policies.

Progress Measures:
e Increase service utilization among targeted populations
o All LWP policies will contain DEI and Equity Lens language and requirements
e LWP staff and Board members receive diversity, equity, and inclusion training as well as the
establishment of an advisory board

Every two years, LWP releases a State of the Workforce Report. This report provides readers with
information about the current state of Lane County’s economy. The theme of the 2022 State of the
Workforce Report is about the people currently in the workforce —who they are and how our businesses
can tap into their talents.

e 2022 State of the Workforce Report (English)
e 2022 State of the Workforce Report (Spanish)

Each year, LWP reviews and updates its policies and procedures to ensure they are current and meet the
requirements of federal and state legislation. These policies are also developed to aligh with the goals
set by the Workforce Development Board. Lane Workforce Partnership’s current policies and
procedures (both in English and Spanish) can be found on our website.

e Lane Workforce Partnership Policies

84


https://www.laneworkforce.org/wp-content/uploads/2022-State-of-the-Workforce.pdf
https://www.laneworkforce.org/wp-content/uploads/LWP-State-of-the-Workforce-Spanish.pdf
https://www.laneworkforce.org/about-us/policies/

Increase Service Utilization Among Targeted Populations
Targeted Outreach Activities
The Equity and Inclusion Task Team set a priority around increasing outreach activities to under-
represented populations for services available at WorkSource Lane, specifically WIOA training

scholarship opportunities. Staff created and implemented the outreach plan.

Demographics of Populations Served through WorkSource Lane: Eugene and Florence
July 2023 — December 2023

Measure Number Served %

# of disabled individuals served 452 13.3%
# of minority populations served (e.g., Hispanic, Native American, 644 20.6%
Asian, Pacific Islander, African American)

# of individuals 36 — 49 1,046 33.4%
# of individuals 50 — 59 633 20.2%
# of individuals 60+ served 445 14.2%
# of Veterans served 227 7.3%
# of Veterans placed in employment — Targeted Sectors 20 7.8%
# of disabled Veterans placed in employment — Targeted Sectors 3 1.7%

Additional Information:

o # of WorkSource Lane customers for the period July 1, 2023 — December 31, 2023, who
received personalized services to support their job search and access to talent
development and skill training opportunities: 4,915

o # of job seekers placed in targeted industries with wages $14.20+ July 1, 2023 —
December 31, 2023: 258

o # of positions and employers posted on iMatchSkills in targeted sectors for July 1, 2023
— December 31, 2023, with wages $14.20+: 507 positions and 38 employers

Demographics of Populations Served through Lane Community College (LCC) — Title Il
July 2023 — December 2023

Measure Number Served %

# and % of disabled individuals served 86* 8.1%
# and % of minority populations served 315 29.7%
# and % of individuals ages 50+ served 121 11.4%
# and % of ex-offenders served 47 4.4%
# of Veterans served 0 0%

*Number of disabled students is based on information self-reported during
the intake process and includes physical, learning, and other disabilities.

85



Other notable LCC information Program Year 2023 — 2024 (July 2023 — December 2023)

Measure

Number Served

# of homeless

# of long-term unemployment
# of single parents

# of displaced homemakers

41
47
81
11

86



WIOA Youth/Young Adult Program (Snapshot - January 2024)

Current Enrolled Participants: 224

CATEGORIES PERCENTAGE
SEX

Female 57%

Male 38%

Not Disclosed 5%

RACE

White 74%

More than one race 13%

Not Disclosed 7%

Black/African American 3%

American Indian or Alaskan Native 1%

Asian 1%

Native Hawaiian or Other Pacific Islander 1%
ETHNICITY

Not Hispanic/Latino a/x 69%

Not Disclosed 16%

Hispanic or Latino a/x 15%
DISABILITY

No Disability 40%

Disability 44%

Not Disclosed 16%
EDUCATION

Out of School 78%

In-School 22%

HIGHEST EDUCATION LEVEL COMPLETED

Did not complete HS Diploma/GED/Equivalent 54%

High School Diploma 38%

GED 7%

Completed one or more years of post-Secondary education 1%

BASIC SKILLS STATUS
Deficient in Basic Literacy Skills 85%
Not Deficient 15%
EMPLOYMENT STATUS
Not Employed 86%
Employed 14%
INCOME
Low Income 97%
Not Low Income 3%
AGE AT PARTICIPATION
18+ 64%
17 and below 36%

87



WIOA Adult/Dislocated Worker Program (Snapshot - January 2024)
Current Enrolled Participants: 181
CATEGORIES PERCENTAGE
SEX
Male 50%
Female 49%
Not Disclosed 1%
RACE
White 79%
More than one race 9%
Not Disclosed 7%
American Indian or Alaska Native 3%
Black/African American 2%
ETHNICITY
Not Hispanic/Latino a/x 83%
Hispanic or Latino a/x 13%
Not Disclosed 4%
VETERAN STATUS
Never Served 90%
Veteran 10%
UNEMPLOYMENT INSURANCE

Not a Claimant or Exhaustee 67%
Claimant 31%
Exhaustee 2%

HIGHEST EDUCATION LEVEL COMPLETED

Did not complete HS Diploma/GED/Equivalent 3%
12t Grade Completed 4%
GED 9%
High School Degree 41%
Post-secondary technical/vocational certificate 3%
Completed one or more years of post-Secondary education 10%
Associate degree 10%
Bachelor’s degree of equivalent 14%
Education beyond Bachelor’s degree 6%
EMPLOYMENT STATUS
Not Employed 64%
Employed 36%
INCOME
Not Low Income 66%
Low Income 34%
AGE AT PARTICIPATION
18-21 5%
22-29 18%
30-39 23%
40-49 22%
50- 54 9%
55+ 23%

88



Vocational Rehabilitation Services Workforce Metrics

Measure Number Served
Total number served 7/1/23 - 12/31/23 1,340*
Total number with Employment Outcome 113**

*Eugene: 735/Springfield: 605
**Eugene: 56/Springfield: 57

“Employment Outcome” means that the person with a disability has obtained a job, all
accommodations are in place, the job is going well, and the individual has maintained that employment
for a minimum of 90 days and the job is not expected to end in the foreseeable future.

Goal 5: Align strategic partnerships to expand our collective capacity to address systemic
workforce challenges.

Strategies:

1. Continue to invest in sector strategy work.
Analyze impacts of technology on industry employment and on workforce training.
Identify and share job skills with current and emerging workforce.
Analyze, gather, and disseminate projected data about job evolution/changes/growth.
Be the voice to create understanding of self-sufficient wages in our community.

ukhwnN

Progress Measures:
e Annual investments specific to each industry sector

Community Engagement and Industry Sector Partnerships

Lane Workforce Partnership continues to focus on sector strategies, investing funds in talent
development, job creation, and business competitiveness in targeted sectors such as Technology, Food
and Beverage Manufacturing, Wood Products, Construction-Aggregate, Transportation, Creatives,
Bioscience, and Healthcare.

Sector Name Next Gen Step
(Planning, Implementing, Sustaining)

Bioscience Planning
Childcare Sustaining
Construction-Aggregate Sustaining
Creatives Sustaining
Food and Beverage Sustaining
Healthcare Planning
Leisure & Hospitality Planning

Tech Sustaining
Transportation Sustaining
Wood Products Sustaining

89



The NextGen Sector Partnership Stages are:

e Planning Stage
o Step 1: Build your Regional Support Team
o Step 2: Define the Scope of Industry Focus
o Step 3: Prepare to Launch

e Implementation Stage
o Step 4: Launch
o Step 5: Move to Action

e Sustaining Stage
o Step 6: Sustain and Evolve

Targeted Sector investments of $16,655 were made from July 1, 2023 — December 31, 2023. The
following projects would not have been possible without collaboration from community partners:

e Collaborative Economic Development Oregon (Collaborative EDO) providing Sector
Strategy leadership as the Business Service provider for Lane Workforce Partnership.

e Eugene Chamber of Commerce leading the Unhoused Workforce Project, supporting the
Childcare Sector Strategist, and serving as the fiscal agent for Eugene’s Table.

e The Springfield Chamber Work Ready Initiative is an on-going partnership with the City
of Springfield and Chambers Construction.

Targeted Sectors Funds
Expended

ALL (Eugene Chamber Celebration of Business) S 900
Creative (Arts & Business Alliance Catalyst Club) S 1,000
ALL (CEDO — Data Collection — Entrepreneurs and Women’s Innovation S 5,000
Network)

Transportation (Re-launch meeting and CDL Driver Training S 7,255
ALL (Springfield Chamber Work Ready Impact Investor) $ 2,500
TOTAL $16,655

Industry Engagements

In June 2023, Collaborative Economic Development Oregon (Collaborative EDO) assumed the role of
business service provider for Lane Workforce Partnership, marking the initiation of an expanded
partnership. In this enhanced collaboration, Collaborative EDO actively engaged with pivotal regional
industries crucial to our local economy. Together, they implemented well-established programs and
initiatives designed to grow high-paying jobs. Collaborative EDO also took the lead in providing Sector
Strategy leadership and support to various community stakeholders involved in both pre-existing and
newly targeted industry sector initiatives.

Within the framework of this partnership, Collaborative EDO remained actively engaged with essential
local industries, employing proven programs and initiatives to facilitate the creation of high-quality job
opportunities. The organization maintained a robust collaborative relationship with community
stakeholders, whether they were part of existing industry initiatives or newly identified sectors.

90


https://collaborativeedo.org/
https://www.eugenechamber.com/
https://www.springfield-chamber.org/

Key strategic goals for this partnership:

e Identify and support sector strategists and leads;

Activate cross-sector collaboration opportunities;

Host an Annual State of the Industry Summit;

Establish measurements of success;

Dive into new practices and strategies that have not been launched or developed;

e Be a catalyst for systemic change and elevating the importance of embedding DEI practices in
our workforce system.

This investment in Sector Strategies strengthens Lane County’s workforce and economic development
efforts significantly, with a focus on talent development, high wage job creation, business
competitiveness, and industry-specific training that meet the demands of the region’s growth industries.
The below table highlights the combined number of Industry Engagements from July 1, 2023, through
December 31, 2023:

Targeted Sectors # of Businesses
Engaged

Technology 57
Food and Beverage Manufacturing 24
Construction-Aggregate 16
Wood Products 2
Transportation 16
Creatives 24
Bioscience 15
Healthcare 24
TOTAL 178

Learn more about Lane Workforce Partnership's Lane County Sector Strategy Team by visiting our
website. There, you can learn about ongoing efforts to connect industry partners, regional
collaborations, and the Next Generation Sector Partnership model. Stay updated with the latest news,
events, and career opportunities, by following Lane Workforce Partnership on LinkedIn, Twitter,
Facebook, and Instagram or by subscribing to our monthly newsletter.

Engage Relevant Agencies and Programs

LWP, as the Local Workforce Development Board, has a long history of working with business leaders to
advance and strengthen workforce development in our community.

e The Lane County Community Collaborative is a group of economic and workforce development
stakeholders from across Lane County that come together with the goal to better align efforts
and resources to effectively meet the needs of our communities and have a positive ripple effect
across our region. These monthly meetings are designed to foster rich conversation, relationship
building, and collaboration.

e The Lane County Latino a/x Leaders Work Group convened for the first time in June of 2020, in
partnership with The Oregon Community Foundation, OCF’s Latino Partnership Program, Palo
Alto Software, and Lane Workforce Partnership. Each gathering brings together Latino a/x

91


https://www.laneworkforce.org/sector-strategies/lane-county-sector-strategy-team/
https://www.linkedin.com/company/3958439/admin/
https://twitter.com/LaneWorkforceP
https://www.facebook.com/laneworkforcepartnership
https://www.instagram.com/laneworkforcepartnership/
https://www.laneworkforce.org/about-us/lwp-newsletter/
https://www.laneworkforce.org/sector-strategies/community-collaborative/
https://www.laneworkforce.org/diversity-equity-and-inclusion/
https://oregoncf.org/community-impact/impact-areas/community-engagement/latino-partnership-program/
https://www.paloalto.com/
https://www.paloalto.com/
http://www.laneworkforce.org/

leaders from across the county that work in a variety of sectors and have an assortment of
influence. Meetings are structured to inspire and facilitate personal connections and help
mobilize community-driven solutions. This initiative is co-facilitated by Dr. José Meléndez,
Assistant Professor of Planning for Engaging Diverse Communities at the University of Oregon’s
School of Planning, Public Policy, and Management. Lane Workforce Partnership is providing
additional support for a Latino Professional Leadership Institute. In January-February 2024,
CAPACES, in collaboration with Plaza De Nuestra Comunidad and the University of Oregon,
successfully launched the first Leadership Series. The participants in this cohort are set to
graduate on February 17, 2024. Throughout the program, participants delved into the rich
Latine history, engaged in self-assessment/reflection, honed their skills in leadership system
development, navigated the nuances of decision-making bodies, and developed essential
communication skills for diverse audiences.

The Institute for Networked Communities (INC) has launched the Next Generation Sector

Partnerships initiative, which has been closely working with our region for several years to
develop and curate best practices and tools for sector partnerships across the county. As a
result of this involvement, Lane Workforce Partnership is partnering with Next Generation
Sector Partnerships to convene the Southwest Oregon Transportation Sector Partnership.
Collaborating with the Southwestern Oregon Workforce Investment Board (SOWIB), Lane
Workforce Partnership (LWP), and Rogue Workforce Partnership (RWP), INC will navigate a
comprehensive roadmap, including strategic planning, industry convenings, and actionable next
steps. By fostering industry champions and fine-tuning agendas, INC aims to cultivate an
authentically industry-led partnership poised for success. In addition to supporting the Oregon
Transportation Sector Partnership, INC has been contracted to facilitate the launch of the newly
formed Hospitality Sector Partnership. Partnering with Lane Workforce Partnership (LWP),
Northwest Oregon Works (NOW), and Southwestern Oregon Workforce Investment Board
(SOWIB), INC will navigate a year-long planning grant through the Department of Labor’s Critical
Jobs Sector. From intensive coaching and launch facilitation to sustaining momentum, INC will
be using a multifaceted approach to ensure industry-wide transformation.

92


https://www.nextgensectorpartnerships.com/about-inc

LANE WORKFORCE BOARD, EXECUTIVE BOARD

and COUNCIL ACTION ITEM SUMMARY

PROGRAM YEAR 2023/2024 (July 2023 — June 2024)

Recommendation: Motion

January 18, 2024, Executive Board Meeting

Approve Executive Board Meeting John Stapleton
Minutes, October 19, 2023

Provisionally approve the LWP Jetf Graham
Local Plan for 7/1/24 — 6/30/28

October 19, 2023, Executive Board Meeting

Approve Executive Board Meeting John Stapleton
Minutes, September 21, 2023

Adopt the PY 2023/2024 General Solomon Harris
Operating Budget Mod #1 as presented

September 28, 2023, Full Board Meeting

Approve Full Board Meeting Steve Yamamori
Minutes, May 15, 2023

Appoint Solomon Harris, Chair-Elect; Tony Scurto
John Stapleton, Treasurer; Jeff

Graham, Secretary, to serve as

Board Officers for a two-year term

Beginning September 28, 2023

Approve two standing committees Courtney Griesel
of the Board: 1) Workforce Services

Operations Committee; 2) Community

Engagement Committee

September 21, 2023, Executive Board Meeting

Approve Executive Board Meeting Heather Buch
Minutes, May 18, 2023

Approve Lane Council Meeting Michelle Webber
Minutes, June 15, 2023

Seconded

Michele Webber

Solomon Harris

Michele Webber

Jetf Graham

Tony Scurto

Julie Davidson

Shaun Hyland

Michele Webber

Dana Merryday

Status

Approved

Approved

Approved

Approved

Approved

Approved

Approved

Approved

Approved

93



	LANE WORKFORCE BOARD MEETING
	Full Board Meeting Minutes - 12.14.23 - FINAL.pdf
	LANE WORKFORCE BOARD MEETING

	230928 - 2024-2028 Draft Template - Final for WDB Approval.pdf
	Strategic Portion
	Section 1: Vision and Leadership
	It is expected that Section 1 responses will be greatly influenced by the members of the local workforce development board and other community stakeholders. Further, it is expected that there will be strong alignment with the current WTDB Strategic Pl...
	Please answer the questions in Section 1 in eight (8) pages or less. Provide a response for all items identified. Reports and/or expanded analysis can be included as links and/or attachments.
	Strategic Vision and Goals
	1.1 20 CFR 679.560(a)(5): Strategic Vision and Goals 
	A. Provide the local board’s strategic vision and goals for its local workforce system;
	B. Describe how the local board’s strategic vision and goals:
	 Support economic growth and economic self-sufficiency (as defined) in the local area;
	 Prepare an educated and skilled workforce for work or to attain employment including youth and individuals with barriers to employment in the local area; and
	 Provide performance accountability in the local area including WIOA primary indicators of performance.
	1.1 A.
	1.1 B.
	Why these goals are important to Lane County:
	As evidenced throughout Lane Workforce Partnership’s Local Plan, the Local Board’s Strategic Plan goals and objectives are designed to support the economic growth and self-sufficiency of Lane County residents.  This will be accomplished by increasing ...
	The board, local leaders, and community members believe that the goals and strategies identified in the strategic plan will assist our local area in achieving the negotiated federal performance measures.  The local goals were designed in alignment wit...
	WIOA is designed to help jobseekers access employment, education, training, and support services to succeed in the labor market and to match employers with the skilled workers they need to compete in the global economy.  Lane Workforce Partnership foc...
	Business services staff continuously work with the business community to remain aware of evolving needs.  In 2019, the Regional Business Services Team was formed to leverage this collective knowledge, reduce duplication in business services, and incre...
	WorkSource Oregon Lane is the hub for all workforce activities (both businesses and jobseekers), which provides a more cohesive approach to economic stability in Lane County.  It is understood that to grow economic stability, there needs to be an incl...
	1.2
	Lane Workforce Partnership convened stakeholders across Lane County to inform the development of their 2024 – 2028 Strategic Plan with the goal of identifying items that are working well in our communities as well as workforce challenges in each regio...
	As evidenced below, there is close alignment between the WTDB’s imperatives and LWP’s Goals and Objectives for the 2024 – 2028 period.
	WTDB Imperative 1:
	“An inclusive workforce system that advances equitable prosperity” mirrors LWP Goal to “Advance equitable prosperity through an inclusive workforce, overcoming barriers to workforce participation.”
	1.3
	Lane Workforce Partnership’s operations align with each of WTDB joint priorities established in September 2023 as follows:
	Concretely improve the connection between employers and the workforce system consistent with economic development priorities is accomplished through the robust Industry Sector Partnerships in Lane County.  LWP launched the first industry sector partne...
	Concretely deepen the integration of K-12 education in the entire workforce system: As demonstrated in the section on youth workforce services below, LWP has meaningful connections to K-12 education.  LWP’s flagship project, “Constructing a Brighter F...
	Improve workforce system impact by investing in new and existing targeted resources that support work-based learning:  For years, LWP has benefited from highly successful On-the-Job Training and Youth/Young Adult Work Experience programs.  In partners...
	Advance equity by identifying and closing the largest gaps in participant access to education, training, and job placement services:  Implemented in 2017, LWPs equity lens is based on the notion that everyone has the opportunity to obtain quality, liv...
	Complete necessary steps to align data in the WSO System to result in shared state and local performance reports/scorecards:  LWP publishes performance reports semiannually, providing updates at both the mid-point and year-end.   These reports are inc...
	High Performing Board
	1.4
	During Program Year 23/24, Lane Workforce Partnership hired the Center for Workforce Excellence International to conduct training on the strategic functions of a high-performing board.  All current Workforce Board members were scheduled to attend the ...
	 Workforce Development Board Member Composition
	 Election of Board Chair/Officers
	 Maintaining Standing Committees
	 Local Plan Development
	 Workforce Research and Regional Labor Market Analysis
	 Convene, Broker and Leverage Partnerships
	 Employer Engagement
	 Career Pathways Development
	 Proven and Promising Practices
	 Technology (accessibility and effectiveness)
	 Program Oversight (investment and programmatic outcomes)
	 Negotiations of Local Performance Accountability Measures
	 Selection of Operators & Providers
	 Coordination with Education Providers
	 Budget & Administration
	 Accessibility for Individuals with Disabilities
	As a result of the training, the Workforce Development Board formed two standing committees:
	 Workforce Services Operations Committee
	 Community Engagement Committee
	As demonstrated by their actions, Lane Workforce Development Board member’s engagement exemplifies the characteristics of a high-performing workforce board:
	 As strategists, the Lane Workforce Development Board:
	o works with Industry Sector Partnerships to identify industry trends and make informed decisions about investments.
	o Collects, reviews, analyzes, and makes public information on the performance of the workforce service delivery system in Lane County through semi-annual reports.
	 As a convener, the Lane Workforce Development Board staff:
	o Convenes the Local Leadership Team, whose members include each of the mandatory WIOA partner programs.
	o Conducts the Community Collaborative monthly meeting. Lane County Community Collaborative membership includes over 50 partners from education, economic development, businesses, industry sector strategists, workforce development, and community-based ...
	o Works with the One-Stop Operator to facilitate the Regional Business Services Team monthly meeting.
	o Works with the Board’s Business Services provider to convene the Industry Sector Strategist’s Lead meetings.
	o Convenes two committees of the Workforce Board whose members include board members and community stakeholders.
	o Held multiple community focus group meetings in the development of the 2024 – 2028 Strategic Plan.
	 As the manager of the local workforce service delivery system, the newly formed Workforce Services Operations Committee will oversee the implementation of the WorkSource Oregon Standards in Lane’s WorkSource Centers as well as a system of continuous...
	 As evidenced by the Workforce Board’s reports, the local board is data driven and focused on continuous improvement.  The board’s focus of optimization of the local system is operationalized through the review and analysis of:
	o Mid-Year Workforce System Performance Report
	o Year-End Workforce System Performance Report
	o State of the Workforce Report:  Every two years, LWP prepares a comprehensive “State of the Workforce” report. Produced in English and Spanish, this report provides current labor market information specific to economic trends in Lane County. Current...
	Section 2: Data and Analysis
	It is expected that Section 2 include both data and relevant analysis for each local area. Further, it is expected that Questions 2.1 – 2.3 will be a collaborative effort between the local workforce development board and the Oregon Employment Departme...
	Please answer the questions in Section 2 in eight (8) pages or less. Provide a response for all items identified. Please limit the inclusion of tables and charts to those that are critical to your analysis. Reports and/or expanded analysis can be incl...
	Economic and Workforce Analysis
	2.1
	The economy in Lane County has diversified over the past three decades from one that was largely dependent upon the wood products industry to one that is high-tech, forward thinking, environmentally conscious, and diverse. Food product manufacturers h...
	In early 2020, Lane County’s economy was in the midst of the longest expansion in recent history, adding 23,600 jobs (growth of 17 percent) from September 2010 through February 2020.
	The growth ended abruptly in March 2020, when the COVID-19 pandemic reached Oregon. Due to people staying home and restrictions on activities with close contact to avoid spreading the virus, economic activity slowed significantly. In Lane County, smal...
	All major sectors lost jobs due to the COVID-19 pandemic. The first and most restrictive measures were placed on restaurants and bars, severely impacting the leisure and hospitality industry. The sector lost 8,900 jobs, or slightly more than half of a...
	Since the depth of the COVID-19 recession in April of 2020, Lane County has experienced rapid employment growth. Seasonally adjusted data show Lane County had regained 23,100 jobs by January 2023, or about 89% of the jobs lost during the recession. Si...
	All industry sectors added jobs after the COVID-19 recession. Many have surpassed their prerecession levels. As of February 2023, not seasonally adjusted data show these include financial activities (600), manufacturing (500) and construction (400). H...
	Like national trends, employment growth combined with a high level of retirements has caused a tight labor market. Lane County’s unemployment rate has dropped back down to near record lows. As of September 2023, the seasonally adjusted unemployment ra...
	Since the 1970s, Lane County has experienced a widening wage gap with the U.S. and the rest of Oregon. By 2022, annual average wages in Lane County were 19% lower than the rest of the state. An industry mix made up of lower-paying industries compared ...
	Housing costs are lower in Lane County than other areas of Oregon and the west coast, but lower wages make affordability an issue. It’s estimated that in 2022 it would take 6.7 years of median income to purchase a home in Lane County compared to 5.8 i...
	2.2
	In Lane County, spearheaded by Lane Workforce Partnership (LWP), we have strong industry partnerships built within our business community. These industry partners work in alignment to help the workforce system build a strong workforce based on labor m...
	The industries adding the most jobs between the depth of the pandemic recession in April 2020 and April 2023 are also some of the largest. Leisure hospitality, one of the hardest hit during the COVID-19 recession, added 8.300 jobs. Other industries ad...
	Going forward, projections from the Oregon Employment Department for the 2021 - 2031 period show that Lane County employment is expected to grow 12%. The industry adding the most jobs is leisure and hospitality (4,800, 32%) mostly due to recovery from...
	In addition to growth openings all industries provide opportunity through replacement openings. Replacement openings are created in two ways. First, through exits when someone leaves the labor force, largely due to retirement. And secondly, through tr...
	In general, in-demand occupations are related to growing industries. Vacancy data from the Oregon Employment Department show that in 2022 many of the most in-demand occupations are in health care and restaurants including personal care aides, nursing ...
	The 2021 – 2031 projections show that, at the detailed occupational level, the occupations with the most openings largely have lower educational requirements and lower pay. Fast food workers, home health and personal care aids, educational instruction...
	2.3
	2.4 A.
	2.4 B.
	2.5 A.
	Labor force employment recovered from a pandemic low of 149,314 to an all-time high of 176,310 in
	April 2022. It has since dropped back to 170,930, which is lower than pre-pandemic levels. At the statewide level, self-employment grew during the pandemic and helped labor force employment grow. It has since dropped off and may be a reason for the do...
	From a recent peak of 14.7% in April 2020 at the depths of the COVID recession, the unemployment rate has dropped rapidly. Pent up demand from the economy reopening and federal stimulus dollars helped increase employment growth. On the supply side, an...
	The labor force participation rate in Lane County recovered slightly from a low of 55.9% in 2020 to 56.4% in 2022, about the same as the 56.5% recorded in 2019 before the pandemic. In Lane County, the high proportion of population in the 16 to 24 year...
	2.5 B.
	An aging population and retirements in the Baby Boom generation are one reason for lower labor force participation and unemployment rates. The population aged 60 years and over grew from 17% to 31% between 2000 and 2022. As the population has aged the...
	As Lane County’s labor force has become older it is also becoming more diverse. While the number of total workers grew by 11%, or 12,700 workers, from 2000 to 2023, the rate of change in most races and ethnicities far surpassed that pace. In fact, the...
	2.5 C
	Priority Populations and Communities
	2.6 A.
	2.6 B.
	Local investments focus on strategies designed to connect people to work-based learning opportunities while also receiving needed social support.  The Workforce Development Board has shifted from investing primarily in Individual Training Accounts (IT...
	Lane Workforce Partnership promotes the development of public/private partnerships between businesses and community-based organizations.  These partnerships are instrumental in providing workforce training combined with social supports to our most mar...
	In-Demand: WIOA section 3(23) defines “in-demand industry sector or occupation” as,
	 an industry sector that has a substantial current or potential impact (including through jobs that lead to economic self-sufficiency and opportunities for advancement) on the State, regional, or local economy, as appropriate, and that contributes to...
	 an occupation that currently has or is projected to have a number of positions (including positions that lead to economic self-sufficiency and opportunities for advancement) in an industry sector so as to have a significant impact on the State, regi...
	 The determination of whether an industry sector or occupation is in-demand under this paragraph shall be made by the State board or local board, as appropriate, using State and regional business and labor market projections, including the use of lab...
	Section 3: Alignment and Improvement
	It is expected that Section 3 responses will be based on strategic discussions with the local board, partners in the local area, and business and industry leaders. Further, it is expected that there will be strong alignment with the Economic and Workf...
	Please answer the questions in Section 3 in twelve (12) pages or less. Provide a response for all items identified. Reports and/or expanded analysis can be included as links and/or attachments.
	3.1
	WorkSource Oregon Lane Local Leadership Team and Partners Providing Services:
	 Oregon Employment Department (OED)
	o Employment Services
	o Veterans Services
	 Easter Seals of Oregon
	 Department of Human Services (DHS)
	o Self-Sufficiency Programs
	o Vocational Rehabilitation (VR)
	 Oregon Commission for the Blind
	 Lane Community College (LCC)
	 Oregon Extension Manufacturing Partnership (OMEP) (One-Stop Operator)
	 Lane County Health & Human Services (LCH&HS)
	Youth Services Partners
	 Connected Lane County (CLC)
	 Lane County Education Services District (ESD)
	Business Services
	 Collaborative Economic Development Oregon (CEDO)
	Lane County Community Collaborative – includes over 50 partners from education, economic development, businesses, industry sector strategists, workforce development, and community-based organizations.
	3.3
	3.4
	3.5 A.
	LWP consistently seeks out opportunities for competitive grants from federal agencies as well as state and local opportunities.  Current leveraged funding sources include:
	 Good Jobs Challenge Grant – Department of Commerce EDA Grant awarded to SOWIB.  LWP partnered with SOWIB to support the transportation and logistics industry need for Commercial Truck Drivers.
	 Critical Jobs Sector Grant – awarded to LWP from the Department of Labor to support the establishment of a Hospitality Industry Sector Partnership along the entire coast of Oregon.
	3.5 B
	LWP prioritizes supporting industry through Industry Sector Partnerships.  A strong partnership in an industry sector is led and supported by businesses, with the local workforce board playing a role in its initiation.
	Leveraged funding: The Good Jobs Challenge Grant has enabled LWP to re-launch the Transportation and Logistics Industry.  Funding has also focused on training over 100 commercial truck drivers in Lane County.  As a result of these investments, the ind...
	The Critical Jobs Sector Grant will provide the resources needed to launch the Hospitality Industry Sector Partnership for the coastal communities of Oregon.  Leveraged funds from this project, implemented in partnership with two other Workforce Board...
	3.5 C.
	Funding for LWP program priorities creates a challenge, as opportunities to solicit funding is highly competitive and not always aligned with local goals.  Local strategies include conducting research for available local, state, and federal grants tha...
	3.6 A.
	Construction-Aggregate Industry Sector Partnership:
	Creatives Industry Sector Partnership:
	Transportation and Logistics Industry Sector Partnership:
	Childcare Industry Sector Partnership:
	3.6 B
	Planned Industry Sector Partnerships during the 2024 – 2028 period include:
	BioScience Industry Sector Partnership:   In partnership with the Oregon Bioscience Association, the goal will be to grow the biosciences sector in Lane County by fostering an increase in both jobs and businesses. The objective is to enhance the visib...
	Healthcare Industry Sector Partnership:   In response to a crucial shortage of trained workers, the imperative to diversity the workforce, and a shortage of healthcare training providers in Lane County, the partnerships aim to create collaborative wor...
	Semi-Conductor Industry Sector Partnership:  Lane County is working with Stratacache, a semi-conductor chip manufacturing company planning to locate in Eugene.  This presents a unique opportunity to establish an Industry Sector Partnership dedicated  ...
	Hospitality Industry Sector Partnership: In partnership with two workforce boards whose regions include the coastal communities of Oregon, Lane Workforce Partnership is leading the launch of the Hospitality Industry Sector Partnership.  This sector st...
	3.6 C.
	The Next Generation Sector Partnership model serves as our guiding framework, shaping the approach to our efforts by coordinating and facilitating industry-led convenings with the support of community partners. This approach is designed to enhance our...
	3.7
	3.8
	Lane Workforce Partnership contracts with Collaborative Economic Development Oregon (CEDO) to serve as the backbone for business services. CEDO plays a crucial role in supporting LWP’s Industry Sector Partnerships, developing layoff aversion strategie...
	LWP’s One-Stop Operator oversees the convening and coordination of services provided by the Regional Business Services Team.  This team includes business services staff from all partners within the WorkSource Oregon Service Delivery System.
	Direct Business Services is a shared responsibility among partners, with a majority of services delivered by  Oregon Employment Department’s Business and Employment Specialists, working in collaboration with Employment Specialists from   Lane County H...
	3.9
	In Lane County, partners work together to support new businesses seeking to locate in the region.  The strategy to align economic and workforce development is a collaborative effort with:
	 Lane Workforce Partnership
	o Collaborative Economic Development Oregon
	 Lane County Community and Economic Development
	 City of Eugene – Economic Development
	 Business Oregon
	3.10
	Oregon Employment Department’s Business and Employment Specialists at WorkSource Oregon Lane facilitate the connection to unemployment insurance programs. These staff members offer support to residents navigating unemployment insurance, providing answ...
	3.11
	3.12
	3.13
	3.14
	Access to training services through WorkSource Oregon Lane is facilitated through various methods, with priority given to a consumer choice model.  Customers who are certain about their desire for training services are directed to the program that ali...
	All customers seeking training services are required to either engage one-on-one with a Career Advisor for career exploration or participate in the Career Exploration Workshop.  This ensures that customers have the most current information about their...
	All funded training programs must end in an industry-recognized credential and have employment demand in Lane County.  Lane Workforce Partnership encourages customers entering entry-level training to consider stackable credentials.
	3.15
	3.16
	Operational Portion
	Section 4: Services and Activities
	Please answer the questions in Section 4 in twelve (12) pages or less. Provide a response for all items identified. Reports and/or expanded analysis can be included as attachments.
	Available Workforce Development Activities
	WorkSource Oregon
	Section 5: Compliance
	Please answer the questions in Section 5 in ten (10) pages or less. Most responses should be staff-driven as each are focused on the organization’s compliance with federal or state requirements. Provide a response for all items identified. Required do...
	Local Board
	Required Elements

	Full Board Agenda - 2.22.24.pdf
	LANE WORKFORCE PARTNERSHIP BOARD MEETING

	Full Board Agenda - 2.22.24.pdf
	LANE WORKFORCE PARTNERSHIP BOARD MEETING




